STAFF MEETING MINUTES
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2011
8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present:  Deb Schorr, Chair
Larry Hudkins
Jane Raybould
Brent Smoyer

Commissioners Absent:  Bernie Heier, Vice Chair

Others Present:  Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer
Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

The Chair opened the meeting at 8:30 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

1 APPROVAL OF THE THURSDAY, MARCH 17, 2011 STAFF
MEETING MINUTES

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Raybould seconded approval of the March 17, 2011
Staff Meeting minutes. Hudkins, Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr voted
aye. Heier was absent from voting. Motion carried 4-0.
2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA
A. Justice Council
MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded approval of the addition to the
agenda. Smoyer, Raybould, Hudkins and Schorr voted aye. Heier was

absent from voting. Motion carried 4-0.

3 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE - Gordon Kissel and Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S
Associates
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Gordon Kissel, Kissel/E&S Associates, presented a legislative update and a legislative
bills of interest report (Exhibits A and B).

Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, noted the Board received an email from
Larry Dix, Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) Executive Director,
requesting support of Legislative Bill (LB) 84 (Adopt the Build Nebraska Act and
authorize bonds for the highway system).

Raybould inquired about an amendment that would remove the bonding component.

Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates, said that is one of the concepts still being
discussed.

Raybould asked why some senators find bonding objectionable.
Kohout attributed it to a fundamental principal among the Nebraska populace that
government shouldn’t go into debt to fund projects. He added that the debt
component is one of Governor Heineman'’s primary objections.
Members of the Board agreed to contact certain members of the Lancaster County
Senate Delegation, who appear to be undecided on this issue, to ask them to vote in
favor of the legislation.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Justice Council
Eagan asked whether the Board would like to have a member serve on the Justice
Council. He noted that Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director, has offered to
serve as the facilitator.
Raybould and Smoyer both expressed interest in serving.
The Chair noted that Commissioner Heier has served as the Board’s liaison for
Corrections and may also have an interest in serving. She asked that a decision be
delayed until April 7*" when all five Commissioners are scheduled to be present.

ACTION ITEMS

A. Notice of Contract Termination to American Family Life Assurance
Company of Columbus (AFLAC) (Voluntary Benefits)
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MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded approval. Hudkins, Raybould,
Smoyer and Schorr voted aye. Heier was absent from voting. Motion
carried 4-0.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT
A. County Agency Tours

The Board will tour departments on Tuesday, April 5", following the County Board of
Commissioners Meeting and on Thursday, April 7" following attendance at a luncheon
hosted by the Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) at the Cornhusker
Marriott Hotel in recognition of Counties’ Legislative Day.

B. Clean Your Files Week (April 17-23, 2011)
There was general consensus to participate in the event.
C. County Government Week

Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk, explain the National Association of County Officials
(NACo) has designated April, 2011 as National County Government Month. She noted
the following suggestions with regard to promotion of county government:

Speak to a civic club about the county’s services
Visit a school and educate students about county government
Plan a career day
Set up tours of county offices and facilities for students
Allow students to “shadow” a commissioner or the chief administrative officer
for a day
Sponsor a coloring or poster contest for elementary students focusing on a
county government theme
7 Prepare and distribute “County Fact Sheets” on programs and services the
County provides.
8 Release a county “Fact of the Day” each day during National County
Government Month
9 Hold an open house and tours of facilities for the public
10 Create a citizens’ academy
11 Encourage volunteerism
12 Moderate a college or high school debate addressing issues affecting local
government
13 Schedule editorial board meeting with local newspapers
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Board consensus was to proceed with Numbers 2, 5, 8, and 9. Since the theme this
year is “Serving Our Veterans, Armed Forces and Their Families”, the Board will ask
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Gary Chalupa, Veterans Service Officer and/or Retired General Ed Binder to accompany
members of the Board when they visit area schools. The Board also plans to issue a
proclamation and press release in support of National County Government Month and
to include a link to the NACo website on the County’ website.

D. Mayor’'s News Conference Regarding Sherman Field Forever Campaign
(March 31, 2011 at 10:00 a.m.)

It was noted Commissioner Smoyer will represent the Board at the news conference
and will speak about the County’s contribution to the campaign with Visitors
Improvement Fund dollars.

E. City-County Common Meeting (April 5, 2011)

The following agenda items were suggested: 1) Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Projected
Budget for Information Services (I1S); 2) Health Insurance Request for Proposals (RFP);
and 3) Consolidation.

F. Jail Tour (April 12, 2011)
There was no objection to the proposed date.

4 A) COUNTY CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 10026, WIND ENERGY
CONVERSION SYSTEM/TURBINES; AND B) COUNTY CHANGE OF
ZONE NO. 11004, FINAL ACTION BY PLANNING COMMISSION -
Mike DeKalb, Planner

A) County Change of Zone No. 10026

Mike DeKalb, Planner, gave an overview of County Change of Zone No. 10026, a
request from the Planning Director for a text amendment to the Lancaster County
Zoning Resolution to allow commercial wind energy conversion systems/turbines by
special permit in the Agricultural (AG) District (Exhibit C). He noted the County had
been approached by a commercial wind company that was exploring the possibility of
erecting a wind farm with about 30 large commercial machines in the southern part of
the county. There is a recommendation of approval from Planning staff and the
Planning Commission. The Planning Commission has also recommended approval of a
similar text amendment to the City zoning ordinance.

Raybould asked whether the potential for environmental impact has been addressed,
such as prohibiting location in a bird migratory path.
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DeKalb said the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission and Lower Platte South Natural
Resources District (NRD) were advised of the proposed text amendment and will be
notified if an area of application is in close proximity to a resource. He said the
machines can also cause radar interference and said the Planning Department
consulted the Lincoln Airport Authority and Nebraska Department of Aeronautics about
potential impact.

B) County Change of Zone No. 11004

DeKalb gave an overview of County Change of Zone No. 11004, a request from the
Planning Director for a text amendment to the Lancaster County Zoning Resolution to:
1) Delegate final action on special permits to the Planning Commission, with a
provision for appeal to the County Board; and 2) Delegate final action on County Board
of Zoning Appeals applications to the County Board of Zoning Appeals, with a provision
for appeal to the County Board (Exhibit D). He said the intent is to streamline the
process for applicants. Planning staff and the Planning Commission have
recommended approval.

5 LANCASTER COUNTY ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT - Dennis Meyer,
Budget and Fiscal Officer; Jeremy Vokt and Amanda Chantiam, Bland &
Associates
Jeremy Vokt and Amanda Chantiam, Bland & Associates, gave an overview of the audit
report for the year ending June 30, 2010 (Exhibit E). Chantiam noted it is an
unqualified opinion which is the best type of report an auditee may receive from an
external auditor.

In response to a request from Hudkins, Vokt agreed to forward the Board additional
information on the loss on sale of capital assets (see Page 8).

Hudkins also inquired about the Lancaster Manor Fund (see Pages 56 and 59).
Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, said the figures shown in the report for the
Manor are prior to its sale (the Lancaster Manor Asset Purchase Agreement is
referenced on Page 46).

Chantiam said the report indicates two significant deficiencies:

1) The County should prepare the financial statements.

Meyer said he would need additional staff to comply with the finding.
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2) The County did not reconcile transfers between related entities during
the year. Additionally, the County did not capitalize a transfer-in of
capital outlay incurred by the Public Building Commission (PBC) and
required to be transferred at 50% to the County.

Meyer said this finding was also relayed to the PBC and said he believes the solution is
to fully utilize the County’s financial system for the PBC.

MOTION:

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded to add a salvage retention
agreement to the agenda. Hudkins, Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr voted
aye. Heier was absent from voting. Motion carried 4-0.

Eagan presented an email from Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, indicating one of the
Community Mental Health Center’'s (CMHC’s) vehicles was damaged and deemed a
total loss by the insurance company, due to the high number of miles the vehicle was
driven (Exhibit F). He said CMHC has received a repair estimate that is less than the
insurance settlement.

Raybould questioned whether the County would still be able to obtain liability coverage
for the vehicle if it is salvaged.

The item was held for additional information.

6

MOTION:

MOTION:

LABOR NEGOTIATIONS AND PENDING LITIGATION - Mark Koller,
Personnel Director; John Cripe, Classification and Compensation
Manager; Nicole Gross, Compensation Technician; Tom Fox, Deputy
County Attorney

Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded to enter Executive Session at 9:45
a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards to
discussion of labor negotiations and pending litigation. Hudkins,
Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr voted aye. Heier was absent from voting.
Motion carried 4-0.

Smoyer moved and Hudkins seconded to exit Executive Session at 10:24
a.m. Smoyer, Raybould, Hudkins and Schorr voted aye. Heier was
absent from voting. Motion carried 4-0.

COUNTY VEHICLE FLEET - Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager; Tom
Champoux, UNICO Group, Inc.
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Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, distributed information regarding insurance costs for
county vehicles and mileage reimbursement rates and amounts (Exhibits G, H & 1).

Tom Champoux, UNICO Group, Inc., said employees who drive their own vehicles for
business use assume additional liability and are advised to have an incidental business
use endorsement for their vehicle. He estimated the cost at $50 to $100, adding not
all insurance companies provide this coverage. Champoux said the County has hired
and non-owned auto coverage in place and would also be protected by the tort claims
cap if an employee were to cause a multi-million dollar accident but said he is not sure
whether the cap would also apply to the employee.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded to request a legal opinion on the
issue of liability for individuals driving for the County in the course of
business. Raybould, Hudkins, Smoyer and Schorr voted aye. Heier was
absent from voting. Motion carried 4-0.

Champoux recommended that the County also set a minimum insurance limit.

Eckley said insurance coverage will need to be monitored to insure compliance and job

descriptions may need to be revised if employees will be required to provide their own

transportation. There could also be workers’ compensation issues.

There was general consensus to: 1) Check with other counties, such as Douglas and

Sarpy, to see how they have addressed this issue; and 2) Schedule discussion of how

much business travel could be transferred to personal vehicles on a Management

Team Meeting agenda.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA
B. Salvage Retention Agreement

Raybould asked Eckley whether liability insurance covers salvage vehicles.

Eckley said it does.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded to authorize the Chair to sign the

salvage retention agreement. Hudkins, Smoyer, Raybould and Schorr
voted aye. Heier was absent from voting. Motion carried 4-0.
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8 INFORMATION SERVICES (1S) DISCUSSION - Steven Henderson,
Information Services (IS) Manager

Steven Henderson, Information Services (IS) Manager, said he has had a number of
conversations over the last few weeks with Dennis Meyer, County Budget and Fiscal
Officer; Steve Hubka, City Budget Officer; and the Mayor’'s Office regarding the budget
and whether the payment flow for mainframe services can be restructured to minimize
the immediate budget impact of Lincoln Electric System’s departure from the
mainframe. He said the largest consumer of the mainframe service is the County
Treasurer’s Office. There are also several City departments that are significant
mainframe users. Henderson said it was decided that the rates for the County
Treasurer’s Office will be restructured over the next two to three years to provide
relief. He said the impact for the rest of the City and County customers drops off
enough that an undue burden could not be determined at this point in time.
Henderson said this does not solve the mainframe problem but gives his department
more time to analyze and determine the future of IS’s mainframe services. Henderson
said the question will be whether the mainframe remains a viable and reasonable tool
for the City and County. He said other options for the future include: 1) Broaden
customer base; 2) Utilize the State’s mainframe environment; and 3) Cloud computing
(the provision of computational resources on demand via a computer network).
Henderson said he will continue to research options and will bring a recommendation
back to the Board.

It was noted that the County’s interlocal agreement with the City for a joint data
processing division will expire in September and Henderson was asked to gather the
information as quickly as possible so the Board can decide whether to renew that
agreement.

Schorr said she believes the Board should consider issuing a Request for Proposals
(RFP) for IS services.

Henderson also suggested the need to re-examine utilization of the Geographic
Information System (GIS), explaining a large part of the increase for GIS is related to
preparing for technical advances in that area.

Meyer noted there is a new $85,000 line item in the budget this year that is related to
GIS.

Board consensus was to schedule GIS discussion on the March 31% Staff Meeting
agenda.
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9 JUVENILE EARLY ASSESSMENT EVALUATION - Joe Kelly, County
Attorney; Alicia Henderson, Chief Deputy County Attorney, Juvenile
Division; Kit Boesch, Human Services Administrator; Kristi Bauer,
Attorney

Alicia Henderson, Chief Deputy County Attorney, Juvenile Division, gave an overview of
the Early Assessment Process in the Juvenile Court Division of the County Attorney’s
Office (Exhibits J & K). She noted the Human Services Department obtained a Crime
Commission grant that allowed the County Attorney’s Juvenile Court Division to hire
Kristi Bauer, a former deputy county attorney, for one year to serve as an Assessment
Specialist.

Bauer said she screens juvenile law citations, referrals from law enforcement and the
assessments by Sara Kliewer, who works through Cedars Youth Services, and decides
whether to refer the juveniles who were cited to diversion or to an attorney for filing.
She said turnaround following the assessment is usually one week.

10 A) MILLIMAN ACTUARIAL CONTRACT; AND B) RECORDS
MANAGEMENT PAROLE PROJECT - Brittany Behrens, Deputy County
Attorney

A) Milliman Actuarial Contract

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, said Milliman will not agree to a limited
liability clause but has agreed to extend the liability cap to $100,000.

B) Records Management Parole Project

Behrens said she has drafted a contract with the State for Records and Information
Management to microfilm documents for the Judicial Users System to Improve Court
Efficiency (JUSTICE), the State Court Administrator’s database for District and County
Courts (see March 10, 2011 Staff Meeting minutes). She noted that compensation will
be on a per image and per roll basis.

Brian Pillard, Records & Information Manager, appeared and requested authorization
to increase staff hours to perform the work.

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Hudkins seconded to authorize additional hours for
the employee who is currently working 21 hours per week, as needed to
perform the additional work. Hudkins, Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr
voted aye. Heier was absent from voting. Motion carried 4-0.
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11 BUDGET UPDATE - Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, said county departments are struggling with
how to absorb rent and Information Service (IS) rate increases.

Schorr asked whether any IS projects could be deferred.
Meyer said he has posed that question but did not receive an answer.

Hudkins asked whether the City plans to exempt IS from its directive to city
departments to submit budgets at 97% of last year’s budget.

Meyer said IS operates as an enterprise fund and the City may decide not to hold it to
the budget restriction.

Troy Hawk, Court Administrator, Lancaster County District Court, appeared and
discussed his department’s budget.

Raybould suggested reductions could be made to the District Court’s budget by
reducing the fees paid to court appointed attorneys and witnesses and asking jurors to
waive their fees.

Hawk said he does not believe State Statutes provide for a waiver of fees and said it is
not the Judges place to advocate such a position. He said the rate paid to court
appointed attorneys is low for the market and has not been increased since 2005.
NOTE: The rate is $65 per hour for County Court and $75 per hour for District Court.

Raybould asked whether video conferencing could be utilized for expert witnesses as a
cost savings measure.

Hawk said evidence may not be presented via video conferencing.

Raybould suggested that lodging of jurors might be another area of the budget that
could be reduced.

Hawk explained that criminal defendants in District Court have the right to request that
the jury be sequestered.

Hudkins suggested that District Court try to negotiate a reduced room rate for juries.

Hawk said he will work with the Purchasing Department in that regard.
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Raybould suggested additional areas to explore for budget reductions include security
staffing for the government complex and health insurance contributions. She also
stated she would be willing to assist departments in making reductions to their
budgets.

12 ACTION ITEMS

A. Notice of Contract Termination to American Family Life Assurance
Company of Columbus (AFLAC) (Voluntary Benefits)

Item was moved forward on the agenda.
13 CONSENT ITEMS
There were no consent items.
14 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

County Agency Tours

Clean Your Files Week (April 17-23, 2011)

County Government Week

Mayor’s News Conference Regarding Sherman Field Forever Campaign
(March 31, 2011 at 10:00 a.m.)

City-County Common Meeting (April 5, 2011)

Jail Tour (April 12, 2011)

oo w»
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Items A-F were moved forward on the agenda.

15 PENDING
There were no pending items.

16 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS
The Chair asked that the list of meetings be limited to Board committee assignments.
Board members may report on other meetings they have attended by asking that the
item be scheduled on the agenda.

A. Meeting with the Mayor - Smoyer

Smoyer said they discussed ways to fund widening of Havelock Avenue by the
Lancaster Event Center and County involvement with the Haymarket Arena Project.
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B. Board of Equalization Meeting - Raybould, Smoyer

Raybould and Smoyer reported that they met with Tom Kubert, Great Plains Appraisal
Company, Inc. (Referee Coordinator), and discussed options for Board of Equalization
hearings.

C. District Energy Corporation (DEC) - Hudkins, Heier

Hudkins said the DEC voted to support a petition for reclassification of 145 wells that
were drilled for its geothermal energy facilities project at the new Lancaster County
Adult Detention Facility (LCADF) on Southwest 40" Street. NOTE: The Nebraska
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) rejected the wells because the
boreholes did not meet state specifications.

D. Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Advisory Committee -
Raybould

Raybould said discussion focused on the budget. She also reported that the CMHC is
in negotiations for a contract with the Lincoln Regional Center for monitoring sex
offenders in the community.

17 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS
There were no emergency items or other business.

18 ADJOURNMENT
MOTION: Smoyer moved and Hudkins seconded to adjourn the meeting at 12:40

p.m. Hudkins, Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr voted aye. Heier was
absent from voting. Motion carried 4-0.

Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk
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"EXHIBIT

A

Lancaster County Board of Commissioners
Legislative Update

March 24, 2011

Today is the fifty-first day of the ninety-day session.

Today the Legislature will be discussing Senator Deb Fischer’s priority bill LB 84. This is the bill that
would create the Build Nebraska Act. This act woulid result in a greater investment in surface
transportation infrastructure. This will be financed with bonded debt. The bill would also dedicate a
portion of the state sales tax to financing in 2013. The bill would provide (among other things)
approximately an additional $10 million for road construction to the states counties. Although the
money would not be available until 2013 and it is earmarked for road construction it would offset the $9
miilion lost to counties when the state cut state aid. The adopt the Build Nebraska Act proposes to
utilize a half-cent of the state’s existing 5.5 cent sales tax for a newly created State Highway Capital
Improvement Fund, generating roughly $125 million a year for the next 20 years to construct high-
priority capital improvements and reconstruction projects throughout the state. The bill would also
permit, but not require the Department of Roads to bond for high-priority projects if approved by the
voters. As amended, the bill would require that at least 515 million of the revenue be used for
construction of the expressway systern and for federally designated high-priority corridors.

We anticipate the debate to be contagious and very long. There will be those senators that have other
interests than road construction that will oppose the plan. Proponents of the measure have asked two
questions of the senators: “Will you vote to advance the bill?, and “Will you support a closure motion?” .
Long debate is headed our way today and tomorrow.

LB 106 (Schilz) is a bill that would authorize a county sales tax for capital improvements for public safety
services and transportation infrastructure. The bill was amended by the Revenue Committee to allow
the use of the county local option sales tax for crime prevention, offender detention and police services.
Senator Louden has prioritized the bill. The bill has yet to be on the agenda. We have discussed with
NACO and indicated our support.
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&

Kissel/ES Associates -
Client: Lancaster County . EXHIBIT
5
Hearing T NACOD
LB/LR |Sponsor Priority |One-Liner Committee Date Status LC |Position |NACGC |Position
Change and
eliminate fees
received by
registers of deeds |Government, Military
LB14 |Wightman and clerks and Veterans Affairs 1.19.11 X X Support
Change valuation
of agricultural and
horticultural land
LB33 |Louden Revenue 1.21.13% X X Oppose
' Adopt the lilegal
Immigration
LB48 |Janssen Enforcement Act  Judiciary 3.2.11 X X Monitor
Provide certain
requirements
relating to filing of
nonconsensual Banking, Commerce and
LB49 |Krist liens Insurance 1.31.11 X X
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Kissel/ES Associates
. Ettent:—tancasterfetiitig IC NACO
I.B/LR Sponsor Priority |One-Liner Committee Date Status I.C |Position |NACO | Position
Change budget
revision and salary
approvat provisions
for counties General File with
AM245; AM245
adopted; Select File with
ER26; ER26 adopted;
Lathrop AVI496 filed &
adopted; Final Reading
with ST6; Dubas AM611
filed; Motion to rtn to
Select File for specific
amendment pending;
Sullivan FA7 filed;
Motion to rin to Select
File failed; Dubas
AMG611 withdrawn;
Sullivan FA7 withdrawn;
Final Reading
40-5-4
Government, Military Governor Approved
LB62 |Heidemann and Veterans Affairs 1.20.11 |3.10.11 X |Monitor |X Support
Change provisions
relating to DNA General File with
collection AM241; Cornett AM386
LB66 |Cornett Judiciary 1.19.11  |filed X |Support [X
Change provisions
relating to use of
comparable sales
for tax valuation
LB69 |Louden Revenue 1.21.11 X X Oppose
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Kissel/ES Associates
Client: Lancaster County
Hearing T NACTUO
LB/LR |Sponsor Priority One-Liner Committee Date Status LC |Position \(NACO |Position
Define a term in General File; AM194
the Public Funds filed; AM194 adopted;
Deposit Security Select File with ER22;
Act ER22 adopted;
Final Reading with
Emergency Clause 45-0-
4 3.4.11
Banking, Commerce and Governor Approved
LB78 |Pahls Insurance 1.24,11 |3.10.11 X X
Adopt the Build
Nebraska Act and General File with
authorize bonds for AM385; Fischer AM827
the highway system filed; Flood FAS filed;
LB84  |Fischer Fischer Revenue 2.10.11 [Fischer AM216 filed X X Support
Change provisions
relating to mowing
weeds in ditches
Transportation and
LB87 |[Christensen Telecommunications 3.8.11 X X Oppose
Authorize a county
sales tax for capital
improvements for
public safety
services and
transporiation
infrastructure
LB106 |Schilz Louden Revenue 1.27.11 |General File with AM731/X  |Support |X Support
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Kissel/ES Associates
Client: tancaster County
; Hearing T NATU
LB/LR |Sponsor Priority | | One-Liner Committee Date Status LC Position (NACO |Position
Change General File with AM38;
membership on AMB98 adopted; Select
- Imental health File;
. |boards Final Reading 49-0-
' 0 2.16.11
Health and Human Governor Approved
LB111 |Gloor Services 1.19.11 |2.22.11 X X
. |Change limitation
. |of action provisions
; under the Political
" |Subdivisions Tort
w Claims Act
LB115 |Council | Judiciary 2.3.11 X |Oppose (X Oppose
Change publication
| requirements for
' |constitutional
- |lamendments and
' linitiative and
} referendum
‘ measures Government, Military
LB117 [Avery ‘ and Veterans Affairs 1.21.11 X X
| [Change DNA
‘ collection
LB128 |Avery | provisions Judiciary 1.19.11 |IPP'd 2.11.11 X {Support |X
“|Eliminate the
statute of limitation
- |for certain felonies
LB129 |Avery | Judiciary 1.27.11 X X
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Kissel/ES Associates
Client: Lancaster County

Hearing [ A NACTU
LB/LR |Sponsor Priority |[One-Liner Committee Date Status LC |Position |NACO |Position
Require inclusion of
sentencing costs in
presentence
reports
LB133 |Ashford Judiciary 2.2.11 X X
Change the date for ' '
remitting certain General File;
funds under the Langemeier AM56 filed;
Motor Vehicle Select File; Smith AMG61
Certificate of Title filed; Langemeier AMS6
Act withdrawn; AM61
Transportation and adopted;
LB135 |Smith Telecommunications 1.18.11 |Final Reading X X Support
Change provisions '
relating to
postconviciion
relief
LB137 |Lautenbaugh |Speaker Judiciary 2.2.11 General File with AM735|X X
Change surplus
property sale
provisions of the
County Purchasing jGovernment, Military
LB139 !lautenbaugh Act and Veterans Affairs 1.26.11 |General File with AM292|X |Support X Support




3/23/11 at 3:06 PM

Legisiative Bill of Interest Report
Kissel/ES Associates
Client; Lancaster County

Page 6 of 31

LB/AR

Sponsor

Priority

One-Liner

Committee

Hearing
Date

Status

LC

LC
Position

NACO

NACO
Position

LB157

Coash

Change
guardianship and
conservatorship
provisions

Judiciary

1.20.11

General File; Coash
AM106 filed; Flood
AM107 filed & adopted;
Flood AM112 filed;
AM106 & AM112
adopted; Coash AM140
filed & adopted; Select
File; Coash AM215 filed;
Flood AM110 & AM111
withdrawn; Coash
AM215 adopted; Final
Reading 49-0-0
2.16.11

Governor Approved
2.22.11

LB159

Urban Affairs
Committee

Autharize bond
powers for cities,
villages, and
counties for
nonprofit
enterprises

Urban Affairs

1.18.11

General File with
AM244; AM244
adopted; Select File with
ER36; Schumacher
AMA70 filed; ER36
adopted; AM470
adopted; Final Reading
w/Emergency Clause 48-
0-1 3.10.11
Governor Approved
3.16.11

Monitor
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Kissel/ES Associates
Etient—tencasterfaiAlg T NACU
LB/LR |Sponsor Priority |One-Liner Committee Date Status LC Position |NACO |Position
Eliminate a duty of
the county assessor General File; Select File;
relating to Final Reading 47-
information on 0-2 3.4.11
trusts that own Governor Approved
LB160 |Campbell agricultural land Agriculture 2.1.11 3.10.11 X X Support
Change provisions General File with
relating to AM264; Karpisek
recounting votes AM383 filed;
Lautenbaugh MO13
Government, Military Bracket until June 8,
LB161 |Karpisek and Veterans Affairs 1.21.11 {2011 filed & prevailed |X X Support
Change provisions
relating to
abstracts of
property
assessment rolls
LB162 (Campbell Revenue 2.17.11 X X Support
Provide notification
requirements General File with
before moving AM286; AM286
buildings or other adopted; Select File;
large objects on a Final Reading 47-0-2
county or township 3.10.11
road Transportation and Governor Approved
1B164 :Louden Telecommunications 1.31.11 |3.16.11 X X Support
Change provisions :
relating to the
issuance of one
license plate Transportation and
LB182 [Hansen Telecommunications 3.7.11 X X Neutral
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Kissel/ES Associates
Client: Lancaster County
Hearmng T NATU
iB/LR |Sponsor Priority |One-Liner Committee Date Status LC |Position \NACO |Position
Change abandoned
maotorboat and
trailer provisions |Transportation and
LB183 |Wightman Telecommunications. 1.31.11 X X Monitor
Provide for one
vehicle license Transportation and
LB185 |Fulton plate Telecommunications 3.7.11 X X Neutral
Require
nonpartisan ballots
for county officers |Government, Military
LB186 |Sullivan and Veterans Affairs 2.16.11 X X Oppose
Adopt the Criminal '
Offender
LB189 |Council Employment Act  |Business and Labor 1.24.11 X X Monitor
Change provisions
relating to General File; Select File
sehtence with ER37; ER37
reductions adopted; Final Reading
w/Emergency Clause 45-
0-4 3.10.11
Governor Approved
L8191 [Council Judiciary 2211 3.16.11 X X
Authorize petitions
for recall and
resentencing for
cerfain minors
sentenced to life
impriscnment .
1B202 |Council Judiciary 1.27.11 |General File with AM399|X X
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LC

LC
Position

NACO

NACU
Position

LB203 |Council

Change sentencing

|requirements with
‘|respect to certain

minors

Judiciary

1.27.11

1.B206 |Wightman

| |Provide for

disposition of

' |abandoned camper
|units and cabin
: |trailers

Transportation and
Telecommunications

1.31.11

Monitor

LB210 |Cornett

-|Change revenue
! |and taxation
" |provisions

Revenue

1.18.11

Generatl File; Select File;
Final Reading 48-0-1
3.10.11

Governor Approved
3.16.11

Monitor

LB214 |Pankonin

| |Require

| Inonpartisan
election of county
t|and city officials

Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs

2.16.11

Monitor

X

Oppose

1B226 |Gloor

"|Create the offense
- |of assault with a

' [bodily fluid against
|a public safety
Speaker |

officer

Judiciary

2.4.11

Support

X

LB233 |Krist

Decrease the
Inumber of

members of the
Legislature to forty-
five

Redistricting

2.16.11
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LB/LR |Sponsor Priority |One-Liner Committee Date Status LC |Position |NACO |Position

Change provisions
relating to county
office and service
facilities of the
Department of
Health and Human
Services Government, Military
LB234 (Fischer and Veterans Affairs 2.3.11 X |Support X Support

Require
presentation of
government~issued
photographic
identification to
vote in elections  |Government, Military
LB239 |Janssen and Veterans Affairs 2.24.11 |General File with AM727|X X Oppose

Change provisions
relating to assault,
assault on an
officer, and
offenses by a
confined person
LB242 |Hadley Judiciary 2.4.11 X X

LB251 |Council Judiciary [Change court fees |Judiciary 1.26.11 X X Support

Provide and change
requirements for
instruments
recorded by the
register of deeds  [Government, Military
LB254 |Campbell and Veterans Affairs 2.3.11 General File with AM240|X X Support
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LB/LR Spensor Priority |One-Liner Committee Date Status LC |Pasition |NACO |Position

Change the Open
Meetings Act

relating to closed  |Government, Military |
LB266 |Sullivan sessions and Veterans Affairs 1.26.11 X X Monitor

Eliminate duties
and positions in the
Executive Public Counsel's
LB270 |Board office Executive Board 3.3.11 X |Support |X Support

Change the
Nebraska Visitors
Development Act
to provide for the
advice of a visitors
committee to a
county board Government, Militéry
LB277 |Coash and Veterans Affairs 3.0.11 General File X |Support |X Support

Authorize payment General File; Select File
to county officers with ER34; ER34

and employees by adopted; Final Reading
electronic funds 48-0-1

transfer 3.10.11

Government, Military Governor Approved
LB278 {Coash and Veterans Affairs 2.3.11 3.16.11 X |Support X Support

Authorize the
operation on public
highways of low-
speed vehicles as
prescribed Transportation and
LB289 |Mello Speaker Telecommunications 2.15.11  |General File with AM416|X X Neutral
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ic

LC
Position

NACO

NACO
Paosition

1B301 Ashford

Change provisions
for sealing records
under the Nebraska
Juvenile Code

Judiciary

2.24.11

LB304 [McGill

Provide for
treatment of
sexually
transmitted
diseases as
prescribed

Health and Human
Services

2.24.11

General File

LB318 |Cornett

Redefine qualified
claimant for
homestead
exemption
purposes

Revenue

2911

Monitor

X

Oppose

LB319 |Cornett

Change
reimbursement for
homestead
exemptions

Revenue

2.9.11

Monitor

Oppose

LB320 |(Cornett

Change homestead
exemption income
limitations

Revenue

2.9.11

Monitor

Oppose
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Hearing
Date
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LC

[ X
Position

NACQ

NACO
Position

L8321 |Cornett

Change calculations
relating to
homestead
exemptions

Revenue

2.9.11

Monitor

Oppose

LB322 |Cornett

Provide
requirements for
prescription drug
insurance

Banking, Commerce and
Insurance

21411

Monitor

Monitor

LB327 |Campbell

Change motor
vehicle fees and
distribution of the
proceeds

Transportation and
Telecommunications

2.1.11

Support

LB330 Cook

Change
requirements for
dental hygienists in
public health-
related settings

Health and Human
Services

3.4.11

{B337 |Fulton

Speaker

Change timeframes
for audits by the
Auditor of Public
Accounts

Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs

2.10.11

General File with AM275

X

Monitor

18339 |Ashford

Change Nebraska
Juvenile Code
predisposition
evaluation
procedures

Judiciary

29.11

Monitor

X
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LB/LR |Sponsor Priorityf One-Liner Committee Date Status LC |Position |NACO |Position

~|Change provisions
relating to

. |municipal counties
- tand merger of

_ |governmental
services

‘ Government, Military
LB344 |Ashford i and Veterans Affairs 2.25.11 X X Monitor

- |Change provisions
| relating to the Tax
| Equalization and
Review

' |Commission and
property taxes and
| {provide a duty for
- |the Secretary of

- |State

LB363 |Cornett Revenue 2.17.11 X X Monitor
- |Change access

. |provisions for voter
information and

. |voter registration

registers Government, Military
LB365 |Sullivan : and Veterans Affairs 2.24.11 X X
i |Change nomination General File; Sefect 'File;
provisions for Final Reading
partisan offices 48-0-1
3.10.11
Government, Military Governor Approved

LB368 Brasch and Veterans Affairs 2.2.11 3.16.11 X |Support [X Oppose
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One-Liner
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Hearing
Date
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LC

LT
Position

NACO

NACOQ |Position

LB370

Wightman

Eliminate
provisions relating
to issuance of tax
deeds

Revenue

2.11.11

General File

LB371

Schumacher

Provide for an
unfair insurance
trade practice
relating to public
officials

Banking, Commerce and
Insurance

2.15.11

Monitor

LB373

Speaker Flood

Make deficiency
appropriations

Appropriations

2.7.11

Monitor

LB374

Speaker Flood

Appropriate funds
for state
government
expenses

Appropriations

2.7.11

Monitor

LB375

Speaker Flood

Appropriate funds
for salaries of
members of the
legislature

Appropriations

2.7.11

Monitor

LB376

Speaker Flood

Appropriate funds
for salaries of
constitutional
officers

Appropriations

2.7.11

Monitor

LB377

Speaker Flood

Appropriate funds
for capital
construction

Appropriations

2.7.11

Meonitor
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LB/LR |Sponsor Priority |One-Liner Committee Date Status LC |Position |NACO |Position

Provide for fund
transfers and
change provisions
relating to various
LB378 |Speaker Flood funds Appropriations 2.7.11 X X Monitor
Transfer funds from
the Cash Reserve

LB379 |Speaker Fiood Fund Appropriations 2.7.11 X X Moanitor
Eliminate state aid
for municipalities, General File; Louden
counties, and AM288 filed; Council
natural resources AM252 filed; AM288 &
districts AM252 lost; Select File;

Council AM331 filed;
Council AM334 filed;
Council AM334 lost;
Mello AMASO filed &
lost; Council AM331
lost; Finai Reading with
Emergency Clause 36-9-
4 3.4.11

Governor Approved
LB383 (Cornett Revenue Revenue 1.26.11 |3.10.11 X |Oppose |X Oppose




3/23/11 at 3:06 PM Legislative Bill of Interest Report

Kissel/ES Associates
Ehents taneasterfglntg

Page 17 of 31

LG NACO

LBiAR

Sponsor

Priority

One-Liner

Committee

Date

Status

LC

Position

NACO

Position

LB384 |Cornett

Revenue

Eliminate a
commissioner of
the Tax Equalization
and Review
Commission and
authorize single
commissioner
hearings

Revenue

2.3.11

Support

.LB388 |Wightman

Wightma
n

Adopt the Site and
Building
Development Act
and change
provisions relating
to the Affordable
Housing Trust Fund

Insurance

Banking, Commerce and

2.7.11

General File; Wightman
AMB49 filed; AMB49
adopted

Monitor

LB390 iAshford

Speaker

Change provisions
relating to jails and
corrections and
create the
Community
Corrections
Division of the
Nebraska
Commission on
Law Enforcement
and Criminal
Justice

Judiciary

1.27.11

Oppose

X

Oppose
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Priority

One-Liner

Commiitee

Hearing
Date

Status

LC

LT
Position

NACO

NACU
Position

LB391 (Schilz

Create the
Nebraska invasive
Spectes Council

Natural Resources

2.17.11

LB392 |(Schilz

" Provide powers and

duties relating to
aquatic invasive
species

Natural Resources

2.17.11

LB396 |Pahls

Change bond
provisions relating
to the deposit and
investment of
certain county
funds

Banking, Commerce and
Insurance

1.31.11

General File; Select File;
Final Reading 46-0-
3 3.4.11
Governor Approved
3.10.11

Support

LB398 |Lathrop

“|Change provisions

relating to notaries
public

Judiciary

1.28.11

LB40S |Cornett

Authorize hearings
by a single
commissioner of
the Tax Equalization

‘ land Review

Commissicn

Revenue

2.17.11

Support
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Date

Status

Lc

LC
Position

NATUO

NACO |Position

LB409

Utter.

Provide for the
retention of
insurance proceeds
by a country or
municipality to

repair or demolish
* |damaged property

Banking, Commerce and

Insurance

2.14.11

General File with AM577

X

X Monitor

LB415

Wallman

- |Change provisions
" |relating to

contraband in a
detention facility or
providing an
inmate with
contraband

Judiciary

2.10.11

General File with AM525

L8430

Cornett

Change property
" itax levy limitations

Revenue

2.2.11

General File

X Monitor

LB437

Urban Affairs
Committee

Change state

building code
provisions

Urban Affairs

2.8.11

LB441

Heidemann

Change levy

provisions for rural
' land suburban fire
. |protecticn districts

Revenue

331

X Monitor
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Priority

One-Liner

Committee

Hearing
Date

Status

LC

LC
Position

NACO

NACO
Position

LB444

Avery

Provide methods
for notice under
the Open Meetings
Act

Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs

1.26.11

Support

LB447

Fulton

Change provisions

{relating to

vehicular pursuit

Judiciary

2.25.11

Support

Support

LB449

Nelson

Speaker

Change the
Election Act

Government, Military
anhd Veterans Affairs

2.16.11

General File with AM867

Monitor

LB451

Ashford

Change court fees,
procedures, offices,
and judgeships

Judiciary

2.11.11

Monitor

X

Monitor

LB452

Ashford

Provide for lottery
winnings and tax
refund intercept for
debts owed to
courts

Judiciary

1.28.11

Monitor

Monitor

LB457

Campbhell

Provide for notice
of preliminary
valuations and in-
person meeting
relating to property
taxes and change
certain dates

Revenue

2.17.11

Monitor

Monitor
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Sponsor

Priority

One-Liner

Committee

Hearing
Date

Status

LC

LT
Position

NACO

NACU
Position

LB459

Schilz

Limit the adoption
of any law by a
political subdivision
regarding the
ownership of
domestic animals

Agriculture

3.1.11

General File with AM720

X

Monitor

LB460

Ashford

Change the Sex
Offender
Registration Act

Judiciary

3.16.11

Monitor

LB475

Lautenbaugh

Change
garnishment
provisions to
include
independent
contractors
providing services
to government
entities

Judiciary

2.11.11

Monitor

LB479

Lathrop

Lathrop

Authorize a minor
to give consent to
evidence collection
and examination
and treatment in
cases of sexual
assault

Judiciary

2.10.11

Generat File with
AM335; Lathrop AM890
filed
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Priority

One-Liner

Commitiee

Hearing
Date

Status

LC

LT
Position

NAGU

NACO |Position

1B480 |Krist

Provide for
agreements
relating to public
building
commissions

Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs

2.9.11

General File

Monitor

X

Monitor

LB482 |Utter

Utter

Change provisions
governing industrial
disputes involving
municipal
corporations under
the Industrial
Relations Act

Business and Labor

2.7.11

Monitor

LB499 |Price

Governm
ent,
Military
and
Veterans
Affairs

Change provisions
relating to filing for
office, registering
to vote, and voting
under the Election
Act

Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs

2.2.11

General File with AM404

X

Monitor

LB504 |Campbell

Change motor fuel
tax rates

Revenue

2.10.11

Monitor

LB508 |Bloomfield

Authorize certain
residency
restrictions near
parks for sexual
predators

Judiciary

3.16.11

Support
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Status

LC

L
Pasition

NACO |Position

NALCU

LB513 iChristensen

" |Adopt the Escort

Services
Accountahility and
Permit Act

Judiciary

2.25.11

LB518 |Christensen

Change certain
penalty and
viclation provisions
of the Concealed
Handgun Permit
Act

Judiciary

2.23.11

LB519 |Pirsch

- |Change the pricrity

of liens for special
assessments

Revenue

2.17.11

Oppose

LB529 |(Carlson

Change provisions

- |relating to

conservation and
preservation
easements and the
Nebraska
Environment Trust

Natural Resources

2.3.11

Monitor

X

Support

LB530 |Council

Adopt the
Employee Credit
Privacy Act

Business and Labor

1.31.11

Monitor

X

LB536 [Wightman

Adopt the
Nebraska Uniform
Real Property
Transfer on Death

Act

Judiciary

2.17.11

Oppose
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Committee
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Date

Status

LC

L
Position

NACO

NACU
Position

LB538 |Karpisek

. |Change provisions
. |relating to the

" disposition of
|seized firearms

Judiciary

2.16.11

LB545 |[Pahls

i |Establish a copay
_|for medical services
provided at a
correctional facility

Judiciary

3.16.11

Support

LB546 |Gloor

Gloor

- |Change provisions
" relating to
adoption of the
{International

- {Residential Code

Urban Affairs

2.8.11

General File with
AM348; AM348

adopted; McGill AMB99
filed & adopted; Select

File with ER44; Krist
AM748 filed

LB564 |Fulton

Fulton

i |Change and
- |eliminate

provisions of the

| Industrial Relations
" |Act and the State

Employees

i [Collective
_|Bargaining Act

Business and Labor

2.7.11

Monitor
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LB565

Ashford

Require secure
storage of firearms
and notice of such
requirement by
retailers upon sale
and create the
offense of
improper storage
of a firearm

Judiciary

317.11

LB563

Coash

Require employers
to e-verify the

immigration status
of new employees

Judiciary

3.2.11

Monitor

LB573

Price

Autharize use of
rotating or flashing
amber lights on any
motor vehicle
operated by or for
a storm spotter

Transportation and
Telecommunications

2.15.11

General File with AM344

X

Support

1B584

Fulton

Exempt deployed
military personnel
from motor vehicle
registration fees

Transportation and
Telecommunications

211

Oppose

LB597

Pahls

Requii‘e
consolidation of
county offices

Government, Military

and Veterans Affairs

2.25.11

Oppose
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LB/LR |Sponsor Priority |One-Liner Commiitee Date Status LC |Posifion |INACQO Position
Provide for voter
registration on
election day and
require
identification to Government, Military
LB60S {Conrad vote and Veterans Affairs 22411 X X Oppose

Adopt the
Correctional Facility
Reimbursement Act

LB603 |Pirsch Judiciary 316,11 X X Oppose
Change certain lien
provisions relating
10 homeowner's

associations and
condominiums Banking, Commerce and
LB613 |Pirsch Insurance 2.22.11 X X
Change provisions
relating to
homeowners'
association and
condominium
association liens Banking, Commerce and
LB614 |(Pirsch Insurance 2.22.11 X X




Legislative Bill of Interest Report
Kissel/ES Associates

Olimgada | oo no o

3/23/11 at 3:06 PM Page 27 of 31

LB/LR |Sponsor

Priority

One-Liner

HESVE T )
CITCTTC T COTICOS

Committee

£y
[Lwy |

Hexhivg
Date

Status
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LB623 |Lautenbaugh

Change effect of
Industrial Relation
Act petitions and
provide provisions
for counties
encompassing a
city of the
metropolitan class

Business and Labor

2.7.11

Monitor

LB628 [Cook

Speaker

Authorize certain
political
subdivisions to
donate certain
motor vehicles to
charitable
organizations

Government, Military

and Veterans Affairs

21111

General File

Monitor

LB631 |Cook

Provide for a
permanent early
voting request list

Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs

2.24.11

LB638 |Karpisek

Provide restrictions
relating to sale of
county records for
commercial
purposes

Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs

Karpisek MO10
Withdraw bill filed;
MO10 prevailed; Bill
withdrawn

Support

LB643 {fautenbaugh

Provide additional
public records that
may be withheld

Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs

3.10.11

Monitor
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Change the fee for
obtaining a
handgun certificate
LB658 |Karpisek Judiciary 2.23.11 X X

Repeal the
industrial Relations
Act and the State
Employees
Collective
Bargaining Act and
prohibit public
collective
bargaining and
work stoppage
LB664 [Nelson Nelson Business and Labor 2.7.11 X X Monitor

Change provisions
relating to sealing
of juvenile court
records

LB669 |Flood Speaker Judiciary 2.24.11 X X

Authorize court-
ordered conditions
for dispositions
under the Nebraska
Juvenile Code

LB670 |Flood Flood Judiciary 2.24.11 X [!Monitor (X

Provide an
exemption from
the documentary
LB672 |Flood stamp tax Reventue 2.3.11 X X Oppose
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NACO

NATCO
Position

1B674 Haar

g Prohibit or restrict
! [certain electronic
- {monitoring of

employees by

- jemployers

Business and Labor

3.7.11

Monitor

Monitor

LB676 Lathrop

Change provisions

f relating to

' lemergency

| |protective custody

_{under the Nebraska

Mental Health

* |Commitment Act

Judiciary

2.17.11

Monitor

X

LB681 |Karpisek

Provide for

" |distribution of a

“ portion of keno tax
: proceeds for

' [thoroughbred

- |horseracing purses

General Affairs

2.7.11

Monitor

LB685 |Schilz

Change provisions
of the Nebraska
Visitors

. |Development Act

relating to the use
of funds and the
members of

: lcommittees

Government, Military
and Veterans Affairs

3.9.11

Schilz AM31 filed

Oppose

Monitor
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LB/LR |Sponsor Priority [One-Liner Committee Date Status LC |Position |NACO |Position
Require certain law
enforcement
officers and

firefighters to work
until age fifty-five
to receive full
benefits and
prohibit elective
officers from
receiving
retirement benefits
Nebraska Retirement
1B688 Smith Systems 2.15.11 . X {Monitor X Onppose

Constitutional
amendment to
authorize county
manager form of
county government|Government, Military
LR2CA |Harms and Veterans Affairs 2.25.11 X X Neutral
Consitutional
amendment to
authorize pledge of
state sales and use
taxes for highway |Transportation and
LR3cA |Fischer bonds Telecommunications 2.1.11 X X Monitor

Consitutional
amendment to
change agricultural
and horticuttural
LROCA |Schilz land valuation Revenue 3.3.11 X X Neutral
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LC
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NACO

NACU |
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LR2SCA

Nelson

Constitutional
amendment to
prchibit
government from
engaging in
collective
bargaining

Business and Labor

2.7.11

Monitor
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Proposed text

as prepared by the County Attorney:

Definitions, 2.030 Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems/Turbines (CWECS)
are defined as: a commercial grade wind energy conversion system (WECS) of over 100
Kilowatt (KW) plate rated capacity and intended to be used primarily to provide off-site
power.

Article 4, AG Agriculture
4.007 Permitted Special Permit
dd) Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems/Turbines

Article 13, Special Permits: '
A Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System(s) (CWECS) may be allowed in the AG
District by Special Permit under the conditions listed below.

1. Each CWECS machine shall be no less than 1,000 feet from any property line of a
dwelling unit not associated with 'the project.

2. The distance from all external boundary lot lines and/or right-of-way lines of the special
permit to any tower support base of the CWECS shall be equal to the height of the tower
plus the rotor radius. '

3. Each CWECS machine, including all equipment, shall have a sound emission rating of
no more than 35 dBA. Noise levels caused from the CWECS machine(s) shall not exceed
35dBA at the property line of any dwellings within a one mile radius of a CWECS machine.
A noise study, incorporating both A and C weighted noise impacts on property within one
mile may be required. Noise rating shall conform {o International Electrotechnical
Commission (IEC) standards unless otherwise directed by a government agency.

4. Machines shall meet all FAA requirements, including but not limited to lighting and radar
interference issues. Strobe lighting shall be avoided if alternative lighting is allowed. Color
and finish shall be white, gray or another non-obtrusive, non reflective finish.

5. All applicable electrical, building, utility tie-in codes and other government regulations
shall apply.

6. The distance from any tower base of a CWECS to any tower support base of another
CWECS under other ownership shall be spaced a minimum of five (5) rotor diameters
distance figured by the size of the largest rotor.

7. Each CWECS shall have a decommissioning plan outlining the means, procedure and
cost of removing the machine(s) and all related supporting infrastructure and a bond or
equivalent enforceable resource to guarantee removal and restoration upon
discontinuance, decommissioning or abandonment.

8. Said CWECS shall meet all Federal, State and local rules and reguiétions.
The Planning Commission may arhend, modify or adjust any condition of this special

permit or impose additional conditions as appropriate to preserve or promote the pubiic
health, safety and general welfare.




APPEAL

of Planning Commission action
to County Board

Today's Date (this form must be received by the Planning Dept. within 14 day

To: Planning Department
Jean Preister
555 S. 10th 5t, Ste. 213
Lincoln NE 68508
402-441-6365
jpreister@lincoln.ne.gov

Dear Clerk:

| am submitting this letter of appeal to Resolution No.

, approving Special Permit No.

Planning Commission on (Date)

D

s of the action by the Planning Commissior

, adopted by the Lincoln-Lancaster County

on property

generally located at

Please advise me of the hearing date before the County Board.

Signature of person requesting appeal:

Printed Name

Address

Street City Stafe ZIP

Phone Number

Email

prAFY

Access this form on the web: hup:.'fwww.IincuIn.ne.govfcilyiplan.’databankfapfonnsicoappeal.pdf
Updated: January 13, 2011

s
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13.002. Procedures. An application and copies of the plot plan drawn to an accurate

scale and showing all pertinent information shall be filed in writing with the Planning
Department. Before the issuance of any special permit of any of the above buildings or uses,
the County Board shall refer the proposed application fo the Planning Commission. the
Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing and
iner shall consider the effect of such proposed building or uses upon the character of the
neighborhood, traffic conditions, public utility facilities, the Comprehensive Plan and other

matters relating to the public heaith, safety and general welfare.
shaltbetakerotrany app}iuation fora piupuSGd btitding-orusea
tgntes hag-been filed-with the Cudlli"y' Clerk—. AI’IM
action by the Planning Commission may be appealed to the County Board. An existing use of
the type listed above lawfully established on the effective date of this resolution shall be

deemed to have received special permit as herein required and shall be provided with such a
permit by the Building Inspector upon request and shall not be a nonconforming use; provided,

however, that such an existing use shall require a sped!
relocation. {Resolution R-07-0016, March 13, 2007)

b o £ .4 ol |
poveTererrong Ul T T

o ora PN S Y ]| VPR H .
= IS TERRITL OT THe T ICHTTTE NG OIS SIUNT

al permit for enlargement, extension or

13.003. Special Permit Administrative Amendments.  After the County-Beard has

approved a special permit, including the specific plot plan under Article 13, the Planning

Director is authorized to approve amendments to the special permit provided:
a) A-request for an administrative amendment is filled with the Planning Director

accompanied by a piot plan drawn to an accurate scale and showing all pertinent information

relating to the requested amendment; A
b) No buildings or uses are permitted within the yards required by Article 13;

~ ¢) The intent of the County Board in preserving the public health, safety and general
welfare will still be carried out. (Resolution R-07-0016, March 13, 2007)

13.018_ Appeal of Planning Commission Action.

(a) Anv aggrieved person, or any person or group officially designated to participate

in the administration of this title may appeal any action of the Planning Commission_to the

County Board by filing notice of appeal with the County Clerk within fourteen days following the

action of the Planning Commission.

() Upon receipt of the appeal by the County Board, the board shall hold a public hearing

thereon within thirty days from the date of appeal. Notice of the public hearing shall be given as provided

in Article 22 Section 22.005 hereafter.

©) in exercising its appellate jurisdiction. the action appealed from shall be deemed

advisory and the County Board may. after public hearing, in conformity with the provisions of

this Articie. make such decision as ought to be made.

19.009. In exercising the above mentioned jurisdiction, such Board may, in conformity with the provisions

of this {"eso_lutlon, reverse or affirm, wholly or partially, or may modify the order, requirement, decision, or
determination appealcd from and may make such decisions recommendation as ought to be made. In cc;ns'd ing all
appeals under this r_esolution, the Board shail, before making any finding in a specific case, first detemﬁnelt}far‘znﬂlg ;
p}’oposecli change will not constitute a change in the District Map and will not impair an adc;quate supply of light : d
air to adj‘acent property, or increase the congestion in public streets, or increase the public danger of ﬁr); and1 ; fe oy
or mz_itenally dmsh or impair established property values within the surrounding area, or in any other res cs at >
impair the public health, safety, comfort, morals and welfare of Lancaster County. Ever’y change decided ugorcz
chanperecommended i i i s
o ren by the Board shaIl‘be accomp'amed bya ‘wr_ltten finding of fact based on sworn: testimony and
ence, specifying the reason for granting or denying the variation. Decisions of the Roard of Zoning App 1
shall be final uniess appealed to the County Board pursuant to Section 19.011. ) =

19.011.

{a) Anv aggrieve i
oo d person. or any person or group officiallv designated to participate in the administration of

this title 1 i
may appeal any action of the Board of Zonine Appeals to the County Board by filing notice of appeal with

h .
e County Clerk within fourteen (14) days following the action of the Board of Zonine Appeals
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Board of Commissioners

Lancaster County, Nebraska

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Langaster Courity, Nebraaka {the
County) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the County's
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are fhe

responsibility of the County’s mranagement.  Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these
fimanecial statements based on eur audit.

We conducted our gudit in accmdame With auds’{mg standards g@neraléy accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonatile assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An zudit includes examining, on a test

. ‘basis, evidence supporting the amounis and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit

also includes assessing the accounting prinziples used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasorable basis for our opiniohs.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above gresent fairly, in all material respects, -
the respective financial position of the. governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate ramaining fund information of the County as of June 30, 2010, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended

-in conformity with accounting principtes generally accepted in the United States of America.

T EERNETIRMAT,

in accordance with G@vemmenf Audiiting - Standards, we have also issued our repott datzd
January 28 2011, on our consideration of the Countys mniernal control over financial reperting
and en our tests of #s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coritracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to deseribe the scope of our
testing of internal conirol over financial reporting and compiignce angd the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over finangial reporting or on sompliance.
That report is an imtegral part of an audit performed in aceordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The County has not presented Management's Discussion and Analysis that acrounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of &merica has determined is necessary 1o
supplement, although not required to be part of, the financial statements.

-1 -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON i
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (Continued)

The budgetary informationn on pages 47 through 50 is not a reguired part of the financial
statements bui is supplemental information reguired by accounting principles ‘generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the metheds of measurement and
presentation of the required supplemental information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no ppinien on .

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Courty's financial statements. The accompanying supplemental
information on pages 51 through 72 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
reguired part of the financial statements. The accompanying Scheduie of Expenditures of
Federal Awards on pages 51 through 53 is presented for purposes of addifional analysis as
required by U.8. Ofice of-Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audils of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and s also not a required part of the finaneial
statements of the County. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (pages 51 through
£33} and Combining Siatements — Governmental and Proprietary Funds (pages 54 through 82)
have been subiected to the auditing precedures applied in the audit of the fimancial statements
and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in refation to the financial staterments
taken as a whole. The Statements of Accountability {pages 63 through 72) have not been
s&bjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the fimancial statements, and,
accordingly, we express no opiniorn on them.

gmwﬁm@ Ve

Otnzha, Mebraska
January 26, 2011

-D.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
- STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2010

Governmental
ASSETS Activities
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 25,176,218
Certificates of Deposit 10,396,332
investments ' 3,840,901
Interest Receivable i 45,882
Due From Other Governmental Agencies 3,302,931
Patient and Insurance Receivabie
Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of $201,377 111,638
Taxes Receivable 21,347,743
Total Cusrent Asssts 64,221,645
CAPITAL ASSETS
Non-depreciable Capital Assats
Land : 10,316,110
Total Non-depreciable Capital Assets 10,316,110
~Depreciable Capital Assets 163,739,645
Less Accumulated Depreciation (60,866,639}
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 102,873,006
Total Capital Asséts 113,189,116
OTHER ASSETS :
Debt Issuance Costs, Net of Accumulated Amortization 26,949
$ 177,437,710
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 5,283,830
Accrued interest Payable 11,833
Claims Liability 1,098,437
Accrued Salaries 2,067,162
Due io Other Govemmental Agencies 125,000
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 320,000
- Current Portion of Capital Lease Obligations 15,331
~ Total Current Liabilities 8,919,593
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Accrued Compensated Absences 6,975,655
Bonds Payable, Less Current Portion 1,396,056
Capital Lease Obligations, Less Current Portion 15,857
Total Long-Term Liabitities 8,387,568
Total Liabilities 17,307,161
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 111,441,872
Restricted For Debt Service 2,962 967
Unrestricted 45725710
Total Net Assets 160,130,548
$ 177,437,710

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of these statements

_5-




FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
General Government
Comemurity Devetopment
Pubfic Works

Public Health and Human Services

Culture and Recreation
Debt Service Interest
Total Functions/Programs

GENERAL REVENUES
Taxes :
Property Tax
Moter Vehicle Tax
Inheritance Tax
Homestead Exemption
" In-fieu-of Tax
Carline/Atline Tax .
Insurance Tax
MV Prorate Tax
Lodging Tax
- Other i
State Aid to Counties
Miscellanecus
Intergovernmental
Invesiment income
Transfers
Total General Revenues

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF THE YEAR, AS PREVIQUSLY STATED

PRIOR PERIOD -ADJUSTMENT

LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Expenses

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and Change
in Net Assets

Primary Government

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and
Contributions

Governmental Activities

90,207 636
1,814,371
16,098,376
28,898,926
1,291,784
584 547

$

27,336,121
10,884,151
21,579,371
24,919
700,694

3§ 2 546,655
1,834,676

$ (60,324,860)
(1,614,371)
(5,214,225}
(5,484,879}
(1,266,865)
115,747

138,696,040

60,525,258

8 4,381,331

(73,789,453)

MNET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF THE YEAR, AS RESTATED

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

The accempanying noies o financial
statements are an iniegral part of these statements
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47,351,439
6,485,361
4,644,623
1,208,333
1513373

326,985
341,101
143,947
1,980,960

705,508
4,681,601
228478
732,832
1,803,738

62,848,280

(3.941,173)
162,299,320

1,772,402

164,071,722

§ 160,130,549
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LANCASTER GOUNTY, NEBRASKA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 36,2010

Major Governmental Funds

Bridge and Road

Lancaster Manor

Total Governmental

General Fund Speclal Fund Other Governmental
ASSETS (011) {021} {061} Funds Funds
Cash and Cash Equivalents .8 . 2,310,170 % 2,787,653 1,488,647 $ 12,660,900 5 19,247,349
Cerfificates of Deposi 8,580,353 1,543,750 - 123,057 10,247,160
investments 3,139,597 1 338,334 - 164,076 3,642,007
Due From Other Governmenial Agencies 1,627,147 44,443 - 1,631,342 3,302,932
Interest Raceivable 34,154 6,879 - 2,148 43,179
Patient and Insurance Receivables, Net of .
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of $201,377 - - - 111,638 111,638
. Taxes Receivable 19,592,310 - - 1,755,433 21,347,743
$ ‘35,283,731 $ - 4,721,059 . 1,488,817 $. 16,448,601 $ 57,942,008
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES .
Accounts Payable $ 23580 % 778,867 825,841 $ 1,289,024 % 5,251,842
Accrued Salaries . 1,520,896 74,890 - 464,480 2,060,066
Due To Other Governmental Agencies - - - 125,000 125,000
Deferred Revenue 1,609,170 - - 148,764 1,757,934
Total Liabilltles 5,488,076 B53,557 825,941 2,027,268 9,194,842
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES N - - - -
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for Debt Servica - - - 2,862,967 2,962,967
Reserved for Encumbrances 268,020 1,762,712 - 244719 2,275,451
Unreserved 28,527,635 2,104,790 662,676 11,213,647 43,508,748
Total Fund Balance 29,795,655 3,867,502 . G52 676, 14,421,333 48,747,166
5 35,283,731 $ 4,721,059 1,488,817 % 16,448,601 § 57,942,008

The accompanylng notes to financial

statements are an Integral part of these statements

F,



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 200 :

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds - $ 48,747,166

Amounts reported in the govemrental aclivities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets are reported at historical cost, net of accumuiated depreciation, ) .
on the statement o_f net assets, including internal service funds. ) 113,189,116

Debt issuance costs are reporied at historical cost, net of accumulated amortization,
on the statement of net assets, including internal service funds. ’ 26,949

Internal service funds are used by the County i charge the cost of ceriain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabiliies of the internal service funds are included
in the govemmental activities in the staternent of net assets. 5,144,116

Property tax revenues, not collected within 60 days of the fiscal year end are not ) P
financial resources and, therefore, not reported as revenues in the governmental funds. : 1,757,934

The issuance of bonds payable, net of bond discounts provides current financial resources to govemmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. (1,716,056)

The following expenses reported in the statement of activifies do not tequire the use af
- current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

the governmental furds:

"Capital lease obligations ‘ . (31,188)

Accrued compensated absences ’ . (6,975,655)
Accrued interest payable . B (11.833)

Net Assets - Governmental Activifies . $ 160,130,549

The accompanying noies to financial
statements are an integral part of these staternents
-B-



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES

Taxes
Charges for Services
Federat Recelpts
State Revenues
Medicaid/Medicare/MRCG Reimbursements
License, Faes and Rental Income
Interast Incame
Intergovernmental
Other

Total Reyenues

EXPENDITURES
General Governmant
Public Safety - Law Enforcement
Community Developmaent
Pubtic Works
Pubifc Health and Human Services
GCulture and Recreation
Debt Service
Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)} OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING S0URCES (USES)

Debt Paymenls

Gain on Sale of Capltal Assets

Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfars Qut

Trangfers In - Public Building Commission

Transfers Out - City of Lincolh

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY STATED
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED

FUND BAELANCE - END OF YEAR

Malor Governmental Funds

GOVERNMENTAL FUNRS
Year Ended June 30, 2610

The accompanying hotes to financial

- staternants are an integral part of thesa statements.
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Bridge and Special Lancaster Manor i
General Fund Road Fund Fund Other Governmental  Total Governmental
{011) {021} {061) Funds Funds
57,873,703 1,829 I - 6,135,068 % 64,610,590
13,068,639 820,722 4,383,113 4,385,412 19,657,886
2,546 655 - - 1,834,678 4,381,331
2,675,840 - . - 9,683,080 12,358,930
- - 12,628,582 2,779,748 15,408,330°
84 111 - 87,500 1,438,170 1,569,781
615,214 33,602 - 70,294 719,107
754,162 t - - 174,317 928,479
1,352,796 7,946 - 834,275 2,295,017
78,941,120 864,099 ~ 14,090,185 27,438,037 121,330,451
76,958,561 - - 245,868 17,205,827
- - - 1,614,371 1,614,371
- 6,684,458 - 11,802,634 18,487,092
- - 15,861,731 12,633,262 28,494 933
' - - - 1,291,784 1,291,784
- : - ) - 74,724 74,724
76,959,661 5,684,458 15,861,731 27 662,741 127,168,491
1,084,559 (5.520,359) (1,771,538} (227,704) (5,838,040)
(14,823) - - (610,000} {624,823)
€0 - - - &0
41,278 6,027,589 506,000 391,713 5,960,550
(6,918,564) - - (41,986) {6,960,550)
1,803,738 - - - 1,803,738
L. . " - (507,107} (507,107)
(5,088,311) 5,027 559 500,000 (767,380} 671,868
- (3,108,752) 207,200 {1,271,538) (995.b84) (6,166,172)
34,518,815 3,660,302 1,934,212 15,572,411 55,685,740
(1,616,408) - - {155,894) (1,772,402}
32,802,407 3,660,302 1,034,212 15,416,417 53,813,338
29,795,855 3,867,502 662,676 $ 14,421,333 $ 48,747,166



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Gavermnmental Funds
~ Amounts reported in the governmental activities in the statement of activifies are different because:

Capital outiays are reported as expenditures in the fund financial statements. Howaver, they are presented
as assets in the siatement of aclivities and depreciated over their estimated economic lives:

Capital outlays
Loss on sale of capital asseis
Current year depreciation expense for total capital assets

Govemmental funds recognize property tax revenues as revenues when received within 60 days of the end

© ofthe fiscal year. However, in the statement of acfivifies, properiy tax revenues are recognized based
an the fotal taxes levied. This amount of propetty tax revenues is due to the County but not collecied
within 60 days of the fiscal year. ’

Debt payments are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term iiabilities-
in the statement of net assets:

Bend paymenis
Capital lease payments

'Governmenta[ funds reporf the effect on issuance costs, ‘premiums, a_nd discounts when debt is ficst
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amériized in the statement of activities.

Certain iterns reported in the statements of activities do not require the use of current financial rescurces
and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the. govemmental funds:

Accrued compensated absences
Accrued interest expense -

internal service funds are used by the County to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds.
The aclivities of the internal setvice funds are inciuded in the governmental activities in the statement of
activities, net'of depreciation expense and bond payments which are included above.

Change in Net Assets - Governmental Funds

The accompanying notes i financial
statements are an integral part of these staternenis
-8-

$ (5,166,172}

6,439,067
(364,014)
(4,057,905)

(14.469)

610,000

14,823

(7,127)

(657,836)
4,25¢

: (741,702)

$ {3,941,173)



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2010

Total
internal Service
.ASSETS _ Funds
CURRENT ASSETS _
Cash and Cash Equivalents % 5,928,869
Certificates of Deposit 149,171 .

Investments 198,894
Interest Receivable ) 2,703
Total Current Assets ) 6,279,637
$ 6,279,637

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES -

" Accounts Payable N ' s . . $ - 731,989
Claims Liability . ’ . 1,006,437
Accrued Salaries ) : T : . ‘ 7,095

Total Current Liabilities - . : ' ' ’ - 1,135,521

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES _

Accrued Compensated Absences ; 33,007
Total Long-Term Liabilities ‘ 33,007
Total Liabilities 1,168,528
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -

NET ASSETS . -

"Unrestricted . ' : 5,111,109

Totai Net Assets _ 5,111,109
$ 6,279,637

The accompanying notes to financial
staternents are an integral part of these statements
-g-



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Other
Totat Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance
Contraciual
Wages and Benefits
Other '
Rental
Supplies
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss
' NON-OPERATING RE\ZE':N-UES_ -
Interest on Investrnents
Total Non-Operating Revenues
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

. NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR -

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an iniegral part of these statement,

'PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

-10-

. Total
Internal Service
Funds

11,528,329
92,032

11,621,361

k]

11,119,399
1,054,912
129,345
67,450
4,382
1,307

12,376,795

(755,434)

13,725

13,725
(741,709)

5,852,818

5,111,109




LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from User Charges
Payments for Employee Indemnity
Payments for Claims/Insurance
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sale of Investments '
" Purchase of Investments
Interest Received
Net Cash Provided By Investing Aclivities

Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING QF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH -
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES .
" . Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in
Operating Activities:
" Decrease In Current Assets: -
Due From Other Governmental Agencies
Increase (Decrease) In Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Claims Liability
Accrued Salaries )
Accrued Compensated Absences
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

The accompanying notes to financial

statements are an integral part of these statements

11 -

Total
Internal Service
Funds

$ 12,105,537
(1,248,856)
(10,975,451)

(118,770}

1,502,000
(348,065)
25,032

1,178,967
1,060,197

4,868,672

- $ 5,928,869

$ (755,434

944,890

3,547

(320,313)
3,806
4734

$ (118,770)




LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2010

Pension Trust

ASSETS Fund Agency Funds
Investments 0§ - $ -
$ - $ -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES _ _
Due to Governmental Agencies $ - $ -

NET ASSETS
Held In Trust For Pension Benefits : . 5,504,110 - -

$ 5504,110 . % -

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of these statements
" -12-



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2010

ADDITIONS
Coniributions:
Employer
Employee
Forfeitures
Rollover
Milizary Catch-Up

Investment Earnings: )
Net Increase in Fair Vaiue of Investments
Bividends

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments
Forfeitures
Plan expenses
Total Deductions .

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS - END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of these statements
' -13-

Pension Trust Fund

$ 3,054,753

2,484,908
672,613
353,428

22140

6,587,842

6,385,955
688,377

13,662,174

7,672,151
485,073
840

8,158,064

5,504,110

78,319,484

$ 81,823,594




LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of the significant accounting policies. of Lancaster County, Nebraska (the
County), is presented to assist in understanding the County’'s financial statements. The
financial statements and notes are representations of the County’s management who are
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform o accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been consistently
applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Organization and Principal Activity

The County is a governmental entity established by the laws of the State of Nebraska. The
County is a political subdivision of the State of Nebraska and is governed by a five member
Board of Commissioners elected by the citizens of Lancaster County, Nebraska. The
County’s responsibilities include general social welfare; operation of a County health center;
corrections; youth center; maintenance of streets and highways not within any incorporated
city, village, or sanitary and improvement district; legal court-related activities; licensing,
recording, and assessment of real property; tax collection for all Nebraska pubhc entifies
within the County conducting elections; and law enforcement. .

Repor ng Eﬁtuy

The County follows the standards promuigated by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entify, and GASB Statement No.
39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, that define the
financial reporting entity as the one consisting of (a) the primary government, (b)

- -organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary

- government are such that exclusion would cause the reportmg entity’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. :

The accomp_anying financial statements include the transactions of the County’s primary
government, component units, and blended component units, as discussed below.

Primary Government
The primary governme‘nt has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate,

and is fiscally independent of other governments. The primary government of the
County consists of all the organizations that comprise the iegal entity.

-14 -



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Component Units

Component units are legaily separate organizations for which the County is financially
accountable and/or for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
County are such that exclusion would cause the financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. The County is considered to be financially accountable for an organization
when either:

1. The County appoints a voting majority of the organization governing body and can
impose its will on that organization or

2. There is a potential for the orgamzatlon to provide specific financial benefit to, or |
lmpose specific financial burden on the County.

, Blended Component Unit

Despite being legally separate, component units that are so intertwined with the primary
government that they are, in substance, the same as the primary government are
reported as part of the pmuaf"y' government. The criteria for this determination are:

1. The component unit's governing body is subs’canﬁaily the same as the governing
-body of the primary government, and

2. The component unit provides services entirely or almost entirely to the primary
government or otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the primary
government by providing services that the primary government would have
provided if they were not provided by the component unit.

Based on the criteria above, the County. has not identified any component units.
“Joint Ventures
- The County has entered info three (3) muiti-governmental arrangements creating three
(3) entities that are govermned by represenfatives from each of the participating
governments. These entities are considered o be joint ventures. The County does not

have an ongoing financial interest (equity interest}; therefore, these joint ventures are not
included in the financial statements of the County.

- 15 -



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30? 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Joirnt Ventures (Continued)
Lincoln-Lancaster County Public Building Commission

In 1990, the City of Lincoln, Nebraska (the City} and the County, pursuant to State
Statute, activated a separate governmental entity designated as the Lincoln-Lancaster
County Public Building Commission {the Commission). The purpose of this joint venture
is to design, acquire, construct, maintain, operate, improve, remodel, remove and
reconstruct, so long as its corporate existence continues, public buildings, structures, or
facilities for uss jointly by the City and the County. The City and the County each
appoint two members to the five-member Commission, with the fifth member being
appointed by the other four members. All property held or acquired by the Commission

~ is held or acquired in the name of the City and the County for use by the Commission in
its corporate capacity. The Commission's costs of operation and debt service are
funded through rental payments made by the City and the County based upon their
‘proportionate occupancy of such buildings to the extent not covered by a maximum .

* property tax levy of 1.7 cents for each $100 of actual valuation of taxable property in the-
County.

As of June 30, 2010, the Commission had bonds outstanding of $44,110,664 attributable
to several bond issues. Proceeds from the bonds have been utilized by the Commission
to acguire, construct, and/or renovate certain buildings occupied by the City and the
County. The County's proportionate share of such buildings is recorded as capltal
assets on the books of the County. .

Separate audited financial statements of the Commission may be bbtained at the
Lincoln-Lancasier County Public Building Commission, 920 "0" Sireet, Room 203,
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508. ‘

Lancaster County FéirgrOunds Joint Public Agency

The Lancaster County Fairgrounds Joint Public Agency (the Agency) was established to

acquire land and construct capital improvements thereon for the establishment and

expansion of the Lancaster County Fairgrounds. The Agency is not accumulating

significant financial resources and is not experiencing fiscal stress that could cause an

additional financial benefit or burden to the County. = The Board consists of five -

representatives, of whom the Lancaster County Agricultural Society (the Society)
- appoints three and the County appoints two.

Separate audited financial statements of the Agency, which include the financial

statemenis of the Agency, may be obtained from the Lancastér County Agricultural
Society, 4100 North 84" Street, Lincoin, Nebraska 68508.

-16 -



‘ LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

- NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Joint Ventures (Continued)
Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public Agency

The Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public Agency (the JPA) was created
pursuant to the Joint Public Agency Act and a Joint Pubiic Agency Agreement dated
September 9, 2008 between the County and the City. The purpose of this joint venture is to
finance the construction, equip and furnish new correctional facilities on land owned by the
County and leased to the JPA pursuant to a Site Lease dated February 5, 2009 between the
JPA and the County. The JPA will own the correctional facilities until the bonds are no
longer outstanding, at which time the JPA will transfer ownership to the County. The JPA is
governed by a four-member board consisting of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Lancaster
County Board of Commissioners, the Mayor of Lincoin, and the Chair of the Lincoln City
Council.

The JF'A has two property tax levies. One levied on the assessed value of the County and
the -other levied on the assessed value of the City. The levy for the county portion was
$.0107 per $100 of valuation and the levy for the city portion was $.0194 for a combined

levy of $.0301. As of June 30, 2010, the JPA had bcnds outstanding of $62,992,964

attributable to one bond issuance. .

Separate audited financial statements of the JPA may be obtained from the Lancasier
County Budget Office, 555 South 10™ Street, Suite 110, Lincoln, NE 68508,

Basis of Presentation
Basic ananclal Statements

The basm i nanmal statements of the County lnclude the government-wnde and the fund

- financial statements. Prior o implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial -
Statements - and Management's Discussion. and Analysis - for Slate and Local
Governments, the financial statements emphasized fund types and account groups. In the
GASB Staternent No. 34 reporting model, the focus is on the County as a whole in the
government-wide financial staiements, while reporting additional and detailed information
about the County’s major governmental funds in the fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statemenis

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and statement of
activities) report information on all the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component unit. Governmental activities are normally supporied by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately
from the County for which the primary government is financially accountable.

-17 -



7 LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30,2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation {Confinued)
Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a

given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those

that are clearly ideniifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
- inciude charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from

goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment. Taxes and other

items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even_though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into
funds, each of which is-considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is
accounted for by providing a separaie set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its
assets, labilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/iexpenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary

" categories. The County considers its primary operating fund fo be a major fund as well
as those governmental funds that meet the following criteria: total assets, liabilities,
revenues, or expenditures of that individual governmental fund are at least 10 percent of
the corresponding total for all governmental funds combined. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate celumns in-the fund financial statements
as apphcable :

Major fund reporting reduirements do not apply-to internal service funds. The combined
totals for all internal service funds are reported separately in a single column on the face
of the proprietary fund financial statements.
The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:
Governmenial Funds
" General Fund
The General Fﬁnd is used fo account for all activities of the County not inciuded in
other specified funds. The General Fund accounts for the normal recurring activities of

"~ the County (general government, health services, community services, etc.). These -
aciivities are funded primarily by tax revenues.

18-



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA ‘
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Special Revenue Funds
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for proceeds of the specific revenue
sources (other than special assessments or major capital projects) that are legally
restricied to expenditures for specified purposes or designated to finance- particular
functions or activities of the County. :
Proprietary Funds
.internal Service Funds
Intemal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the
County or to other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis.
Fi_duciary Fund-_Types

Pension Trust Funds

. Pension Trust Funds are used io report resources that are reguired to be held in trust
for the members and beneficiaries of defined contribution plans.
Agency F‘ﬁnds:

Agency Funds are used to report resources heid by the County in a purely custodial
capacity. Agency Funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary investment, and
remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other
governments. '

- The County reports the fo]low'ing major governmental funds:
General Fund — The General Fund is the County’s main operating fund. It accounts for
all governmental financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. _
Bridge and Special Road Fund — The Bridge and Special Road Fund houses the
County's engineering department and is responsible for the accounting and oversight of

infrastructure repairs.

Lancaster Manor Fund — The Lancaster Manor Fund is the County’s retirement home.
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LANCASTER COUNTY NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Measurement FocusIBésis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.

Governmentat fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
-measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accouniing. Revenuss are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current pericd or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period. For this period; the government considers revenues fo
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Proceeds from long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other

_ financing sources.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under

 accrual aCcounting However, expenditures, such as principal and -interest on general long-
term debt, and claims and judgments, are recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related liability is due.

The proprietary fund financial statements are accounted for using the economic resources

* measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
eamed and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardiess of the fiming of the related
cash ﬂows :

Operating income reported' it proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and
expensss related to the primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating
revenues for proprietary funds are charges to governmental agencies for services.
Principal operating expenées are the costs of sérvices and include administrative expenses
and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-
operating in the ﬁnanc;al statements.

Cash and Cash Equwalents

For financial statement purposes, all highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or iess, are-considered cash equivalents.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investmenis

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Invesiment Pools, investments are recorded at fair value. The
County’s investment policy allows investment in U.S. government obligations and short-term
interest bearing investments consisting of cerfificates of deposit and other income producing
securities. |t is also the County's policy to report interest earned but not received in a
separate account from the principal.

Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable are all considered collectible by management. Based on prior experience
with receipt of taxes, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided related to taxes
receivable. Tax amounts not received within sixty days are considered deferred revenue in
the governmentat fund financial statements.

Capital Assets 'and Depreciation

uapltal assets are those assets which have been acquired for ger‘eral government
purposes. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or replacement cost if actual
historical cost is not known. Contributed assets, including those from the federal
government, are recorded at estimated fair value on the date received. The County's
capitalization threshold for equipment, buildings, and infrastructure is $5,000.
Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, and culverts. DepreCIatlon is calculated using
the straight-line method with a mid- month conventlon

The, estimate‘d useful lives for capital assets are as foliows:' '

: , _ - Years
Land improvements N . 20-50
Buildings 25-50
Machinery and equ:pment 5-20
Vehicles . -8
infrastructure ' 20-50

The County determined historical infrastructure costs by reference to historical records or by
appraisal. Current cost is adiusied for the price change from the date of construction or
acquisition fo the current date. '
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

" NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Corﬁpensated Absences

it is the County's policy to permit employees to earn annual vacation and sick leave at
various rates during their periods of employment. In the event of termination, an employee
is reimbursed for accumulated vacation time up o a maximum carryover of 240 hours.
Employees do not receive payment of unused sick ieave upon termination of employment
except for retirement, death, or if the employee has 15 years of service and has in excess of
1,000 hours of exiended sick leave. ' :

Net Assets

invested in capital assets, net of related debt — This component of net assets consists of
capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and net of outstanding batances of any debts
used to finance those assets.

. Restricted net assets — This component of net assets may be used only fo finance specific
types of transactions. Restricted net assets represent the balance of restricted assets less
the outstanding balances of any liabilities that will be settled using the restricted assets. The
CGunt_y 5 restricted net assets amounted to $2 9\12,96? at June 30 2010.

Unrestricted net assets — This component of net assets does not meet the definition of either
net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted net assets.

Fund Balance

Governmenta] fund equity is classified as fund -balance. Fund balances can be reserved,
_unreserved-designated, and unreserved- undesngnated The portion of the fund balance that
has been committed for rdentfﬁed purposes is reserved fund balance. '

Property Taxes

Based on the valuation as of January 1, property taxes are levied by the County Board on or
before October 15 of each year for all political subdivisions in the County. Real estate and
personal property taxes are due December 31 of the year in which the property is appraised.
One-half of the taxes become delinquent April 1 and August 1 of the following year.

The County collects its own property taxes and those of certain other taxing entities.
Collections of taxes for others, pending distribution, are accounted for in agency funds.

Counties are permitied by the State Constitution to levy a tax up to $0.50 per $100 of
assessed valuation for general governmental services other than the payment of principal
and interest on bonded debt. They may levy taxes in addition to the $0.50 limitation upon a
vote of the people. The tax levy remained below the $0.50 limitation for 2010.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

| NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property Taxes (Continued)

Also, $0.05 of the $0.50 limit may only be levied to provide services offered jointly with
another government under an interiocal agreement. The County may share $0.15 of its levy
authority with rural fire districts' and other political subdivisions no longer having any levy
authority.

Additionaily, the legislature, as part of a property tax relief package, prohibited counties from
adopting a budget containing "restricted funds” which are greater than 2.5% of the prior year
budgeted restricted funds, plus the percentage change in valuation increase attributable to
new construction and.additions to buildings in excess of 2.5%. Restricted funds include

- property taxes, payments in-lieu-of taxes, and state aid less amounts budgeted for capital
improvements and bonded indebtedness.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments - =
" for the expendltures of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the apphcabie

o o s e v by rans n

appropriation, is employed in the governmental fund types.

At the end of each -budget period, unencumbered, unexpended appropriations lapse.

. Appropriations in the governmental fund types are charges for encumbrances when
commitments are made. Fund balances are reserved for outstanding encumbrances, which
serve as authorization for expenditures in the subsequent year. The reserve for
encumbrances amounted to $2,275,451 for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Income Taxes

The County qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under Section 115 of the Internai
Revenue Code. Accordmgly, no provision for income taxes is required.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The County follows the procedures described below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the County’s financial statements in accordance with the statutory requirements
of the Nebraska Budget Act. !

On or before August 1, the County Board of Commissicners prepares and transmits a
budget for the County showing the proiected requirements, outstanding warrants, operating
reserve, cash on hand at the close of the preceding fiscal year, projected revenue collected
from sources other than property tax and amounts-to be raised by property taxation.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continue&)

The budget is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. Encumbrances are also reflected
as expenditures for budgetary purposes. At least one public hearing must be held by the
County Board of Commissioners.

On or befare September 20 each vear, the County Board of Commissioners, after the action
of the State Board of Equalization and Assessment has been certified to the County Clerk,
the budget, as revised, is adopted and the amounts provided therein are appropriated.

internal Activities

When internal service funds are reported in the government-wide statements of activities,
only their residual balances are reported. Eliminations are made in the statement of
activities to remove the “doubling-up” effect on internal service fund activity. However, there .
. are situations in which an internal service fund may have revenues and expenses that
should not be considered internal. It happens when an internal service fund, for example,
has transactions with organizations outside the primary government. Accordingly, these are
not efiminated in the statement of activiies. Rather, the revenues and expenses are
reported in the general administrative function of the government. The County's-internal
service funds have transactions that are primarily with ouiside organizations and therefore,

no eliminations are required.
- Interfund Activity

interfund -activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers.
Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject

. to elimination upon consoclidation. Services provided, deemed to-be at market or near
- market rates, are treated as revenues arnd expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur
when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiling fund, and reduces ifs
related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers.

Transfers between governmental funds or between proprietary funds are netted as part of
the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disciosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reporied revenues and expenses.
Actual results couid vary from the estimates employed.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 26, 2011, which is the date
the financial statements were availabie 1o be issued.

NOTE B - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
Deposits

As of June 30, 2010, the carrying amount, which approximates fair value, of the County's
investments was $3,840,901. The invesiments consisted of Federal Home Loan Bank
Notes. These securilies are held in the County’s name. .

The Public Funds Depasit Security Act, State Statute Sections 77-2386 to 77-23,106,
require banks either to give bands or to pledge government securities (types of which
are spetifically identified in the Statutes) to the County Treasurer in the amount of the
Countys deposﬁs ' o

The Statutes allow pledged securities 10 be reduced by the amount of the deposits
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurarice Corporation (FDIC). :

The County has pocled the cash resources of the various funds for invesiment
purposes. Each fund's portion of total cash and investments is summarized by fund type
on. the combining balance sheets. Interest earned on pooled funds, except for interest
earned on the pension frust, is credited to the County General Fund in accordance with
Nebraska State Statute Section 77-2315 R.R. S 1943.

At June 30, 2010, the Countys cash deposits or certificates of depoélt in excess of the
$250,000 FDIC limits, are covered .by collateral held in a Federal Reserve pledge
account or by an agent-for the County and thus no custodial risk exists.

Cash and investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 2010:

Cash and Investments - Carrying Fair Value

Cash and investments owned by the County $ 39,413,451 $  39413,451

Cash and invesiments held as agency funds by

the County , 81,823,694 81,823,594

Total cash and investmentis owned and held in

trust by the County $ 121,237,045 $ 121,237,045
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE B - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Investments

For an investment, cusiodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the County will not be ablé to recover the value of its investment securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. None of the underlying securities for the
County's investments at June 30, 2010 are subject to custodial credit risk, as they are
held in an account in the County's name, and by an agent who is not the counterparty to
the investment transactions. ‘

Nebraska State Statute Section 77-2315 authorizes the County Treasurer, with the
consent of the County Board, to invest in U.S. Government bonds, bonds and
debentures issued either singularly or coliectively by any of the twelve federal land
banks, the twelve intermediate credit banks, or the thirteen banks for cooperatives under
the supervision of the Farm Credit Administration, United States Treasury notes, bills or
ceriificates of indebiedness maturing within two years from the date of purchase, or in
ceriificates of deposrc

- The County’s aliocation of cash and investments is as follows:

investrnent Type Maturities Fair Value

Cash and Cash Equivalents N/A $ 25,176,218

Certificates of Deposit 10/21/09 — 6/18/11 10,396,331

Federal Loan Discount Notes 8/24/09 — 2/24/12 : 3,840,901
Total ' , ' $ 39,413,450

interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
_value of an investment. In accordance with State law and its investment policy, the
County manages its expasure to declines in fair values by changes in interest rates by
limiting all investments to maturities of two years or less. The current weighted average
maturity of the County's investment portfolio is less than three months.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. County policy addresses credit risk by requiring ownership in federal
securities for all invesiments greater than the $250,000 FDIC insured amount. The
external investment funds are comprised of Nebraska Public Agency Trust (NPAIT) and
Short-Term Federal investment Trust (STFIT). NPAIT and STFIT invest in only the
highest quality securities, including U.S. Govemment sponsored agencies, and
guaranteed student loans.
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ELANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NCTE B - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK {Continued)
Investments (Contihued)

Concentration of -credit risk is the risk of loss attribuied to the magnitude of a
government's investment in a single issuer. The County's investment policy places no
limits on the amount the County may invest in any one user. Concentration of credit risk
is not an issue since all investments are covered by issuer's assets held in the name of
the County.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government's
deposits may not be returned fo it. The County’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk
requires compliance with the provisions of state law.

- .Pension Trust Fund

The pension program operates in compliance with all state and federal statutes,
particularly Nebraska ‘State Statute 30-3209. County pension funds are invested
according fo a plarideveloped -ahd reviewed annually by the County. The plan defines
the purposes of the assets, identifies the parties responsible for managing the
investment process, establishes both broad and specific writien guidelines for the
investment of the fund’s assets, and establishes criteria to monitor and evaluate the
performance of the investment managers. The plan authorizes investments in common
and preferred stocks, corporate bonds, cash-equivalent securilies, certificates of
deposits of insured institutions, money market funds, and government bonds. They can
be in muiual funds or privately managed accounts.

There are fixed income securities guidelines: maximum of 2% of any single corporaig
issuer and 5% for other issuers; no limit on fixed income treasury or agency issues of the
U.S. government. Investments in the employees’ retirement system are valued at the
carried amount, which approximates fair value. The County’s financial statements are
prepared using the accrual -basis of accounting. Employer and plan member
coniributions are recogmzed in the period that the contributions are due.

At June 30, 2010, the balances of investments in the employees’ retirement system were
$81,823,594. The County’s allocation of investments is as follows:

-~ Investment Type Fair Value Conceniration

Guaranteed confracts and fixed income $ 40,352,102 49.31%
Mutual funds — domestic equities 31,449,546 38.44%
Mutual funds — international equities . -~ 10,021,946 12.25%

Total $ 81,823,594 100.00%
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'LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE C - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Fair Value Measurements Topic (Topic 820) of Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification {ASC) establishes a framework for measuring fair
‘value. That framework provides a -fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority fo unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies (level 1 measurements) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodoelogy are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets that the County has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

* Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markeis;

+ Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
« Inputs otherthan quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
»

inputs that are derived principally from or corroboraied by observable market data by
correlation or other means. . :

if ihe asset or iiabiiity has a speciﬁed (contractuai) term, the Levei 2 input must be observabie
far substantially the full ferm of the asset or liability

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodo!ogy are unochservable and S|gmﬂcant to the falr value
measurement

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is- significant fo the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable anuts and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.

Foliowing is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2010.

Common sfocks, corporate bonds and U.S. government securifies: Valued at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Mutual funds: Valued at the net asset value (*NAV”) of shares held by thé plan at year end.
Guaranteed investment contract. Valued at fair value by discounting the related cash flows

based on current yields of similar mstruments with comparable durations considering the credit
worthiness of the issuer.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS {Contmued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE C - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Plan believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the County's assets at fair
value as of June 30, 2010. '

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Federal Loan Discount Notes $ 198,894 $ - $ - $ 198,894
. Total assets at fair value _ $ 198,894 § - $ - $ 198,894

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the internal services funds
of the County’s assets at fair value in the pension trust fund as of June 30, 2010.

Assets af Fair Valu_é as of June 30, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total ‘
Guaranteed contracts and fixed income  $ 40,352,102 -+ $ - $ - $40,352,102
Mutual funds - domestic equities 31,449,546 - - o - 31,449,546
Mutuat funds - international equities | 10,021,946 - - 7‘1'0\,@_2"1,946
Total assets at fair value ' $81,823,594 % - 5 - $8A1,823,594

NOTED - DUE FROMR‘ O OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES
Due From Other Governmentai Agenmes
Due from other governmental agencies are all considered collectible by management except
for patient receivables of the County’s Community Mental Health Center. All patient and
insurance receivables are shown net.of an allowance for doubtiul accounts. Patient and
insurance receivables in excess of 30 days fotaling $201,377 comprise the allowance for
doubtful accounts.
Due To Other Governmental Agencies

Due to - other governmental agencies consisted of amounis due to the Commission
amounting to $125,000 at June 30, 2010.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010 '

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS

The changes in capital assets deS|gnated for the operation of the County for the year ended -
June-30, 2010, are as follows: .

Balance ‘ . - Balance
June 30, 2009 Additions Deletions. June 30, 2010
Non-depreciable capital assets -
Land . $ 10,122,140 ] $ 193,970 5 - $ 10,316,110
Depreciable capital assets
Land improvemsents 2,557,377 - 2,557,377 )
Buildings 75.530,152 . 1,795,287 - 77,325,439
Machinery and equipment 9,734,554 552,811 o (29,531) 10,257,834
Vehicles ' 7 8,886,088 800,819 {487,662) 8,999,245
Infrastructure o 3 | 61,944‘;,636 3,286,180 i641,066) | 64,599,750
€58,652,807 6,245,007 {1,158,259) 163,738,645
Acaumulgted depreciation (57,602,889) : (4,057,895} 794,245 (60,866,639)
101,049,918 2,187,102 : (364,014) 102,873,006
$ 111,172,058 $ 2381072 _$ (364014) - $113189,116

The foiiowmg is a reconciliation of mvested in. capltal assets net of related debt
Capital assets net of accumulated

depreciation - ‘ - S 113,189,116
Related debt ‘ S (1,747,244)
. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 111,441,872

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental activities:

General Government $ 2,050,668
"Public Works e 1,687,045
Public Health and Human Services 320,282
Total Depreciation Expense $ 4,057,995
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

-

NOTE F - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Capital Lease Obligations

The County has enteréd into a capital lease agreement for equipment with monthly instaliments
of $1,315 and an interest rate of 3.4%. The asset under the capital lease totaled $100,000 with
related accumulated depreciation of $71,373 at June 30, 2010.

Bonds Payable
Bonds payable as of June 30, 2010, are summarized as follows:

$4,640,000 Limited Tax Building Bonds, Series 2004, issued June 30,
2004, payable in scheduled semiannual instaliments including principal
amounts ranging from $320,000 to $610,000 plus interest, due on May
1 and November 1, commencing November 1, 2005, with interest

ranging from 3.20% to 4.00%, final payment due November 1, 2014. $ 1,720,000

Total bonds payable . ' 1,720,000

Less current portion. ' {320,000)
' " $ 1,400,000

Change in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Governmenral—tybe Beginning . . Ending Due Within
Aclivity: Balance Additions L Reductions - Balance One Year -
Capital Lease Agreement '$ 46,011 $ - % (14,823) $ 31,188 3 15,331
_ Bonds P_ayabié 2,330,000 . ) - (610,000} -~ 1,720,000 320,000
Less defeired amounts T - )
for issuance discounts (4,853) - 908 C (3,844 - -
Total Eong-Term Debt 2,371,158 ‘ - {623,914} 1,747.244 335,331
Compensated Absences 6,313,085 662,570 - 6,875,655

Governmental-type
Activity Long-Term : ‘
Liabilities § 8,684,243 $ 662,570 3 (623,914) $ 8722899 $ 335,331
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' LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE F - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Principal and interest requirements to maturity on capital lease obligations and on bonds
outstanding prior o the effects of the unamortized discounts at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Year ending
June 30,
2011
2012
2013
2014
Total

NOTE G - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Principal payments

Interest payments

$ 335331 $ 60,187
345,856 48,281

- 345,000 - 35,469

725,000 29,300

$ 1,751,187 $ 173,237

Transfers are related to funding for capital projects, lease payments, debt service, or
realiocations of special revenues. ~ The following schedule briefly summarizes the County’s

transfer.activity:

Transfers In

Bridge & Lancaster Cther
General Special Manhor Governmental '
Fund Road Fund Fund Funds Total
E General Fund $ - $6,027,559 $ 500,000 $ 391,714 $ 6,919,273
B .
E Other Governmental
™1 Funds 41,278 - - - 41,278
$ 41,278 $6,027 559 $ 500,000 $ 391,714 $ 6,960,551

NOTE H - LEASES

Operating Leases

The County leases the County/City Building, the 233 Building, the K Street Power Plant, the
Justice and Law Enforcement Building, the 8™ and J Building, Downtown Senior Center ,
Health Department Building, Courthouse Plaza, Northeast Senior Center, 27" Strest Paolice
Building and parking spaces at no cost 1o the Commission. i
premises for the purpose of providing -space to the City and County depariments, agencies,

and functions.
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I.LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE H - LEASES (Continued)
Operating Leases {Continued)

~ The Commission is responsible for furnishing services, including heat, water, electricity, air
conditioning, eievator service, cleaning services and maintenance, and repair to the City and
County departments inhabiting the space.

The costs to the Commission are funded through charges 16 the inhabitants based upon the
number of square feet of space allocated annually. The amount charged to the inhabitants
is based on total expenditures incurred in the previous year. These charges are then
aliocated based on square footage held by the inhabitant. This is done each year. The
County paid rent reimbursement of $3,185,292 to the Commission for the year ended June
30, 2010. . The leases for the County/City Building, the 233 Building and parking space
continue until all of the bonds have been fully paid and are no longer outstanding. The
lease for the K Street Power Plant expires on October 15, 2014.

The Community Mental Health Center (a special revenue fund of the County) maintains
month-to-month operating leases for various apartments used to house the mentally ill, as
well as office space-used for operations. Lease expenditures paid were approximately
¢Q1R 7132 for the vegr endeﬂl lune 30, 2010

S I IV WS Yo 1N o

- NOTE | - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Pian Description — Post-Employment Health Plan

All eligible employees of Lancaster County are covered-under the County’s retirement plans,

~ Lancaster County Nebraska CB PEHP and Lancaster County Nebraska Non-CB PEHP, as
administered by Nationwide. Separate actuarial valuation of the plans’ assets is not
performed for the individual participating entities. The Board of Commissioners has adopted
the provisions of Section 23-1118,R.R.S. 1943, a Nebraska State Statute, which provides’
any county having a population of more than 100,000 inhabitants the authority to provide
retirement benefits {0 its employees and establish a defined confribution retirement plan.
The County sets aside $25 per pay period for each eligible employee. Employees are not .
required to contribute to this plan. Contributions to this retirement plan by the County on
behalf of the participating employees amounied to $835,243 for the year ended June 30,

-2010.

'Plan Description - Retirement Plan
The pension program operates in compliance with all state and federal statutes, particularly
Nebraska State Statute 30-3209. The County's pension funds are invested according io a

plan developed and reviewed annually by the County. The Plan is titled Lancaster County,
Nebraska Employees Retirement Plan and is administered by Prudential.
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Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE | - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS‘ (Continued)
- Plan Description - Retirement Plan {Continued)

The plan defines the purposes of the assets, identifies the parties responsible for managing
the investment process, establishes both broad and specific written guidelines for the
investment of the fund's assets, and establishes criteria 10 monitor and evaluate the
performance of the investment managers.

The plan authorizes investments in common and preferred stocks, corporate bonds, cash-
equivalent securities, certificates of deposits of insured institutions, money market funds,
and government bonds. They can be in mutual funds or privately managed accounts.

The plan automatically covers substantially all permanent employees who have attained age
25 and completed one year of continuous service.: Upon attaining age 21 and after
completing six months of continuous service, employees may voluntarily enter the plan. The

- employee has the choice of whether or not to participate in the plan if the empioyee has
attalned age 55 prior to the date of employment.

The County is required to contnbute 150% of each participant's mandatory contribution.
The participant’'s mandatory contribution is 5.2% of the participant’s salary. The combined
contributions cannot exceed 13% of earned income.

The employees’ and employer's contributions are maintained in separate accounts. The
employee account is always fully vested. The employer account vests at 20%- per year for
year three through seven in the plans. Total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2010
amounted to $53,6371,052.

‘Several different payment options, based upon the full accumulated value of participant
contributions and the vested portion of employer contributions, are available to the
participant upon death, disability, early retirement at age 50, or normal retirement at age 55,
with ten consecutive years of participation in the plans.

The plan has fixed income securities guidelines: a maximum of 2% of any single corporate
issuer and 5% for other issuers; no limit on fixed income treasury or agency issues of the
U.S. government. Investrments in the employees’ retirement system are valued at the
carried amount, which approximates fair value. The County’s financial staiemenis are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

~ Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period that the contributions

are due. For the County, total employer contributions were $3,054,753 and total employee
contributions were $2,484,908. Additionally, military catch-up contributions were $22,140.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010
NOTE | - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {Continued)

Plan Description - Retirement Plan (Continued)

At June 30, 2010, the balances of investments in the empioyees'. retirement system were
$81,823,594. The County's allocation of invesimenits is as follows:

- Investment Type ' Fair Value ~ Concenration
Stable Value $ 33,767,325 41.27%
-Large Cap Stock _ 18,813,294 22.99%
Mid-Cap Stock ' 7,095,348 8.67%
Giobal Stock | 5,292,787 6.47%
Intemational Stock ' 4,729,159 5.78%
Small Cap Stock : 4,490,364 5.49%
Fixed Income o : 4,389,520 5.36%
Balanced | ' | 2,195,257 2.68%
Retirement Income - ' ' 1,050,540 1.28%
Total , $ 81,823,594 ~100.00%

Method Used to Value investments

The plans’ investments, as reporied in the County's fiduciary funds in the financial
statements, are reported at fair value.

NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theit of, damage to, or destruction
‘of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees, and natural disasters. These risks of loss
are covered by various commercial insurance policies (with various deductibles) with the
exception of workers' compensation and general liability. The County has established the
Workers' Compensation Loss Fund Other and Self-insurance Loss Funds {proprietary funds) to
account for and finance a portion of its uninsured risks of loss. The County is self-insured up io
$900,000 per occurrence for workers' compensation risks and up to $250,000. per occurrence
for general liability risks. The seif-insurance programs are administered by the Workers'
Compensation and Risk Management Manager. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial
coverage in any of the tast three years. Commercial insurance covers the excess of the self-
insured amount to a maximum of $1,000,000 for employers' liability and $4,750,000 for general
liabitity.

The County utilizes the services of an actuary to prepare an analysis of the self-insured workers'

compensation and general fiability risks. The analysis is used fo assist the County with -its
financial planning, budgeting, and management of the self-insurance programs.
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NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The programs are funded on a cash basis with annual premiums charged to all governmental
fund types, except Lancasier Manor Fund, based on past experience of incurred losses and
remitted to the Workers' Compensation Loss and Self-Insurance Proprietary Funds. Settled
claims have not exceeded commercial coverage for the last three years.

FASB ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencies requires that a liability for claims be reported if
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements-indicates that it is probable that a
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can
be reasonably estimated. The County has not purchased annuity contracts from commercial
insurers to satisfy certain liabilities under workers' compensation or general liability claims. The
estimated liability for claims is $1,096,437 at dune 30, 2010. For some of the claims deemed
probable or certain, no liability could be estimated.

NOTE K - COMMITMENTS AND CG'NTINGENT LIABILITIES

- Several claims were filed agaihst the County relating to several Wrongful death lawsuits, in_jl.iries,
and medical expenses. In management's opinion, it is premature at this time fo determine the
likelthood of an unfavorable outcome or the range of potential loss on these claims.

There were two political subdivision tort claims filed against the County, in the amount of
$300,000 each for medical expenses, mental, pain and suffering, and lost wages and benefits
as a result of discriminafion and harassment endured by two individuals while employed by the
Lancaster County Mental Health Center. The County Board of Commissioners has yet to take
action on the claim and the matter.is currently under investigation by the Nebraska Equal
Opportunity Commission. A poiitical subdivision tort claim was filed against the County, in the
amount of $1,000,000 in damages related fo an accident that could have allegedly been
prevented by the installation of rumble strips at an intersection. The County Board of
. Commissioners took no action on the claim and the claim was withdrawn and a lawsuit was
- filed. There was a political subdivision tort claim filed against the County, in the amount of
$1,000,000 for alleged negligence and failure 6 have a stop sign or other traffic control device .
fo control traffic in an intersection. The County Board of Commissioners has formally denied the
claim and a complaint was filed on August 24, 2010 in Lancaster County District Court. Related
to the aforementioned claim, the insurance company of the claimant, has filed a fort claim
seeking $1,000,000 in damages for personal injuries and damages of those making claims
against the insurer of the claimant. The County Board of Commissioners has not formally
denied the claim. A complaint was fited on August 24, 2010 in Lancaster County District Court.
Additionally, another claim was filed related to the aforementioned claims, seeking $155,671 in
damages for workers” compensation claims, repair of school bus and student medical claims.
The Lancaster County Board of Commissioners has not formally denied the claim. A complaint
was filed on Aungust 24, 2010 in Lancaster County District Court. Additionally, a political
subdivision tort claim was filed against Lancaster County for an unspecified amount related fo
an injury that occurred at the Lancaster County Jail. The Lancaster County Board of
Commissioners has not formally denied the claim.
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NOTE K - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES {Continued)

- The Lancaster Maror (a special. revenue fund of the County) is not part of the Workers'
Compensation Loss Fund and pays ifs claims on a cash basis. The County was liable for all
claims incurred through December 31, 2009. When Lancaster Manor Rehabilitation Center,
LLC assumed operation of the Lancaster Manor on January 1, 2010, they became responsible
for any claims filed from that date forward. As of December 31, 2008, the Lancaster Manor had
no liability related fo contingent liabilities. The County has not set aside funds fo cover this
estimated Hability and will pay any claims as they come due. For claims deemed probable or
certain, no liability could be estimated.

NOTE L - CONDUIT DEBT
The County has participated in the following conduit debt arrangements:

Hospita! Authority #1-Lincoin Medical Education Foundation Inc. -Wells Fargo

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue_ Bonds, for '$4,250,000 to
finance a portion of the costs of the acquisition, construction, .equipping and installing health
care and related facilities. Neither Lancaster County nor any pelitical subdivision thereof is

reported as liabilities in the accompanying fmancial staternents. . As of June 30, 2010 the
aggregate principal amount payable was $645,000.

Hospital Authority #1-Lincoln/Lancaster Drug Projects -Wells Fargo

Lancaster County has issued Indusirial Development Revenue Bonds, for $1,515,000 to
acquire and renovate a facility to be occupied by Cenierpointe, a substance abuse center.
Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010 the aggregate principal amount
payable was $1 115,000.

Lincoln Action Program (Series 1999)-Welis Fargo

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, for $2,500,000 fo
finance the construction of the new facility for lease to the Lincoln Action Program. Neither
Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate principal amount
payable was $1,995,000.
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NOTE L - CONDUIT DEBT (Continued)

Goodwill Industries (Series 1999)-Wells Fargo

‘Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, for $500,000 to
acquire and construct an industrial warehouse facility and remodel office space and related
improvements. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligaied in
any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as
liabilities in the -accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate
principal amount payable was $174,240.

Garner Industries (Series 2000 A & B)-Wells Fargo

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, for $6,500,000 for
the acquisition, construction, installation and completion of land and depreciable property for
a manufacturing project for Garner Industries, Inc. Neither Lancaster County nor any
political subdivision thereof is. obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate prmmpal amount payable was $3,920,000.

Hospital Alithority #1 -immanuel Reiir Te‘ut Communities {Ser" 2000A)-Welis Faigo

Lancaster County has issued Variable Rate Health Facility Revenue Bonds, for $37,000,000
to finance the cast of purchasing, constructing, acquiring, and improving a health care and
residential facility for the elderly owned by immanuel Retirement Communities.” Neither
Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
" repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate principal amount
was paid in full.

" Hospital Authority #1-Bryan L GH (Series 2001A)-Union Bank

Lancaster County has issued Hospital Revenue Bonds, for $78,380,000 to be used for the
Bryan LGH Medical Center Project. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $73,915,000.
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NOTE L - CONDUIT DEBT (Continued)

Hospital Autharity #1 -pevétopmental Services of Nebraska (Séries 2001)>-Welis Fargo

Lancaster County. has issued Industrial Development Revenue bonds, for $1,400,000, fo
finance health care facilities to be located at 8125 Joshua Drive, 1720 Timber Ridge Road.
and 5001 North 57th Street. Neither Lancaster County nar any political subdivision thereof
is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabiiities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the
aggregate principal amount was paid in full. ‘

Tabitha Inc. (Series 2001)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, for $1,389,000, to be
used for the acguisition, construction,-and equipping of improvemenis and addifions to
health care facilities owned and operated by Tabitha Inc. Neither Lancaster County nor any
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reporied as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate principal was paid in full. '

o

Hospital Authority #1-Tabitha inc. Project (Series 2003)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not o exceed
$4,000,000, to-acquire, construct and equip improvements and additions o health care
facilities owned and operated by Tabitha Inc. for facilities located at 4720 Randolph Sireet in

- Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is
obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reparted as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the
aggregate principal amount was paid in-full.

Hospital Authority #1-Madonna Rehabilitation Project {Series 2003 A, B & C)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue & Refunding Bonds, not o
exceed $10,000,000, for the purpose of providing financing for the acquisition and
installation of equipment and related remodeling for use by Madenna at its rehabiiitation
hospital facilities. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated
in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate
principal amount payable was $3,085,000.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA .
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE L - CONDUIT DEBT (Continued)
Hospital Authority #1-Grand Lodge Proiect (Series 2003)

Lancaster Courity has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, for $8,700,000, for
- the Grand Lodge Project, Grand Lodge Retirement Community Inc., an ancillary care faciiity.
Neither Lancaster County nor any.political subdivision thereof is obhgated in any manner for
- repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregaie principal amount
payable was $8,512,995.

Hospital Authority #1-Child Guidance Project {Series 2003)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue & Refunding Bonds, not to
exceed $1,300,000, for the purpose of providing financing for the Lincoin/Lancaster County
Child Guidance Center Inc. Project. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as liabiiities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010,
the aggregate princ:pa[ amount payable was $661,491.

Hospitai Authority #1- “Cornhusker Place Project {(Series 2004)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue & Refunding Bonds, not to

" exceed $2,200,000, fo refinance existing debt and to make improvements to the facility

 located at 721 ‘K’ Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster County nor any political

~ subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the

" bonds are not reported as liabilities in the -accompanying financial statements. As of June
30, 2010, the aggregate principal-amount payable was $1,083,772.

Hosp:tal Authority #1- Eastmont Towers Pro;ect (Serles 2004)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue & Refundlng Bonds, not to
exceed $4,255,000, to refund the Series 1999 Revenue Bonds (Eastmont Towers Pro;ec’t)
both the project and facilities located at 6315 ‘O Street, Lincoln, NE. Neither Lancaster
County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the
bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate principal amount payable was $3,490,000.
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 LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE L - CONDUIT DEBT (Continued)

Hospital Authority #1-Cenierpoinie Project (Series 2004)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue & Refunding Bonds, not to
exceed $2,300,000, to finance the cost of acquiring certain real property and paying the
costs of construction, installation, équipping and furnishing a building on such real property
for the Centerpointe project. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof
is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reporied as liabilities .in the accompanying financial statements. As.of June 30, 2010, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $1,953,672.

Hospital Authoritv #1-Cornhusker Place (Series 2005)

Lancaster County has |ssued Industrial Development Revenue & Refunding Bonds, not to
exceed $450,000, to finance the extension of the bonds issued to refinance ex:stmg debt
and to make improvements to the facility located at 721 ‘K’ Street, Lincoin, Nebraska.
" Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as -liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate pnnmpal amount
© was paid in fuli.

Hospital Authority #1-Clark Jeary Home Project (Series 2005)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue & Refunding Bonds, not to
exceed $7,000,000, to finance a portion of the costs of acquiring, construction, equipping,
and furnishing an assisted living facility owned and operated by Clark Jeary at 8401 South
33rd Street, Lincoin, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision
- thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010,
- the aggregate prlnc;pat amount. payable was $6,172,045.

Hospital Authority #1—Grand Lodae Project (Series 2005}

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, for $13,050,000, for
the Grand Lodge Project, Grand Lodge Retirement Community Inc., an ancillary care facility.
Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate principal amount
payable was $12,360,750.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)"
Year Ended June 30, 2010

_ NOTE L - CONDUIT DEBT (Continued)

' Horsgital Authority #1-Eastmont Towers (Sei‘ies 2008)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue. & Refunding Bonds, not to
exceed $2,800,000, to enable the Authority to finance renovations and additions to the .
facilities of Christian Retirement Homes a/k/a Eastmont Towers, and to reimburse CRH for
costs previously incurred for such activities.. Neither Lancaster County nor any political
subdivision théreof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June
30, 2010, the aggregate principal amount payable was $2,500,000.

. Hospital Authori’tv #1-St. Monica's Home (Series 2006)

Lancaster County has issued industrial ‘Development Revenue & Refunding Bonds, not to
exceed $2,000,000, fo finance. or refinance the costs 'of acguiring, renovating, remodeling,
equipping and furnishing certain healthcare facilities to be owned and operated by St.
Monica’'s Home located at 120 Wedgewood Drive, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster
County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in-any- manner for repayment of the
bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financiat
statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregatie principal amount payabie was $1,423,492.

Hospita! Authority #1-BryanLGH Medical Center ‘Project (Series 20086) ‘

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$59,465,000, for the benefit of Bryanl.GH Meadical Center. Neither Lancaster County nor
any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate -principal amount payable was
$53,140,000. : - '

Hosplta[ Authority #1 Communlty Biood Bank Lancaster County Medlca[ Society (Series
2006)

Lancaster County has issued- Revenue Bonds, for $1,800,000 for the Community Blood
Bank of Lancaster County Medical Society project, the medical services facilities to be
located at 2700 Fletcher Avenue. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner far repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010,
the aggregate prlnc:pal amount payable was $845,000.
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" LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE L - CONDUIT DEBT (Continued)

Hospitat Authority #1-Clark Jeary Home Project (Series 2007)

- Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue & Refunding Bonds, not to
exceed $1,000,000, to finance a portion of the costs of acquiring, construction, equipping,
and furnishing an assisted living facility owned and operated by Clark Jeary at 8401 S. 33rd
Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster County ner any political subdivision thereof is
obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reporied as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $846,433.

Hoso:tal Authorliy #1 Houses of Hope of Nebraska (Series 2007)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue & Refundmg Bonds, not to
exceed $2,000,000, to finance a portion of the costs of acquiring, construction, equipping,
and furnishing three two-story, 14-bed transitional residential substance abuse treatment
facilities located at 1140 North Cotner Boulevard, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster
_County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the
- bonds. Accordingty, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying i‘ nancial

Hospital -Authority #1-Community Blood Bank Lancaster Countv Medical Socletv (Series

2007}

Lancaster County has issued Revenue Bonds, for $1,950, 000 for the Community Blood
Bank of Lancaster County Medical Society project, the medical services facilities to be
located at 100 N 84th Sireet. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision

- thereof is obligated in-any manner for-repayment of the bonds. Accordingiy, the bonds are
not reported-as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010
the aggregate principal amount payable was $1,720,596. '

Plastic Companies Enterprises inc. (Senes 2008)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
© $2,100,000, to acquire, install, furnish, and complete on certain real estate certain items of
equipment and personal property located in Lancaster County, Nebraska and fo be operated
by Plastic Companies Enterprises, Inc., a Texas corporation. . Neither-Lancaster County nor
any political subdivision thereof is obiigated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying -financial
statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate principal amount payable was $1,766,194.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE L - CONDUIT DEBT (Continued) -

Hospitél Authority #1—BrvanLGH Medical Center Project (Series 2008A)

_Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not fo exceed
$40,000,000, for the redemption of Series 2002 (BryanLGH Medical Center Project) being
the acquisition and installation of equipment and refated remodeling for use by BryanLGH at

_its acute care hospital facilities. Neither Lancaster County nor-any political subdivision

- thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010
the aggregate principal amount payable was $26,840,000.

Hospital Authority #1-BrvanLGH Medical C_'e-nter Project (Series 2008B1)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$90,000,000, for the redemption of Series 2007A-1 and Series A-2 issued to refinance the
costs of a three story addition {0 existing hospital facilities, renovations of Women's Center,
addition to the School-of Nursing, additional parking- facilities and certain other
improvements ta the facilities located at 1600 Soutih 48th Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither
Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingiy, the bonds - are not reporied as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate principal- amount
- payable was $40,055,000.

- Hospital Authority #1-BrvanLGH Medical Center Project (Series 200852)

l.ancasier County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$90,000,000, for the redemption of Series 2007A-1 and Series A-2 issued to refinance the
costs of a three story addition to existing hospital facilities, renovations of Women’'s Center,

 addition to the School of Nursing, additional parking faciliies and certain other
improvements 1o the facilities located at 1600 South 48th Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither
Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in. any manner for

- repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate principal amount
payable was $40,065,000. ' ,

Hospital Authority #1-Tabitha-(Series 2009A)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$4,600,000, for constructing, equipping and furnishing an approximately 17,500 square foot
addition to existing structures. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010,
the aggregate principal amount payable was $4,325,000.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE L - CONDUIT DEBT {Continued)

Hospital Au-t'hority #1-Tabitha (Series 2009B)

Lancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue Bonds, nof io exceed
$3,300,000, to pay off 2001 and 2003 Series bond issues for acquisition, construction and
equipping additions to existing health care faciliies. Neither Lancaster County nor any .
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilites in the accompanying financial
.statements. As of June 3‘0 2010, th.e aggregate principal amount payable was $3,630,000.

Hospltal Authorltv #1 Madonna (Serles 2009)

Lancaster County has |ssued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$7,200,000, for acquisition, construction and equipping a clinically infegrated health center

- building and related facilities. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof
is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in- the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $6, 272 918, '

Plastic Companies Enterprises Inc. (Series 2009)

Lancasier County has issued industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$2,000,000, for acquisition and installation of certain manufacturing machinery and
equipment for a manufacturing and industrial facility located in Lancaster County, Nebraska
and to be operaied by Plastic Companies Enterprises, Inc., a Texas corporation. Neither
Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in"any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial staterments. As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate principal amount
payabie was $1,589,640. : :

" Hospital Authority #1-lmmanuel Retirement Communities {Series 2010)

Lancaster County has issued Variable Rate Health Facility Revenue Bonds, for $40,000,000
to pay or reimburse for the cost of capital expenditures for infrastructure, common facilities
and living unit renovation at a facility known as The Landing at Wiliamsburg located at 3500
Faulkner Drive, Lincoln, Nebraska and refinance and refund the cutstanding portion of the
$35,035,000 original aggregate principal amount of Series 200A Revenue Bonds (Immanuel
Health Systems — Williamsburg Project. Neither Lancaster County nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as hiabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June
30, 2010, the aggregate principal amount payable was $39,355,000.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued})
Year Ended Juhe 30, 2010

NOTE M - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Lancaster Manor Asset Purchase Agreement

During fiscal year 2009, Lancaster Manor Real Estate, LLC entered into an Asset Purchase
Agreement with the County, under which the County shall sell and Lancaster Manor Real
Estate, LLC shall purchase the land, the improvements and the furniture, fixtures and
equipment of the skilied nursing home located at 1001 South Streef, Lincoin Nebraska
commonly known as Lancaster Manor. Prior to the closing under the purchase agreement,
Lancaster Manor Real Estate, LLC, entered:- into a lease which commenced on December

31, 2009 whereupon the lessee would pay the County $10,000 per month rent to Lancaster
Manor and would be responsible for all costs associated with the building. Additionalty, an
operations transfer agreement was entered into on December 7, 2009 by and befween the
County and Lancaster Manor Rehabilitation Center, LLC, in which Lancaster Manor
Rehabilitation Center, LLC assumed operations and associated eosts until a time exists
when Lancaster Manor can officially be closed upon.

Subsegquent to June 30, 2010 Lancaster Manor was formally sold. The purchase price
payable for the property was $9,500,000 less an Operational Performance Credit in the
amount of $1,450,000 received by the Purchaser. The selier deposited $1,000,000 upon
closing to provide reimbursement to the purchaser for capital improvements to the Facility.
At closing, Lancaster County made a payment to the Nebraska Department of Health and
Human Services for recapture of depreciation in the amount of $4,312,975 based upon the
purchaser's Medicaid asset cost basis and the allocation of the sale price for Nebraska

Medicaid purposes.
NOTE N - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Deferred Tax Revenue at July 1, 2009 has been restated to correct reporiing classifications in
the previously issued financial statements of the County. The cumulative effect in the
. Government-Wide Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2009 resulted in an
overstatement of Deferred Tax Revenue and an understatement of revenue totaling $1,772,402.
_ The cumulative effect in the Governmental Fund Financial Statements for the year ended June
30, 2009 resulted in an understatement of Deferred Tax Revenue and an overstatement of
revenue totaling $1,772,402.

Beginning
balance Beginning
Government-Wide - {As previously - Prior period balance
Financial Statements reported) adjustment {as restated)
Deferred Tax Revenue - $ (1,772,402) $ 1,772,402 . $ -
Governmental Fund
Financial Statements
Deferred Tax Revenue $ - - § (1,772,402) $(1,772,402)
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEERASKA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
" Year Ended June 30, 2010

General Fund

. (011)
" Original Budget - Final Budgst Actual Varlance
REVENUES
Taxes 5 55,673,177 55,249,052 57,219,883 1,970,831
Charges for Services 16,761,008 - 15,761,008 12,411,865 (3,349,143)
Federal Receipts 1,962,246 1,962,248 2,084,841 122,605
State Revenues 2,253,456 2,253,456 2,675,840 422,384
Licenss, Fees and Renta! Income 59,700 59,700 64,111 4,411
interest on Invastments 1,000,425 1,000,425 681,930 {318,495)
Intergavernmenital ' 1,964,025 1,809,825 599,066 {1,300,769)
Other Recelpts . 414,711 441,871 1,843,849 1,402,078
Total Revenues 78,988,808 78,627,583 77,581,675 (1,046,007)
EXPENDITURES .
Wages and Benefits 46,060,892 45,907,317 45,919,366 (12,049)
City/County Shared 3,903,968 3,903,968 3,905,461 (1,483}
Gontractual .14,263,318 14,104,646 12,613,440 1,491,206
Supplies 2,079,628 2,069,168 1,950,654 118,514
Travel 181,559 178,059 134,960 43,099
Utilities 922,743 922,743 849,328 73,415
Advertising . . 378,078 378,078 256,606 121,472
Insurance 276,514 276,514 236,937 39,577
Rentai 3,781,087 3,781,087 3,803,112 (22,045)
Rapairs and Maintenance 439,666 438,666 712,269 {272,603)
Capltal Gutlays 1,151,686 1,147,686 2,480,673 '(1,332,987)
interast - “ - -
Other 5,102,656 5,087,829 2,613,018 2,473,011
Total Expanditures " 78,541,775 78,196,741 75476,724" 2,720,015
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
- BUDGETARY BASIS 447,033 430,842 2,104,851 (1,674,008}
QTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES)
Debt Proceeds (Payments) {148,269) {148,269) (14,823} -
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 2,500 2,500 60 (2,440)
Operating Transfers in . 52,009 52,008 41,278 {10,821}
Cperating Transfers Qut . (7,817,952} (7,601,760} (6,918,584} 683,188
Transfers In -~ Public Building Commission . - - 1,803,738 1,803,738
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) . " (7,708,622} (7.693,430} (5,088,311) 2,473,673
DEFICIENGY OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
{BUDGETARY BASI__S) OVER EXPENDITURES ANP OTHER FINANCING USES 5 (7,262,589) (7,262,588) (2,983,480) 799,684
ADJUSTMENTS REQL-LI'!RED UNDER AGCOUNTING FRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
To adjust revenues for acoruals 1,359,545
To adlust expenditures for accruals . {1.482,837)
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES {MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS} OVER EXFENbITURES B {3,106,752)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 32,802,407
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR 29,795,665 -

The accompanying notes to Budgetary Comparison Schadule ~

are an integral part of this schedule
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REVENLIES
Charges for Services
Federal Recsipts
Other Service Revenues and Reimbursemsnt
QOther Receipls
Tota! Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Wages and Benefits
Contractual
Suppliss
Travel
Utllilas
Advertising
Instirance
Rental .
Repairs and Maintenance
Capital Quitays
Other
Totel Expenditures

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
- BUDGETARY BASIS '

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES
Operating Transfars In
Total Other Financing Sources

[DEFICIENCY)} EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -
(BUDGETARY BASIS) OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

ADJUSTMENTS REQUIRED UNDER ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES -
GENERALLY ACCEPTED [N THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

To adjust revenues for accruals
Teo adjust expanditures for accruals

EXCESS OF REVENUES {MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS) OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended June 38, 2010

Bridge and Special Road Fund

[o21)
.Origlhal Budget Final Budget Actual Variance
5 - - $ 776,279 776,279
855,000 866,000 1,830 (863,170)
53,000 60,000 42,351 {17,649)
615,000 915,000 820,460 (94,540)
2,153,933 2,153,933 2,247,480 (93,547}
1,184,750 1,184,750 431,185 753,565
57,800 67,800 53,227 4,573
20,000 20,000 27,799 (7.798)
76,200 76,200 536,944 (460,744}
4,394,056 '4,374.865 3,333,393 1,041,472
9,500 9,600 8,870 530
7,883,239 7,877.048. 6,638,998 1,238,050
(6,978,230) (6,062,048} (5,818,538) (1,143,510
5,054,260 5,938,078 6,027,559 89,481
5,054,269 5,938,078 6,027,660 89,481
4 {1,023,870) (1,023,070} ° 208,021 (1,054,029)
43,639
{45,480}
207,200
3,660,302
$ 3,867,602
T r———————————— et

The accompanying notes to Budgatary Comparison Schedule

are an integral part of this achadule
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LANGASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Federal Receipts
Medicaid/Medicare/MRC Relmbursaments
Other Recsipis
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Wages and Benefits
Cantractual
Supplies
Travel
Utitities
Advertising
Insurance
Rental
Repsfrs and Maintanance
Capital Cutlays
Gther

Total Expenditures

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
- BUDGETARY BASIS

OTHER FINANCING SOURGES
Operating Transfers In
Total Other Financing Sources

DEFIGIENGY OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANGING SOURCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS) OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

ADJUSTMENTS REQUIRED UNDER ACCOUNfING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

To adjust revenues for accruals
To adjust expenditures for accruals

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS} OVER EXPENDITURES
FUND BALANCE. - BEGINNING OF YEAR ’
FUND BALANGE - END OF YEAR

Year Ended June 30, 2010

Lancaster Manor Fund

. : {061)
Original Budget Flnal Budget Actual . Varlange
5 4,927,829 $ 4,027,629 $ 1,383,113 ] (3,534,516)
13,436,701 13,436,701 - (13,436,701)
- ’ - 12,628,562 12,629,582
L - - 67,500 87,500
18,364,330 16,364,330 14,080,195 {4,274,135)
16,322,969 16,329,869 8,680,642 7,639,327
1,548,878 1,548,979 769,281 779,688
4,398,665 1,389,665 765,820 633,745
28,188 28,188 - 11,865 16,223
380,000 380,000 169,709 210,291
. 11,800 11,800 5,148 8,651
39,333 39,333 15430 23,903
21,175 21,175 7,472 13,703
93,360 98,360 57,264 41,096
1,436,882 1,436,982 - 1,436,882
129,252 129,252 5,275,980 {5,148,708)
21423763 21,423,703 15,768 792 5,654,811
(3,05'9,373) {3,059,373) {1,678,597) (1,380,776)
1,404,623 1,404,623 500,000 {904,623}
1,404,623 1,404,623 500,000 {904,623}
; 3 -(1 ,(:“:54,750) $ (1,654,750} (1,178,597) § 2,285,388}
' (92,939)
(1,271,638)
1,934,242

The accompanying notes o Budgetary Comparisen Schedule

are an integral part of this schadule
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE A - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The County foliows these procedures in establtshlng the budgetary data reflected in the required
~ supplemental information in acc:ordance with the statutory requtrements of the Nebraska Budget
Act:

On or before August 1, the County Board of Commissioners prepares and transmits a budget
for each County fund showing the projected requirements, outstanding warrants, operating
reserve, cash on hand at the close of the preceding fiscal year, projected revenue collected
from sources other than property tax and amount to be raised by property taxation. The budget
is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. Encumbrances are also reflected as-expenditures
' for-budgetar-y purposes. At least one public hearing must be held by the County Board.

On or before September 20, the County Board of Commissioners, after the action of the State"
‘Board of Equalization and Assessment has been certified fo the County Clerk, the budget, as
rewsed is adopted and the amounts prowded therein are appropriated.

The County Board is authorized fo transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any
- fund through resolution; however, revisions that alter the total expendltures of any fund require
thatfan additional public hearing be held.

NOTE B - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

. Revenues and expenditures presented on a non-GAAP budget basis of accounting differ from
the revenues and expenditures presented in accordance with GAAP because of the different
treatment of encumbrances and accruals (revenue recognition). All unexpended

_appropriations will lapse at the end of the budget year. However, some appropriations may

. be encumbered at year end and disbursed in the following year due to the nature of the
project.

NOTE C - BUDGET LAW
The County is required by state law fo hold public hearings and adopt annual budgets for alt
funds on the cash basis of accounting. Total expenditures for each fund may not exceed the

total budgeted expenditures. Any revisions to the adopted budget of total expenditures to any
fund require a public hearing. :
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS .



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2010

'Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Food Distribition Program -
) Detention Center
Passed-through Nebraska Department of Education
National School Lunch Program
* Detention Center
Community Mental Health Center

Total US Dapartment of Agriculiure

U.S. Department of Justice

Passed-through State Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice
Comprehensive Approaches to. Sex Offender Management
Juvenile Accountability incentive Block Grants
" Juvenile Justice and Delinguency Prevention:

Title 1l - H2O, Risk/Needs, Talented Tenth

County Atiorney - Byrne Formuta Grant Program

County Sheriff - Byrne Fonmula Grant Program

Violence Against Women Formula Grants

Violence Against Women Farmula Grants -
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act

VAWA Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and ' g
Enforce Protection Orders i ‘

State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP)

Mental Health Collaboration Grant

Total U.S. Department of Justice

- U.8. Department of Transportation

Federal Highway Administration
Passed-through Nebraska Department of Roads
Highway Pianning and Construction .
SAAC Conference on Alcohol Prevention

State and Community Highway Safety

Total U.S. Department of Transportation -
U.8. Bepartment of Homeland Security
Passed-through Nebraska Efnetfgency Managément Agency
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Emergency Management Parformarnice Grant
State Homeland Security Program

Metropolitan Medical Response System training

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Federal

Federal
CFDA No. Expenditures
10.550 208
10.655 51,973
10.55% 30,686
122,867
16.203 98,602
“16.523 68,951
16.540 140,708"
16.579 12,768
16.579 18,132
16.588 189,394
16.588 93,007 -
16.500 197,857
16.606 90,851
16:745 46,000
956,270
20.205 51,180
20.600 2,500
20.600 9,582
63,262
97.038 55,611
97.042 - 102,414
97.067 357,623 -
97.071 2,287
517,935

The accompanying notes te Schedule of Expsenditures of Federal Awards

are an integral part of this schedule

-51-



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

- - - . . 'Federal - Federal
. Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title CFDA No. Expenditures
S us. Departmeént of Health and Human Services
. Pass_ed.—through Nebraska Departmment of Health and Human Services
Mental Health Planning and Demaonstration Project ) . ’
Project Homeless Grani, Mental Health Care | 83.150 $ © 32,500
Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Health Services- ’ ) )
Block Grant, Mental Health Center $ 93.958 : 19,456
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Admlmstrat‘on = : ’
Projects of Regional and National Significance
Strategic Prevention Framework State Incentive Grant 93.243 160,000
Drug-Free Community Support Program Grants . 93.276 115,600
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - Discretionary Grants 93.576 49,000
Passed-through Nebraska Department of Social Services .
Child Support Enforcement, Couniy Attorney - (1) 93563 © 1,081,529
Child Support Enforcement, Clerk of District Court {1y 93563 261,140
Child Support Erfercement, Bailiff District Court - (1) 93.563 206,442
Passed through University of Nebraska-Lincoln .
“Decision Science in Rehabilitation ‘ 93.242 9,000
N Ofﬁ'ce of Minority Health and Health Euity
- Passed-through.Nebraska DHHS, Office of Health Disparities . -
State Partnership-Grant Program - Health. Disparities ’ p 93.006 ’ 500
.. State Parinership Grant Program - Lunch & Leamns . 93.006 . 2,001
Total U.S. Department-of Health and Human Services ' ' 1,917,168
. Other Federal Assistance ’
Social Security Administration :
Social Security Disability Insurance _ © 96.001 ) 28,600
U.S. Entitlement Lands 15.226 17,837
Total Other Federal Assistance ‘ _ e 46,437
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS ) ’ $ 3,623,939

(1) Determined to 5e a major program.

The acoompanymg notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
are an integral part of this schedule
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LANCASTER COUNTY NEBRASKA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The_' accompanying Schedule  of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
.activity of Lancaster County, Nebraska (the County), and is presented on the cash basis of

~accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements

of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may dlﬁer from amounis presented in, or
used in the preparataon of, the financial statements. :

NOTE-B - BASIS OF ACCOUNT!NG

The .accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the County and is presented on the cash basis of accounting. Total grant
- expenditures presented in the schedule do not include expendltures funded through matchmg
contributions and other miscellaneous revenue. . ,

NOTE C - SUB-RECIPIENTS
' _' There are no sub—re;cipient_s of federal- expenditures presented in the schedule. -
'.""“'E D - PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR NUMBERS |

AL"

The |dent|1‘ymg numbers assigned by the pass-through entities o the pass-through federal funds
were hot available. e
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
COMBINING BALANCE BHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2010

. . Visiters Improvement . to

LTotinty Rural Likrary

Bricge & épeclal Road

Total . - " General Fund X Fund - Visitors' Premotion Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS {Memorandum Only} {011} i {018) : @19) - (020) (021}
Cash and Gash Equivslents 15,247,349 % ' 2,310,170 § . -2,373,888 $ 427,434 & 25459 % 2,787,653
Certificates of Deposit 10,247,160 §,580,352 - - Co. 1,543,750
Investments 3,642,007 . 3,138,597 . - - - 434,334
Due From Cther Governmental Agencies 3,302,932 . 1,627,147 : 61,474 - 285,831 1,887 - 44,443
Interast Recelvable . 43,178 34,154 . " . - - 6,879
Patlent and Insurance Recsivables, Net of - : '
Allawanee for Doublful Accounts of $201,377 141,638 - - . - - -
Taxes Receivable 21,347,743 19,692,310 - - 243,548 -
57,942,008 % 25,283,731 § 2435362 § 713,265 § 270004 & 4,721,059
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE ,
LIABILITIES . .
Accounts Payskle 5251842 % 2,358;010" § . BODO & ig1,542 & - 3 778,857
Accrued Salares 2,060,066 1,520,896 - - - . 74,680
Due To Olher Governmental Agencles 125,000 - - - - -
Defarred Revenue . 1,757,934 - 1,608,170 = - 24,540 -
Total Llabllitles 9,194,842 5,488,076 . 8,000 161,642 24,540 853,657
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - - - - - -
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for Debt Service 2,062,967 - - . - - . -
[Resarved for Encumbrancas 2,275,451 268,020 : - . Co- - 1,762,712,
Unrasarved 43 508,748 29,577,635 2,477,362 C- 551,723 246,454 2,104,790
Tetal Fund Balance 48,747,166 28,705,655 . 2,427,362 551,723 246,454 3,867,502
£7,942,008 $ 35,283,731 5 - - 2,415,362 $ 713,265 1] 270,994 % 4,721,069
- e

. NN



LANCASTER SOUNTY, NEBRASKA |

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 38, 2010

Vererans Ajd Fund

Economic Development

Deht Service Pund

(Cantinued)

HIghwﬁy Fund Federal Grants Fund Keno Fund Fund Buliding Fund
ASSETS {022} {026] . {027 {0z4) {035) (041} {054)
Cash and Cash Equlvalents 442,742 15,325 § 1,001,860 § 2128745 & 354,759 § . 2,702,684 185,722
Cerlificates of Deposit 85,488 ! - - - 49,573 - - -
Investments 87,317 - - - 66,108 - -
Dire From Other Governmental Agencles 557,412 - . 88,719 - 2978 57,108 884
interest Receivable 1,103 . - - 8495 - -
Patient and Insurance Receivablas, Net of : 5 *
Allowance for Doubtfu! Aceounts of $201,377 - - . - : - - - -
Taxes Recaivable Co - - - B - - 221,358 86,330
1,164,062 15325 § 1,088579 & 2,128,745 § ) 474,318 § 2,984,181 222,818
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES lé .
Accounts Payable 252,210 - $ 4597 120 § 54,432 $ o 3571 5. - 7,188
Accrued Salaries 78,031 - - O - - - -
Due To Other Govermnmental Aysncies - - - - - - .
Daferred Revenue L s - : - - 18,194 7,108
Total Lisbilitizs 330,341 - . 497,120 . 54,432 3,571 18,124 14,274
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCGIES - - - - - - -
FUND BALANCE '
Reservad for Dabt Servics - - - - - - 2,962,857 -
Researved for Encumbrances 220,334 - 24,385 - - - -
Unreserved 603,387 15,325 587,074 2,974,313 470,744 - 208,642
Total Fund Balance 823,721 .16326 551,459 2,074,313 470,744 2,962,957 208,642
1,154,082 15,325 $ 1,088,678 3. C 2,428,745 $ 474,316 ] 2,881,161 222,918
et =L S it




LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2040 .

{Continued)

County Property Gity Building

. - . - County/City Property
Jall Savings Fund - Lancaster Manor Fund Mental Health Fund Weead Contre| Fund Managemers Fund Management Fund ‘Mainte nance Fund
ASSETS {052) {061} 063} ) L) {065} {088) - (957)
« . . ] R - ’ T
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,988,109 § 1498817 § | 277591 §. 89,386 § 219,859 13330f § 373,186
Cetlifcates of Deposit 7.990 - .- - - - -
Investmants 10,653 - . - - - - -
Dua From Other Governmsntal Agenciss I - 501,243 - 75,728 - -
Interest Receivable ' ’ 148 - e - B . , .
Patlent and Insurance Recelvablag, Nat of .
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of $201,377 - - " 111,638 - - - -
Taxas Recaivable - - X - 1,204,188 - v - N
1,877,380 % 1,488,617 § 2,094,668 § 89,385 $ 295,3§7 132,141 $ 373,168
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE )
LIABILITIES - . -
Accounts Payable N $ 825,941 3 156,257 $ 14,920 3 28,038 87716 $ 18,748
Accrued Saleries - - ' 266,132 10,738 97,308 12,270 -
Due To Other Govemmentat Agencles - - - - , 125,000 - . -
Deferrad Revenue - - 28,025 - - - - '
Tatat Liablliles - 825,941 524,314 24,859 250,348 99,936 ’ 18,748
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - - - - - - -
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for Debt Ssndce - - - - - -
Reserved for Encumbrances - - - - - - . -
Unreserved 1,877,980 BB2.876 . 1573354 64,525 45,041 33,315 354,407
Total Fund Balance B 1,877,980 862,678 . 1,573,364 54,525 45,044 33,318 354,407
1,977,880 .5' 1,488,617 % 2,084,668 & 89,386 & 288,387 133,301 § 373,156
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REVENUES .
Texes
Charges for Services
Federal Recelpts
SBtata Revanuss
Medlcafd/Medicare/MRD Relmbursements
*License, Fees and Rental Incame
Interest Income
Intargovernmental
Other Income
Total Revanues

EXPENTITURES

Wages and Benefils

Chy{County Shared

Contractual

Suppfies

Trave!

Uthlides

Advertisfitg

Insuranae

Raental

Repairs and Malntenance

Capftal Oullays s

Interest . ’

Gther . '
Total Expenditures

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANGING SOURGCES (USES)
Debt Payirients
Gain on Sals of Capltal Agsets
Opsrating Transfars In
Opéreting Transfers Qut
Trangfers In - Publle Bullding Cammissfen
Transfers Out - City of Lingoln
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICET)

FUND BALANCE {DEFICIT) - BEGINNING OF THE YEAR,
AS PREVIQUSLY STATED

PRIOR PERIOD ARJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING OF THE YEAR, AS RESTATED

FUND SBALANCE - END OF THE YEAR

'
I LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
COME?NING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES, AND CHANGE 1M FUND BALANCE [D’EFICITI
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
4 . Year Endud Jine 30, 2018

Visitors Improverrent

County Rural Ulbrary
Fund .

Bridge & Speclal Road

L57-

Total General Fund - . .Fund Visltors Framotion and ' Fund
Jum Only) (044} (018} (019) {o2a} - {o21)
§ - 64,010,590 § 57,873,703 8 BN Tl ] 1,102,098 § . 578,046, $ 1,829
19,657,086 13,066,639 - - . - 820,722
4,381,331 2,546,655 - - - -
12,358,930 2,675,640 - - 24,919 -
15,409,330 - - - - -
1,669,781 64,111 . - - .
719,107 615.214 - - . - 33,502
- 928,479 754,162 - - : (76) 1
2,285,017 1,352,798 - - - 7,945
121,330,451 78,941,130 877,740 1,102,098 602,805 864,089
ol N "
71,438,722 16,366,690 - - - 2,262,979
4,064,382 3,905,461 . - 617,183 -
19,766,792 19,393,127 #32,207 1,050,021 . -
4,562,002 2,008,087 - - 436,181
253,137 134,950 - - - .
1,631,202 868,250 - - - 54,040
. 01,342 262,290 - - - .
' o7 238,937 - - - -
4,354,063 3,875,127 - . - 27,789
: 4,586,414 758,828 - - - 537,609
: B,439,067 2,487,527 - - 4 3,355,880
74,457 - - - - -
j . -B,468,715 2,862,269 {10.000) - 25T 8570
& 127,168,493 75,860,661 622,207 1,060,021 817,420 6,684,458
(5.838,041) 1,881,668 355,533 52,077 ' {14,525) {5,820,359)
(624,823) (14,823) - - - -
60 80 - . - -
8,960,550 41,278 - - - 6,027,559
(8,960,550} {6,818,564) - - - [
1,803,738 1,803,738 . . . )
(607107} - - - .- B
671,368 (5,088,311} - - - 8,027.559
(5,168,172} {3,106,752) 356,533 62,077 “ (14525 ' 207,200
'66,685,740 34,518,815 T z071B29 499,847 286,087 3,660,202
(1,772,402} . (1,616,408) - - - : {25,108) -
53,913,238 32 502,407 2,071,829 488,647 260,879, 3,660,302
] 48,747,166 % 29,795 BE5 3 2,427,362 § 551,723 § 246,454 - & 3,867,502



REVENUES
Taxes
Charges for Services
Federal Recslpls

. Stale Revenuss
MedlcaldiMedicara/MRO Reimbursemeants
License, Fees and Rental Income
Interest Incoma
Intargovernmental
Qther Incame

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Wages and Banefits
CityfCounty Shared

. Conlraclual
Suppllss
Travel .
Utilities

_ Advertising
Insurance
Rental
Repairs and Malntenarce
Capital Outlays
Interesi .
Other .

Total Expendilures

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {IISES)
Debl Payments
Gain on Salz of Capltal Asgals
Operaling Transfers In
Operaling Transfers Qut
Transfers In - Public Bullding Commisslon
Transfers Out - City of Lincoln
Total Other Flnaniing Sources {Uses)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE [DEFICIT)

FUND BALANCE {DEFICIT) - BEGINNING OF THE YEAR,
A3 PREVIOQUSLY STATED

PRICR PERIDD ADJUSTMENT
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING OF THE YEAR, AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE - END OF THE YEAR

LANCASTER COUNTY, MEBRASKA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES, AND SHANGE IN FUND BALANGE (DEFISIT}

GUVERNMENTAL FUNDS

. Yaar Ended June 30, 210

Ecenomlc Davelopment

{Continued)

Highway Furlél Veterans Ald Fund Federel Grants Fand Keno Fund Fund .ﬂebl Service Fund Bullding Fund
{0273 . {028} {027) {p28} {030) _041) ) {051)
. . 3 1122 § s - 5 £45085 § 204,277
-203,583 I 102,513 - - 620,195 -
- - 1,820,028 ) - - - -
5,425,807 - 't 408,200 co - - 21,009 8,202
3,088 . - - . - - 50,400 -
+ 15,333 ~ 11,263 . n - 9,293 3,569 R
- H - - - {85) {18)
32,062 6,129 . 1g401 573,035 38,630 - -
_ 5.881,170 o 6,128 . 2,180,604 _ 872,035 47,883 1,250,183 212,463
2,500,336 - X - - . - - - -
R . - ) 436,813 - - -
352 - - 1,702,871 257,107 25,000 - 14,881
844600 - 347,604 - - - -
- - . 83517 - - - -
38,738 - 2,785 - - - L
456 - 9,472 - - - -
9,035 - 420 - - - -
2,894,043 - 14,200 o - - 188,305
594,560 . - - - - - -
- - - - - 74,457 -
3442 N 4,085 150,178 - 118.638 L7143 287 32,780
5,888,850 4,088 2,310,837 . 874,384 42,143 74,724 245,956
(1,207 ,680) 2,064 (150,233) . {1,329) 5,750 1,175,438 (33,503}
- - - - - (610,000) -
- 5,000 45,708 - - 129,448 -
- . - {41,985) - - - -
- . - - - (507,107} -
. 5,00 3788 - - (687,65 1) -
(1.207,680) 7.084 {146,511} ’ {1,329) 5,750 187,778 {33,503)
2,031,401 ' . 8,261 737,970, + 2,075,642 ' 464,884 2,817,375 249,242
B . - - - (42,186) (7,097}
2,031,401 8,261 737,970 - 2075642 | 464,994 2,775,189 242,145
823,721 % 16326 § LN ] 2074313 ¢ 70744 % 2,562,857 &

-

208,842



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRREKA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE [N FUND BALANCE {DEFICIT) (Contiued)
' GOVERNMENTAL FUNDs |
' ¥Ysar Ended Junu 20, 2010
. o TountylClfy Property Caunty Property City Bullding
- Jaif Savings Fund |.ancaster Manor Fund Mental Health Fimnd Weed Control Fund ' Management Fund Mansgement Fund Malntenance Fund.
{053) - {DB1} (©83) . {054) {065) (088) {067)
REVENUES ' . i B . . .
Taxes S 018§ - 3 2,824,261 § 101 410 % - -
Gharges for Services ’ - 1,393,113 403,952 27,301 '2,705,405 6,328 306,837
Federal Receipts . - - . 214,851 - N - R
Stale Ravenuss - - - - 3,798,783 - - - -
Madleald/MedicaraMRO Reimbursements . - . 12,629,582 T 2,779,748 - - - -
Lleense, Faes and Rental Income : : 67,500 - - - 1,384,686 B
interest Income . . 30,710 - - - 224 - -
Intergovernmental . . : 1 B 36,420 138,055 - - -
Other Incoma . . B - - 130,220 34,900 . 248 {1,418) i7
Tola! Reventies A - 31,729 14,080,195 10,186,015 - 200,368 - 2,708,287 1,380,585 308,854
EXPENDITURES ) s . ., )
Wages and Benefits .o - 8,761,147 7.835,771 224,383 2,944,841 . 542,575 -
Cily/County Shared . ' - - - - - 2566 2,379
Contraciual ' . - 768,281 . 1482070 42,142 272,133 222,348
Supplies L - 765,920 - 104,388 11,004 - 36,280 7,829
Trave! - 11.885 18,086 3,285 - 314 -
Utliltles . . 169,709 84,776 5,847 - 381,122 28,017
Advertlsing ) . - 5149 20,378 3,887 - -
Insurance - 15430 83,820 2,850 12,898 -
Rental . ’ . - - 7.472 410,723 - - 2,007 21,470
Repalrs and Maintenance . - 67,264 20,843 1,785 - 94,838 8,917
Capital Quttays : K - - - - - - -
Interest ' - i - - - - - - -
Qther | - 5,298,394 . 288,700 34,548 hd (663) -
Totat Expenditures . : - 15,861,731 10,318,361 329,722 2,951,025 1,344,078 288,061
(DEFIGIENGY) EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES o 31,729 1,771,538) (132,346) (129,354) (244,738) 45519 17,093
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .
Dabl Payments | - - - - - -
Bain on Sale of Cuplial Assets : X . - - - - - - -
Operaling Tranafers In o B 500,000 {®) 138,067 - 73453 | -
Operating Tranafers Out . PR - - - - - - -
Transfars n - Public Building Commission . - - - - - - -
Transfers Qut - Cily of Lincoln . - - - . < - - -
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) . " - 500,000 () 138,067 - 73493 -
CHANGE 1N FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) o os1,728 (1,271,538} {122,348) 8,713 (244,738} 118,012 17,803
FUND BALANCE {DEFICIT) - BEGINNING OF THE YEAR, =
AS PREVIOUSLY STATED ) . 1,846,251 1,834,212 1,787,303 55813 289,779 (85,697) 336,514
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT : - - (81,603} - - - - -
FUND BALANGE {DEFICIT) - BEGINNING OF THE YEAR, AR RESTATED 1,946,251 1,834,212 4,705,700 55,813 288,779 {85,897 338,514
FUND BALANCE - END OF THE YEAR . ) 1,977,980 $ GEZ,B876 % ', - 1,673,354 $ 4,526 45,041 $ 33,318 354,407
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEERASKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF RET ASSETS (DEFIGHT)

«B0n

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2010
) i " INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
. i Workers' Compensation  Other-Selfdnsurance Loss
: Total Lass Fund Fund Group Insurance Fund

ASSETS {Memot Only) {912) {013) {014}

CURRENT ASSETS . )
+Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,928,869 . § . . 968.88¢ - § 206,289 % 4,763,700
Certificates of Deposit 149171 131,974 17,187 -
Investments . 198,694 . 175,965 22979 -
Dua From Other Govammenia! Agencies - I - -
interest Receivable: : 2,703 2,321 .\ 382 -

Total Current Asssts 6,279,637 1,279,140 246,787 4,753,700
5,279,837 § 279040 246,797 § 4,783,709

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS {DEFICIT}

CURRENT LIABILITIES ) -
Accounts Payable 31089 § 25562 % 250 § 3,867
Claims Liahility 1,096,437 B 539,287 557,150 -
Accriled Salatles 7,085 7,098 - -

Totat Current Liabilities 1,135,621 571,944 £59,710 3,867

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES ‘

Accrued Compensated Alisences 33,007 33007 - -
Total Leng-Term Llabllitles 33,007 ., 33,007 - - L=
Total Liabilities 1,168,528 604,951 559,710 3,867

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - N - “

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) : .
Unraservad . 5111,169. 674,189 (312,913) 4,749,833

Total Net Assats (Deficit) 5,111,169 674,188 . {312,913) 4,749,833
8,278,637 . §. . 1,279,140 - § 246,797 &

4,763,700



- OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Other

Total Cperating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance
Contractual
Wages and Benefits
Other
Rental -
Suppiies
Total Operat;ng Expensas

Opgrallng Income-(Loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest on Investments
Tolal Ngn-operating Revenues
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

‘ NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR

! LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA

COMBSNING STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN.NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Workers' COmbehsation

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Other Self-lnsurance

~ Total . | Loss Fund Loss Fund -Group Insﬁrahce Fund
{Memorandum Only} {012} {013) {014) ~
$ 11,629,329 § 810,470 - § - 90,732 $ 10,628,127
92,032 -~ - : - ' 92,032
11,621,361 810470 90,732 ) 10,720,159
11,119,389, 22,525 393,324 10,703,550
1,064,912 43,680 . 37,280 974,042
129,345 129,345 - -
67,450 67,450 - -
4,382 4,382 - .
1,307 1,307 - -
12,376,795 . 268,699 430,604 11,677,592
(755,434} gz 541,871 (339.872) - {957,433)
‘ , o
13,725, 7,535 8,190 -
13,725 7,535 6,190 -
(741,708). 549,408 {333,682) (957,433)
5,852‘.51‘8= . 124,783 20,7689 5,707,266
$ o 5,111,109 $ 674,189 § . {312,913} % 4,749,833
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LANGASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA °

COMBINING STATEMENT OF GASH FLLOWS -

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from User Charges
Payments for Employas Indemnity
Payments for Clelms/Insurance
 Met Cash (Used In) Provided By Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIV]TIES
Proceeds from Sale of Investments
Purchase of lnvestmants
Interest Received
Net Cash Providad By Investing Activities

Increase {Dacrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalants ‘

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OF'ERATING INCOME {LOSS} TO NET CASH
{USED IN} PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cperating income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cagh (Used In} .
Providad by Operating Activities: . .
. .Dacrease In Current Assels:
Due From Gther Governmental Agencles
Increase {Decrease) In Gurrent Llabilities:
Accotints Payable
Claims Liability
Accrued Salaries
Accrued Compensated Absences
Net Cash {Used In} Provided By Opsrating Activitlas

PROFPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

. INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
. Workers" Other Self- .
‘Compensation Insurance Loss " Group Insurance
Total .Loss Fund Fund Fund
{Memorandum Only) {012} - {013} {014}
’ $ 12,105,537 s, I349,757 -] a0,73z2 $ 11,665,048
{1,248,856) (237,534) (37,280} {974,042)
(10,976,451) . - {19,878) {250,729} {10,704,844}
(118,770) 92,345 4197,277) {12,838)
1,502,000 1,100,000 402,000 -
(348,085) {307,939) (40,126) -
25,032 18,083 6,960 -
1,178,967 810,124 368,843 .
1,080,197 . 902,469 171,568 113,838)
4,888.673 68,411 34,723 4,767,538
$ 5,020,869 ° § 088,880  § 208288 § 4,753,700
§ (755.434) - $ 541,871 8 (339,872) § (857,433)
944,800 . - . ‘ 544,890
4,647 . 2,847 2,195 ‘ (1,206)
(320,313) (460,713) 140,400 . .
3,896 3,808 - -
: 4734 4,734 . - -
$ . (118770 § 92,345 $ 197,277} % {13,838)
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STATEMENTS OF ACCOUNTABILITY -



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA

COUNTY CLERK
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2010

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS
Recording and Miscellaneous Fees
Occupation Tax
Marriage License Fees
Liquor Licenses
_Total Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS
~ Paid to County Treasurer
Recording and Miscellaneous Fees
~ Occupation Tax :
" Marriage Licensé Fees
Liquor Licenses - -
Total Disbursements

BALANCE ON HAND - end of year
SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year

Cash on Hand
" Total Balance on Hand

-B63 -

50

19,798
13,250
31,785

6,325

71,158

19,798

13,250

31,785

-~ 6325 -
71,158

50

" 50
50



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY

Year Ended June 30, 2010

BALANGE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS
Charges for Services
Total Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS _
Paid to County Treasurer
Documentary Stamp Tax
* Recording Fees '
Non-Filing Fees
~ Paidto State
" Documentary Stamp Tax
- Refunds ‘
* Total Disbursements.

BALANCE ON HAND - end of year

\ SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year
CashoriHand = B
Cash:at Treasurer

Total Balance on Hand

$ 187,159

3,122,654

3,122,654

464,818

11,021,040

4,485

- 1,586,970 -

8,250

3.085.663

$ 224,150

$ 13,693

7§ 224,150



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
CLERK OF THE DISTRICT COURT
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2010

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS, TRUST FUNDS
(including alimony, chi!d-'suppo'rtwand fees)

DISBURSEMENTS, TRUST FUNDS
(including alimony, child support and fees)

" BALANCE ON HAND - end of year -

SUMMA’RY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year
‘CashonHand o '
. CashinBank '
" Investments - :
Total Balance on Hand
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'$ 2288658

7,577,691

7,969,220

$ 1897120

$ 300

'1,33'3,006 :

563823
'$ 1,897,129



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
- COUNTY SHERIFF '
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2010

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year , . ~$ 377,001
- RECEIPTS , . ,
Tax Account - - ’ 229 407
Fee Account : - 813,298
. Attorneys' Trust . o : - 219,699
Vehicle inspection Fees ) : S ’ 138,47'6
Contracts, Grants and Other - 1,420,581
Total Receipts _ B . 2,821,455
' .DISBURSEMENTS S _
- - TaxAccount 7 ' o . - 534,588 .
" Fee Account.- - . S - [ X [~
Attorneys' Trust . .~ . 212472
- Vehicle Ins_pectlon F_ees : | R © 7 138470
Contracts, Grants and Other 1,420,581
" Total Disbursements - 3,124,973
- BALANCE ONHAND -end of year ' : $ 73,483

‘SUMMARY. OF BALANCE ON HAND end of year : :
CashinBank . $ 73,483
Total Balance on Hand B ' _ . $ 73483
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
‘COUNTY ATTORNEY
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY

Yea'r Ended June 30, 2010

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

Total Balance on Hand

- 67 -

$ 81,563
RECEIPTS :
Receipts on Bad Checks 475,429
Coliection Fees 20,830
Unclaimed Property Recelpts 20,241
Interest : 20
.Tota[ Rece|pts : 516,520
, DISBURSEMENTS - 7
Payments on Bad Checks Collected 475,063
Collection fees remltted 1o County Treasurer 20,830
Interest : : 20 _
" Total Disb;frsemehts' , 7485913
BALANCE ON HAND - end of year $ 102,170
SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year .
Cash in Bank _ $ 63447
Certificate of Deposit ' 10,000
Cash-at County Treasurer . 28,723

$ 102,170



" LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA

: WEED CONTROL '
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2010

BA'LANCE ON HAND - beginning of year -

- RECE!PT_SV

DISBURS_EME,NTS ~

BALANCE Oi\f HAND - end of year

| SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year .

_Accounts Receivable
Total Balance on Hand

©.-68-

@$ien

18,927

© 74,203
81,881

31,249

31,249 .

- 31,249



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
CORRECTIONS DEPARTMENT
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2010

BALANCE ON HAND begmnmg of year $ 29,699
RECEIPTS ' ‘
Room and Board : ’ , 16,784
Staie Prisoner Reimbursement : ' 743,467
inmate Fund ' ‘ ' 2.482,196
Commissary Funds , 183,712
Telephone Commissions ' . __— -~ 159,775
Vending Machine Commissions _ - 43,228
Work Release Meals -~ i - . 94138
Workers Commlssaryllndlgent Postage Relmbursement - . 43,535
Department of Justice - : : ' - 90,851
Social Security Reimbursements - - o : 28,600
.- . Miscellaneous =~ . o S 9363
Total Receipts . T o 73,895,649
DISBURSEMENTS , _ , _ :
County Treasurer . - 1,229,741
Inmate Funds - : 2,482,979
_Commissary Vendors | ﬁ 186,951
* Total Disbursements . ' ) - 3,899,671
, BALANCE ON HAND - end of year o - $ . 25677

SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year : :
Petiy Cash \ _ $ 100

Cash in Bank ‘ 25577
Total Balance on Hand - $ 25677
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- LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
' _ ENGINEER
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2010

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS
General Fund
Bridge Fund
- Highway-Fund
Total Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS
General Fund .
" Bridge Fund
Highway Fund
Total Disbursements .

BALANCEON HAND -end of yéag ST
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25
435,709 .
100,754

536,488

25
435,709
100,754

536,488



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
' EXTENSION BOARD
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2010

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year ' : $ 180,822
RECEIPTS , : : :
" 4-H Programs : ' - 10,715
Miscellaneous ' ' ' 18,456
" Room Rentals 6,450
Family Resources , o : , 4,746
Agricultural Programs - 11,096
General Resale , : 3,715
4-H Resale : ' - 5,411
" Horticulture and Forestry ' 60
Total Receipts , - : : - 60,649
DISBURSEMENTS . : ‘ . . : :
M Programs . o . 12517
" Miscellangous . T 0T V21567
Room Rentals : ' L o 4,871
Family Resources ' - ‘ 3,562
Agricultural Programs _ : 8,564
- General Resale ' : 5,264
4-H Resale - ‘_ - 6,764 .
‘Horticulture and Forestry o a 1,379
~ Total Dlsbursements P - .. . 64,488
BALANCE ON HAND - end of year FE . - $ 176,983

- SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year ‘
Cash at County Treasurer N - $ 176,983
Total Balance on Hand ' _ $ 176,983
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
YOUTH SERVICES CENTER
- STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2010

(DEFICIT) BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year $  (256)
RECEIPTS ) . ,
' ~ Petty Cash : o - o277
‘Resident Trust : 20,133
Total Receipts 4 B : 20,410 -
DISBURSEMENTS _ _
Petty Cash ' ' _ _ : 258
Resident Trust ' ‘ ‘ . 20,184
Total Disbursements - 20,442
(DEFICIT) BALANCE ON HAND - end of year - '$  (288)

' SUMMARY OF (DEFICIT) BALANCE ON'HAND - end ofyear " .-

~ Petty Cash . S _ , 3 35 =
“CashinBank - | S ' - (323)
Total (Deficit) Balance on Hand . - $ (288) -
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATFERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT

' "AUDITING STANDARDS -~ '
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON {INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCGIAL -
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FiNANCiAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCEWITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING S TANDARDS

Lancaster County Board of Commissieners
Lincoln, Nebraska

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each-major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Lancaster County, Nebraska (the County) as of and
forthé year ended June 30, 2810, which collectively comprise the County's finafhdial statements

- and have issued our report thereon dated January 28, 2011. We conducted our audit in
- accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

- standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sz‘andaro‘s ;ssuad by -

the Cnmptm!ler General of the Umted States.

internal ‘Cantm Over Firancial Rapmrtmg---

' _in planning and peﬁwmmg our audrt we considered the Countys internal ﬁm‘{roi over financiat
reporting s a basis for designing our audttrng procedures for the purpose of SXpressing ourh_’
.- epinions. on the financial. statemenits, -but not for %he purpose of € expressmg ah ‘epinion_on the =

’ Our considerati ion of internal- cortrol - over ﬁnancza repori;rzg was for the Itmted purpass -

effectiveness of the County's intermal contrg} over financial reparfing. Aceordingly, ‘we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal contral aver financial reporting.

A deficiency in. intemal controf exists when the design or operafion of a <ontrol doss not alfow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, ‘to
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a
deficiengy, -or combination of defieiencies, in intermal control such that thers is a feasonable

pessibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s fmanmal statements wxﬂ nof be prevented
or detezted and corrected ona fimely basis. : '

described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed-to identify all deficiencies
in-internal confrol sver financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
materidl weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal contrel over financial
reporting that we considered to be material weaknasses, as defined above. However, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporiing, described in the
accompanying :schedule of findings and questionad costs as items 2008-2 and 2010-% that we
cansider to be significant deficiencies in internal conirol over financial reporiing. A significant

- deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, that is less severe
~ than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit atienfion by these charged with

WNTERHATIONAL

governance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS {Continued) '

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtalning reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statemerits
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have &
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on {;cxmplrance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingty, we do nol express such an opirion.  The results of our tests disclosad no
instarices of noncompliance or other matters that are required io be reported undsr
Govemnmerit Auditing Siandas’ds :

We ﬁ&f“d certain matters’ that we Teported to the management af the Caunty in a separaie
ietter ﬁa‘{ed 3anu3ry 28, 2@1§

The Gcnmtys ;@spgnses “to. the findings ”zden‘t;ﬁed in our gudit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. W’e feilel m}t audlt the County 5 respcmses
' and accordmgiy, we express ne @p;m@n anthem. : : .

' 3h15 repot is smended solely for the ;n‘;ozma’han and use of tne Board of Commzssmners and
management of the County and the State of Nebrasks and this report s not mtended 1o be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties

BLAND+ Prsspcsms, PLC.
Omaha, Nebraska -
January 286, 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 -
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
, ‘PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
- COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Commissichers
Lancaster County, Nebraska

Comphiance

We have audited Lancaster Counly, Nebraske's {the County) compliance with the types of

compliance raguirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compiiance Supplement that

could have a tirect and material effect on each of its major federal pregrams for the year ended

-June 30, 2010. The County’s major federai programs are dentified in the summary af auditors’

results sec:’éson of the aceompanying schedule of findings and guestibried costs. Compiiance:

with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major
_ federal prdgrams is the res;a@nau'bliify of the County's managemeﬁt Qur responsibiity is to

- express.an mp r’usﬂ an the County =3 aomp!zance based on.our audzt o

We c@nducted our audxt of compliance in acco rciance wzth aud;tmg s;tandards generaliy*
~ accepted in the Uniled States of America) the standards apphcable fo financi al audits contained
in Government Audiing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Urited States; and
OMB Circular A-133. Those standards and OMB Circutar A-133 reguire that we plan and
perfarm the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whethér noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred o above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence. about
the County’'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered negessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasorable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a lega{ defermination of the Cotnty's
: compi:ance wrfh those requxremeﬂis

Ineur mpmnon the County cempted in all matenai raspects with ‘the rec;ulrementa referred o
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major fedaeral programs for the
yeay eaded Juns 30, 2010 : :

internal Control Over Com pitance

The management ofthe County is respensible for establishing and-maintaining effective internal
. tontrol over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, .contracts, and grants
- mpplicable o federal programs. In planning and perferming our audit, we considersd the
County's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and
material effect o a major federal pregram to détermine the auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance and t6 test and report -on internal controls over’
compiiance in accordance with OMB-Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion onh the effectiveness of intermal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's iternal control over compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER '
COMPLIANCE iN ACCORDAMCE WITH OMB GIRCULAR A-133

(Contmuecf)

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control

. over compliance does net allow management or emptoyees, in the normal course of pérfarming

their assigned functions, io prevent or detect apd correct noncompliance with a type of

compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness ip internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal contrel over
carapliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncempliance with a fyps
of compliance reguirement of a federal program will not be prevenied or detected and corracted,
on .a timely basis.

Our consideration of infernal contrel over compliance was for the limited purpose described in

the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal

control over compliance that might be -deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material

. weaknesses. We did not idenfify any deficiencies in internal oontral aver c;ornp iance that we

ccrnsrdﬂ{t@ be material weaknessas as. defined abc}ve

T -Thts tehort 'fs.énfended solely for the ';-nf.orm'at{-on and us.e of the Bc;ard of Commissioners and -

management of the County's federal and state awarding agencies, and pass-through entities

- and is pot intended to be and shoujd not be. used by anyone other than these specified pariies.

BER

1HTEAMAT EORAL

fSWlﬁ% ﬂfﬁsocw(f“zfs }0 C.

Omaha, Nebraska -
January 28, 2011
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA :
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS |
Year Ended June 30, 2010 )

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

- FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
Type of auditor's report issued: | Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

‘Material weakness(es) identified: Yes No X

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not bonsidered_
1o be a material weakness(es}): _ - Yes X .No

' Non'complliénce material to the financial statéh’iénts noted: Yes ' No X

-MAJOR FEDERAL 'AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT - ’
- internai control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified:- - Yes_ - No X

_ _Signifi_t:ant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered _ _
to be a material weakness(es): : - ~ Yes . No X

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for- major programs: o Unquaiified

Audit 'ﬁnding's disclosed that are required to be reported in L
accordance with 510(a) OMB Circular A-133: Yes = No X
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: LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULI: OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Com:mueu)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT FINDINGS (Contlnued)

' MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDET (Contmued)
The only program tested for compliance was the Child Support Enforcement Program (CFDA

No. 83.5663) which is funded by grant disbursements passed-through the Nebraska Depariment
of Social Services as an agency of the U,S. Department of Health and Human Services. -

Threshoid used for distinguishing between Typé A and B programs: ' ' ~ $300,000

Ia Lancaster County considered 1o be a low-risk auditee: “Yes X No
B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

SIG NIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

- 2008-2 Condltlon The responsnbul:ty for the preparation of financial statements resides with the _ o

" management .of the County. Management is fully capable of preparing its financial
- statements but faced time constraints durmg the cufrent f:scal year which preciuded the 7
preparatian of the finandial statements

" -Criteria; Starement on. Auditing Standards Number 112 suggests that management
prepare its financial statements in order to prevent or detect matenat misstatements,
inciuding footnote dlsclosures :

Effect' Matenal dlsclosures and c!ass'ificatio'n misstatemnents may not be detected.

Recommendatlon Management of the County should prepare the fmanmal statemenis
in the future. : . .

Response: The County understands the responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements resides with them. The main obstacle is the limited number of staff in the
Budget and Fiscal Office.” Lancaster County will have dtscussmns to determine what
options are available and possible,

2010-1 Condition: It was determined that the County did not reconcile transfers. between related
entities during the fiscal year. Additionally, the County did not capitalize a- transfer-in of
capital outlay incurred by the Lancaster County Public Building Commission and
required to be transferred at 50% 1o the County. :

Criteria:  Transfers in and out between related entities should be recorded and

reconciled and the capital assets listing should be reviewed and reconciled to the
general ledger on a regular basis. ‘ :
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT (Contlnued}
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENC]ES (Continued)

Effect: Ssgn:ﬂcant transac:"tlons may not be captured if transfers in and out are not
reconciled on a regular basis and capital assets that have been transferred in may not
be properly recorded or recorded at all.

Recommendation: We recommend the County reconcile transfers between related
_entities on a regular basis, preferably monthly. Additionally, the County should
reconcile and capitalize capital outlays transferred from the Lancaster County Public
Building Commission. Finally, they should review the capital outlay accounts for the
Building Commission and reclassify any items not meeting the criteria for capitalization

to a repairs and-maintenance account. Subsequent fo this issue being identified, the . -

- County has worked towards capitalizing the transferred in capital outlay.

Response: The., County agrees with the recommendatlon and will reconcile and
V_capltahze thlS transfer in the future. :

C FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD

None
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_LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

WEAKNESS NOTED

- The responsibility for the prepatation of

financial statements resides with the -

management of the County.

The County did not recencile the: capital

‘assets listing to the general ledger
during the fiscal year resulting . in
- numerous adjustrients. o

It was determined that the County did
not reconcile transfers between related
entities. '

4.  The computer system in place s facking
the capability to determine what

«~-comprises cash and . invesimenis

belonging to the County by fund.

. The County did not capitalize a transfer-
" in of capital outlay incurred by the

Lancaster - County Pubiic Building

Commission and ‘required fo be

transferred at 50% to the County.
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' CURRENT STATUS

. The finding remains as of June 30, -

2010.

. The finding is closed.

. The finding -has been cembined

with the significant deficiency

identified as.2010-1.

. The finding is closed.

5. - The finding remains as of June 30,

2010.



EXHIBIT

-

Kerry P. Egg_jan

From: Sue L. Eckley _

Sent: Wednesday, March 23, 2011 10:25 AM

To: Kerry P. Eagan

Cc: Dean B. Settle; Judi Tannahill; Sue L. Eckley
Subject: KMBT25020110323101105.pdf
Attachments: KMBT25020110323101105.pdf

Hi Kerry -

I just received this form from State Farm. This vehicle belongs to Community Mental Health. There is an estimate of

repairs to Miracle Workers in the amount of $1,897.63. Interestingly enough, State Farm's adjuster said the vehicle is a

total loss and-they are paying us $2,475.00 for the vehicle. Community Mental Health can get this repaired and have
money left over so State Farm will send us a check for $2,475.00 and we retain the vehicle.

Could you please have Deb sign this form and I can fax it back to State Farm and they will issue and send us the check.
They said the vehicle was a total loss due to high miles (158,783}

Thanks, Kerry

Sue
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6102 Mileage 68.75 - -
6130 Mileage 359.34 313.00 171.56 ('/30 /,?.0 /0 - #‘5’/ / 179. G ‘?
6150 Mileage 582.10 1,121.74 126.08 ,
6160  Mileage - 52.00 -
6180  Mileage - : 25.00
6210 Mileage 428.28 309.20 178.00
6220 Mileage 44,95 - -
6230  Mileage 153.86 73.36 -
6250  Mileage 417.00 672.70  236.00
6251  Mileage 4,020.24 2,971.00 2,011.92
6252  Mileage 762.42 476.50 -
6253 Mileage 438.50 647.18 149.50
6270 Mileage 341.97 33.80 112.13
6450 Mileage 990.97 987.85  578.20
6451  Mileage 3,488.36 3,527.45 3,403.53
6454  Mileage 865.14 229.25 106.50
6455  Mileage 2,220.44  2,966.83 986.53
6456  Mileage 38.89 33.00 50.00
6480  Mileage 81.73 72.60 -
6494  Mileage 152.10 158.40 158.00
6520 Mileage 4,671.32 3,524.27 1,319.62
6530  Mileage - 521.00 70.00
6640 Mileage - - - 153.00
6710 Mileage 1,214.17 557.00 89.60
6760 Mileage 71.50 121.00 -
6780  Mileage 145.93 66.00 -
6940 Mileage - 258.50 -
6943  Mileage 908.80 - -
6945 Mileage 1,799.52 1,119.24 -
6946  Mileage - 20550 1,612.80
6951 Mileage - - 1,866.00
7030 Mileage 2,268.24  1,881.50 260.10
7330  Mileage 1,767.57 2,508.95  831.98
7510 Mileage 1,509.68 948.61 1,018.00
7550 Mileage 713.54 - -
7551 Mileage 29.25 - -
7552  Mileage 54.87 226.61 -
7554  Mileage 103.30 236.23 -
7561  Mileage - 58.30 -
330.00 - -
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Mileage
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7571
7840
7841
7843
7845
7847
7850
7851
7852
7857
7858
7864
7866
8030
8370
8427
8430
8455
9031
9132
9135

9140

Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage
Mileage

1,322.28
417.50
68.20
124.84
5,327.66
69.46
183.04
799.01
246.40
370.67
1,859.65
7,501.87
515.64
641.43

29.98
1,382.45
261.63

4,454 97
420.76
269.17
221.90

29.15
171.75
605.28

6,962.50
672.00
468.41
640.20
117.00
210.50

83.20
30.00
30.00

1,458.00
355.85

2,246.41
294.87
24.00
138.37
11.50
5,307.98
473.00
264.50
55.00

272.00

225.00



History of Mileage Reimbursement Rates

Effective Date Rate

01-01-2002 $0.365
01-01-2003 $0.360
01-01-2004 $0.375
01-01-2005 $0.405
09-01-2005 $0.485
01-01-2006 $0.445
01-01-2007 | . $0.485
01-01-2008 | ' $0.505
07-01-2008 $0.585
01-01-2009  $0.550
01-01-2010 $0.500

01-01-2011 $0.510



 LANCASTER County

Vehicle Cost by Policy Term

03/15/2011

PI/UNICO

UNICO Group, Inc.

* Average annual vehicle cost - all units

2006-2011
Average
2010-2011 Department # of Units Annual Premium Vehicle Cost
All Others 299 67,730 227
Sheriff 73 52,822 724
372 $120,552 * $324
Average
2009-2010 Department # of Units Annual Premium Vehicle Cost
All Others 290 65,829 227
Sheriff 72 48,938 - 680
362 $114,767 * §317
Average
2008-2009 Department # of Units Annual Premium Vehicle Cost
All Others 285 62,324 219
Sheriff 70 48,490 693
355 $110,814 * $312
Average
2007-2008 Department # of Units Annual Premium Vehicle Cost
All Others 254 61,008 240
Sheriff 67 49,582 740
321 $110,590 * §345
Average
2006-2007 Department # of Units Annual Premium Vehicle Cost
All Others 244 62,127 255
Sheriff 66 51,422 779
310 5$113,549 * 5366




Couhty Vehicles - Yearly Insurance Coverage

Private Passenger
Trailers .
_Non-Licensed;
Heavy Trucks
| Tractors

. Sherift

‘Pickups
Va_n'sﬂ?li__s

Plows

Boat

Vehicle Type = Number

2
01 , 107
02 40
03 70
04 : 32
05 : 19
06 55
07 : 69
08 | 29
09 )

BT ' 1

446
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Executive Summary
In January 2609, Lancas.ter County implemented an early screening and assessment
process. The goal of this pilot project was to ensure consistent processing of juvenile offenses,
especially for very youné offenders, and to ensure that youth were matched to the most
appropriate early intervention. The Juvenile Justice Institute was invited to evaluate the
effg_:ctiveness of this early intv;‘-:rvention. Little is known about the effect this project has had on
official juvenile court processing of youth, so another imﬁortant question is how this early
process has impacted the overall number of youth entering the Lancaster County juvenile justice
system. To evaluate thé overall effect of the early screening process, we examined: 2) the
process itself, 2) data on youth referred to the early screening process, and 3) trends i Lancaster
County’s- Juvenile justice system. | |
We 'anaiyzed three aspects of &1e process itself including: how long it takes a case
to progreés fhrough the early assesément program, the assessment insfrument utilized, and legal
aspects related to this intervention. One important finding is that this early intervention is not
available to all Lancaster County youth. Another key finding is that often the prosecuting
attorney’s deciston did not coincide with the Assessment Specialist’s recommendation. Most
 importantly, we found that this early intervention did not increase the number of youth entering
the juvenile justice system in Lancaster County; nor did it increase the number of younger
children being brought into the system. Trend data indicate that as Lancaster County becomes ~ -
more reliant on altermative programs like the early assessinent program, the number of youth
ofﬁciaﬂy processed through the courts has_. declined. This trend has not been consistently
downward, and has fluctuated from year to year, so Lancaster County should remain vigilant and

reexamine this baseline data in a few years.



The‘Impact of Juvenile Justice ?roce&sing
Recent research on the juvenile justice system indicates that official p%ocessing_ of é
juvenilé law violation may be the least effective meah;; of rehabilitafing Juvenile offenders. The
Campbell Collaboration, an international research network, recently completed a metzi—analysis
- of 29 juvenile justice studies. In this study they set out to compare outcomes for youth who were
“officially processed” through juvenile coust, versus those who were diverted from the system to |
other services or were released without any requrements (Caﬁpbell 2010). ;i}fﬁciai processing
includes “charging” the case In juvenile court, adjudication and formal probation. The feseatch
quéstion the Campbéli Initiative sought to answer was wWhether _formai processing of juvenile
offenses reduces subsequent acts of delinquency. This .massive resegrch project examined 7,304
Juvenile records and 29 different studies over a 35 year period. Although the results were not
uxﬁfoﬁn aCT08S eaé_h of the 29 studies, the findings are startling: processin_g a juventile thmugh
formal juvenile court proceedings appears to result in later acts of delinquency. “Rather than
providing a public safety benefit, processing a juvenile through the system appears to have a
negative or backfire effect” (Campbell 2010, pg 38). |
In addition to research regarding effectiveness, alternatives to the formal juvenile justice:
system are almost always preferred for ecéﬁomic TEASOnS, 48 long as community safety is
maintained. While the Campbell Review supported alternatives to formal processing, it did not
support a policy of diverting youth who would not otherwise have been processed. In other.
words, these researchers were not in favor of diverting alf youtﬁ, but only yoﬁth who needed
mtervention. A critical question that must be addressed when evaluating a new divérsionary
technique must be whether juveniles are being brought into the systexﬁ unnecessanly. According

to the Annie E. Casey Foundation, “behavioral research has proven that children and adolescents



are %ar less able than adults to gauge risks and consequences, conifrol impulses, handle stress, and -
resist peer pressure” {Annie Casey Foundation website). Developmental experts agree that
most young offenders will céase any lawbreaking tendency as part of the normal maturation
process. It is important therefore to clearly establish which youth require an intervention rather
than intervening every time a youth acts out. The later approach ends up drawing youth into the
- system who might not have ever been filed on; a practical problem known as “net widening.” In
light of himited resources ami demonstrated research regarding negative outcomes, we start this
report with the assumption that unnecessary formal processing of juveuniles should be avoided at
all cost. |
Section I Lancaster County’s Early Assessment Process
In January 2009, Lancaster County adopted a pre-diversion, early-assessment process
designed 1o screen out 1o-w-risk, misdemeanor juvenile law offenders. Collaborative planning for -
this project included representatives fror Juvenile Diversion, Juvenile Probation, the Pablic
Defender’s Office, the City and County Attomeys” Offices, private and non-profit providers and
the }’uveﬁi}e Detention facility. The goal of this collaborative undertaking was to identify, very
early in the juvenile proc;ess, which youth require further intervention and whicﬁ youth have
sufficient community supports to be diverted away from official processing without further
intervention. A ﬁnique aspect of this project is that is it a creative solution that required relatively
few resources to implement. The project involves two staff who work closely with the
prosecuting attorney to assess youth with minor law violations. One staff member collects
mnformation on the youtﬁ’s current offeﬁse and conducts a background cﬁeck fot prior offenses.
The case is then sent to an Assessment Specialist who attempts to complete an interview with the

youth and family. The Specialist interviews the family seeking more detailed information about



- the stability of the youth and family in order to gauge his or her ability to refrain from future
delinquent acts. Prior to examining data on youth that are diverted uéiﬁg this pre-diversion
process, we address three important factors related to the process itself: 1) case processing time;

2) the assessment instrument ufilized; and 3) legal issues related fo this infervention.

Case Processing Time

In Lincoln/ Lancaster County, when a youth comumnits a law violation, data regarding that
offense is-entered into the Lincoln Police Department’s ﬂata system by the F amily Crimes -
Department. This process majr_ take 3 days to 3 weeks because it is reliant on one individual. If
that person takes a day off, the process is postponed. On average, é case is entered within ten
days of the date the offense was committed. The case is then photocopied and sent to the Couﬁty
Attorney’s office to.be entered inito their data system and so that a determmation may be made
on whether the youth is eligible for diversion. If the youth app;ears 1o be eligible, the case is
then referred to the Assessment Specialist, who attempts to contact the family by calling the
phone mumber listed on the packet of informatio_n ot citation. The original planning documents
for this eéﬂy assessme‘nt process'indicate that the Assessment Specialist should “pick-up tickets
from the Justice Center and conduct the YLS Shortened Assessment on all ncm~1odge_d tickets for
youtiﬁ ages 12-17 Wiﬂ'lil;l 24 hours or less, if possible” (aséessment meeting notes). This quick of
a fesp%mse time has not been implemented as envisioned. On'average, the Assessment Specialist
currently makes first contact with the family 38.4 days from the date the youth committed the
offense. Much of this delay occurs in the processing of the physical p&perw’éﬂ: and police

1eport.



A number of researchers have documented tﬁai timely processing of juvenile offenses .is
an important aspect of juvenile accountability. If weeks go by from the time a report by law |
enforcement is-made, often the youth and fatﬁiiy believe that the system has forgotten abcut. the
event, or that it is 5;1 minor offense that the community is not concerned about. Boyd, Huss and
Myers (2008) found that lengthy case processing abates the degree to which a youth feels
responsible for his or her behavior. Other researchers point out cognitive development as an
expianﬁtion for why timely processing is so critical: “Juveniles are typically short sighted and do ‘
not make clear connections between actions at one particular point in fime and consequences at
another” (Schmidt, Réppucci & Woolard 2003). Despite technological advances,
communication with the youth and family about a juvenile oﬂ‘ense continues tb take weeks or
months to occur. The days when law enforcement would escort a child ho.me' t0 receive |
consequences wifthin hours may no 10':¢1ger be feasible, but research indicates that a prompt
response is an important part of juvenile accoﬁntabiﬁtyn

_ The Nebraska Youth Screen (NYS)

Another important aspect of this process is ensuring that the instrament used to screen
youth is valid and reliable. The Assessment Specialist currently screens youth using the
Nebraska Youth Screening (NYS) tool. This instrument is an adaptation of the Youth Level of
Service (YLS) that wés developed by Dr. Brad Bogue of Justice Systems Assessment and
Traming (J-SAT). The NYS is 2 shorter pre-screening tool used by agencies to quickly
distinguish low-risk youth from high-risk youth; it is used in lieu of the full YLS assessment.
This ool appears fo bé sffective for quickly capturing a youth’s potential score on the full YLS.
Researchers have demomﬁated that youth who score between zero to six (low risk) in the NYS

will most likely also score low m the YLS assessment {Bogue, Woodward & Jopln, 2005).



Although the YLS/CMI is fairly wéli established, comparatively little research has been
conducted on the NYS to determine whether it is an effective tool for predicting future
&eiinquency. Consequently, we examiﬁed the tool that it was édapted from to access its validity.
The NYS was ad@ted from the Youth Level of Service/Case Management Inventory |
(YLS/CMI), an assessment tool that gauges juventle 6ffenders’ risks and needs and predicts the
likelthood of their future delinquency. The Y.LSAderived from the Level of Service Inventory
Revised {LS I-R}, a standardized risk assessment for adult offénders created by Andrews and
Bonta (Thompson & Pope, 2005; Bechtel, Lowenkamyp & Latessa, 2008). Tﬁere are a handful
of studies that demonstrate the predictive validity of the YLS/CMI. Bechtel, Lowenkamp and
Latessa (2007) examined the relationship Between recidivism and YLS/CMI scores by assessing
4,482 cases where juveniles were serving both community-based and institutional sentences.
They chose these divergent settings to determine whether the tool was truly effective in
identifying different risk levels. Their findings indicate that the YLS/CMI is effective at

_predicting juvenile recidivism for youth in both community settin@ and institutional setfings.
A smaller study conducted iﬁ England also demonstrated the predictive validity of the
YLS/CMI. Rennie and Dolan (2010) assessed a sample of 135 detained male juveniles with
. behavioral problems. Théy followed them for one year after their release. They.found that the
juveniles that scored high on the YLS were ten times more likely to recidivate, and that ninety
four percent of the high-scoring youth re~offended within the first year of release. Several other
stt-ldies also ;:howed predictive validity and usefulness of identifying pffende;s’ needs but the
level of predictive validity was relatively moderate compared to the aforementioned studies

(Onifade, Davidson, Livsey, Turke, Horton & Makinowsk et al., 2008; Onifade, Davidson &



Campbell, 2009). In sﬁm, the NYS is likely a reliable predictor of future delinquency, but
: Lancas;er County may wish to conduct f\xmre conﬁrmatmjy research in this area.
| Legal Aspects of the Process’

In addition to the timing and the tool utilized, it is also itn_portant that an individual’s
legal rights are respected. For instance, if this program allows youth the opportunity to avoid
formal processing, that opportunity should be afforded to all eligible youth within the
jurisdiction. Conversely, if pre'uscrcening mereasing the likelthood that youth will be pulled mnto
the juvenile justice system, we must be aware of that impact as well.

There are ét least two groups of youth who do not appear to be part of the current
assessmuent process: 1) youth whose citations go through the City Attorney and 2) youth who are

. state wards. This comparison group allows us 1o conduct at least an initial assessment of
whether the process increases the likelihood that a juvenile will have charges filed in court.
However, we first turn our attentio,nrto the process 1tself and: the question of why some youth are
not incleded in this early assessment process.

Youth who vioiate. a municipal ordinance and are age 16 or oider_ gem_araﬂy have their
case handled by the Lincoln City Attorney. Although the City Attomey was involved in some of
the planning meetings, at present their office doeé not utilize the carly assessment process. The
City Attorney’s office makes the determination to 1) file; 2) dismiss or 3) refer a youth to.
diversion based_upon the juvenile’s current offense, type of violation, an& prior history. One
potential concern is that youth processed thfough the City Attormey are not afforded the same
opportunity to informally address the law violation without using their opportunity to complete
diversion. Since the early assessment has been in existenice, 590 youth havé been referred to

juvenile diversion from the Lincoln City Attorney, so 590 youth were not allowed the



opportunity to go throngh this screening process. Although these youth were offereci diversion,
the juvenile justice community should consider whether the differential process is equitable. As
discussed in Section 1 of this report, the City Attorney has also experienced an increase in
referrals to juvenile diversion while the County Attorney has experienced dramatic. decreases.
One of the reasons for the decline in County Attorney referrals may be the use of the early
assessment process.
Anether group of youth excluded from the process includes youth who are stéte wards.
Data collected by the Assessment Specialist indicates that in 4.3% of the cases referred to the
early assessment program, or 54 cases, the youth who committed the offense was identified as a
state ward. in each of ﬁaose cases, assessments were not offered or conducted due to the youth’s
legal status of state ward. As we will see a little 1atér in this report, data collected on the
outcome of the case further indicates that ﬂlose youth are more likely to have charges filed on the
oﬁ‘ense than other youth. When state war&s are compared to non-state wards that did not
complete the assessment process, state wards appear to be at least twice as Eikeiy-to have the
_charge(s) filed in court. Although there are a nmnﬁer of factors influencing the determination of
whether or not to file chafges, the juvenile justice community may want to discuss the policy of
excluding state wards, and decide whether early assessment should be available fo all youth or
whether it would be duplicative of services state wards already reoei{re. 'Ccmﬁmﬁication with
youth who are state wards may require a policy change that the County Attomey acting along
capnot mal_ie, and may only be feasible if the Department of Health and Human Services agrees
to such communiéaﬁon. In a very few cases, an assessment could not be co-mpiéted because the
Assessment Specialist could not determine what language was spoken in the home in order fo

obtain a translator. In three cases an assessment was not completed due to a language barrier.
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These limited situations should be discussed to determine if there are other solutions, s;) that
‘ juveniles are never excluded from the proceés due to language. |
This leads us to a fimal consideration and question l;egarding legal consequences. Isitin
the best interests of the juvenile for prosecutors to have aéditi.onal mformation prior to making
the decision to charge the case? If the prosecuting attorney learns extra legal mformat_i(;n, that is.
information outside the legal process; does it increase the odds that that offense will be filed in |
court? Does it draw youth further into the juvenile justice system? One perception is that is
does. In some cases, members of the legal community appear to be advising parents agamst -
engaging in this process. One parent stated that he had “an attorney and was ad\.rised not o
answer any qﬁestions or give any information.” Another lawyer indicated that *he would not
allow contact with farnily or youth” (Screening notes). Consequently, the Aésassment Specialist
did not complete an interview and did net médke recommendations. Another family would only
allow the youth to complete an interview under the supervision of their lawyer. In yet another
instance, the “father expressed hesitancy to answer questions partway thmugh the interview but
- continued because he thought it would help his son.” According to the Specialist’s notes, the
parent “asked where the information went (fo county aitorney, diversion, or probation).”
Naturally, many parents are protective of their children and unsure of the legal implications of
speaking with the Assessment Specialist. Some expiess concemn over the placement of the
Specialist, who is not an official employee of the county. One parent declined participation
because the caller ID did not indicate it was a call from the county attorney. He expressed
concem m-fer whether the call was legitimate, bﬁt also echoed the concerns mentioned above
about over getting his child into “more trouble” by sharing information. These are questions that

have important legal implications for juveniles involved in the program. After addressing the

i1



| question of Whethg:r this process increases the likelihood tSat a case will be charged, we will
address possible policy solutions under final recommendations.
SectioanI : Youth Referred fbr Early Ass‘essment

The next section of this report contains an analysis of data collected by the Assessment
Specialist during tﬁe first eighteen months of the program. In the first quarter of this project -
(January 15, 2009 10 Mé.rch 31, 2009), some data fields were not collected. Incomplete or
missing data 15 noted n each section; Basic demographic data is available in each of the 1,254
. cases referred during the first éighteen manthé of this project. This includes: the offense
- referred, the agé of the vouth, the gender, race and languages spoken at home. The Assessment |
Specialist also documented her atterapts to contact the youth and family, the NY'S score, the
decision of the prosecuting aftomey and other notes regarding the case.

Refervals Compared to Assessments Conducted

A total of 1,254 yeﬁﬁh were referred fo this program from January 15, 2009 to June 30,
2010. The NYS was completed on 906 of the youth referred, 61' 72% of the total cases. An
assesSIent was not completed in 343 instances, or 27% of the time. The primary reason that an
assessinent is not completed is because the Assessment Specialist was unable to make contact
with the youth and family. The most common reasons a youth was not contacted was due to
inaccurate phone or contact information; the second most common reason ';:vas due to the youth/
family not retum.iﬁg éalis, despite muitiplie atiempts by the Assessment Specialist. If a youth
does not complete this process, does it count against them? Genezally, the lack of assessment did
not increase the likelihood that a petition would be filed: only 16% of the cases where no contact |

was made resulted in chargés being filed by the County Attomey (n=55). Although it occurs in
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only a small number of cases (n=5), when the County Attorney requests a case be retumed to

their office, charges were much more likely to be filed (charges were filed 80% of the time).

e bary

Percent of cases filed when an
Assessment is not completed

343

120 116
16% 8% 10% 5 80%
total cases multiple  inaccurate  Youthisstate prosecuting

- attempts contact info ward atty req hack

Table 1: Cases and Percent Filed

.Bzmogmphics of Youth Served by this Program

While planning documents indicate that the program mﬁy have originally been intended
for young offenders, the ages of youth referred to this program range from 7 to 18. The average
age of youth referred to this program is 13.5. Prior to the implementation of this program, the
Lincoln Police Department’s Youth Aid (YA) generally handled cases of youth ages 7-11 who
had misdemeanor citations, The practice-was to lecture and release. During early planning |
meetings, some felt that the lecture and release approach may not have a significant im;ﬁact on
deterring youth from future illegal endeavors, and there were concerns about consistency: “one
officer may lecture and release while another one may chose to cite the youth” (8-15-08 planning
notes). In addition to improving consistency, another goal of the assessment process was to
identify youth who could benefit from early intervention that might help them avoid later

delinguency.
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Age

An important concern that juvenile justice researchers have with early identification is the
unintended consequences. Beyond nét—widening, some fear that early assessment will bring |
younger children into the formal system. Data collected during the first eighteen months of
implementation indicates that this does not z;tppear 10 bé occurring i Lancaster County. In 2008,
_ " Youth Aid officials estimated that there were roughly twelve youth a month (under the age of 12)
who could benefit from the early assessment process. Si_nce the early assessment proce;ss began,
193 youth under the age of 12 have been referred-to this program. Because this averages -to
roughly 11 youth per month, it does not appéar that youth are being referred at younger ages. An
important related queétion, however, is whether early assessment pushes youth deeéer into the
system by ident_ifying them as “high risk.” Of the 193 youth under the age of twelve, 72%, or
139 yoﬁth, completed the NYS with scores ranging from 0'to 21. Youth in this age range had an |
average score of 5.2. |

This is a relatively high score and sigﬁiﬁcaﬁt when examined againsi scores of youth in _
the oldest age groups. NYS scores appear highest among the youngest offenders coming into
the system, and diminish with increases in age. For example, a total of 483 youth ages 1210 14
were referred through the early assessment process. Of the youth ages 12 to 14, 77%, or 370
youth, completed the N'YS with scores ranging from 0 to 20, and an average score of 4.5. These
scores are significantly higher than youth in the fifteen and ‘oider age group. A total of 229 youth
older than 15 were referred to the Assesément Specialist. However, we must keep in mind fhat |
older youth are often processed through the City Attorney so this data may not accurately reflect
citations for this age group. Of youth older than 15, 65%, or 1#8 completed thé NYS, with

scores ranging from 0 to 14,-and an average score of 2.8. The available data informs us that
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younger offenders are indeed being identified by the NYS as “higher risk.” The data thus far
-+ also indicate that fewer youth are coming into this system than before the start of the early
assessment process. [t appears therefore that the program is identifying younger age offenders in
nieed of services, without ixacreasing the number of youth ages 7 to 11 being brought into the
system. The number and percent of cases charged for youth under 12 years of age will be
addressed in mﬁre detail in Section 11T of this report.

Gender

Overall, male youth are slightly over-represented in the referrals to this program when
comﬁaréd to the poimlation of Lancaster County youth (5 1% male), accounting for 63% of the
youth referred, as well as 63% the youth assessed. Female youth account for 37% of referrals
(and 37% assessments completed), compared to 49% of the juvenile popilation. Average scores
on the NYS are also very similar for male and female youth, with males averaging 4.2 and
females averaging 4.4 on the NYS. Youth who scored higher than a “10” on the NYS
. Assessment followed a similar gender brea.kdowni_ 59% are male compared to 41% féma}c:.
(Gender differences do appear, however, when younger offenders are examined: for instance,
80% of referrals for youth under age 12 are for males (1i-154), and the percentages steadily
climbs to 100% of all referrals for ages 8 and younger {n=7).

There are also some minor differences in scores when data is examined by race: 72% of
youth who scored a “3” or lower on the YLS/CMI were white youth. This drops to 62% for
youthﬁhe score between “4 and 10,” and remains at 62% for yputh who score higher than a
“10” on the NX}S. Over all the tyj_::es of offenses vary significantly and are not highiy correlated

1o elevated NY'S scores.
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Youth Assessed vs. Prosecutorial Discretion

Once the Assessment Specialist makes a recommendation, the County Attomey reviews

- the information and makes a determination based upon all of the information available. We
analyzed the recommendation of the Assessment Specialist a-md compared it to the decision
réﬁdéred by the prosecuting attorney. Because the Specialist may recommend items that the
prosecutor cannot feasibly implement, we compiled those recomimendations te match the choices
the prosecutor does have: 1) to “no charge” the case/ “no charge” with waming letter, 2) to refer
the case to diversion, or 3) to “cﬁarge” the case. Of the 906 cases where an asgsessment was
conducted, the prosecuting attorney had not issued a decision in2l qf the cases, and data was -
rnissing in 97 additional cases. Of the remaining 788 cases, the County Attorney’s final decision
coincided with the Assessment Specialist’s recommendation in 281 of the 788 cases. In other
words, the recommendation was foﬂowéd only 35.7 % of the time.

The reasens for the discord between recommendation and decision are unclear, but likely
relate to prosecutorial discretion. All cases filter through one County Attomey, so the difference
canpot be an artifact of a sphintered decision process or multi decision makers. Since April
2010, the County Attorney has been tracking Whe’chér the additional information gathered
impacts her decision on whether to file charges, dismiss the case or refer it to Juvenile Diversion.
As of Iu;w 2010, too few cases ixave been tracked to conduct a meaningful analysis, but this will
be important data for future analysis. Although prosecutorial discretion is generally sacrosanct
and not often disturbed territory, it is important to know whether the early assessment process
incréased or decreased the prosecutor’s decision to file charges in the case: While one certamly
would not expect for the recommenda;tion and decision to coincide in every instance, another
im}iortant question is left unanswered. If data is collected and pot utilized, one might wonder

sbout the purpose of requesting youth and families participate in the early screening process. If it
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is simply to imve a timely response to the juvenile law violation, the older model of lecture and
release may be just as éffective.
Does Assessment Impact Case Determination

Although the extent to which the prosecuting attorney relies on the eatly assessment
reéommeﬁdation is unclear, data is available regarding charge determinations. Consequently, we
were able 1o detenﬁine whether information gathered through the assessment increases the
likelibood of charges being filed ;nd compare if to how often charges are filed in caées wherg no
assessment is conducted. As Table 3 illustrates, approximately 7.5% of youth who have an
assessment completed have charges filed in court, compared to 16% of cases where no
assessment was conducted. It appears that submitting to an assessment reduced the likelihood
that charges would be filed. Howe‘{er, this does not hold true for youth who are wards of the
state and who did not have an assessment completed. As discussed ahove, state wards were
generally not .contactf:d for an assessment. According to the Lancaster County Attorney’s office
contact with state wards would require a change in policy. Although state wards are more Iikely
_ to have charges filed, the reasons for this are varied and may not relate directly to the fact that
they are not completing the early assessment process. Table 3 indipates the number of youth

who did not complete as assessment and are nof state wards, as well as-the owtcome of those

cases.
906 100% assessment o 343 100% no assessment
completed completed
118 | 13.02% - data not available 60 -17.49% data not available
. 68| 7.51% charges filed 55 16.03% charges filed
339 | 37.42% referred to diversion . ’ 114 33.24% referredto IDS
371 | 40.95% No charge : 111 32.36% No charge’
10| 1.10% Child Guidance 3 0.87% Child Guidance

Table 2: Case Outcome by Assessment
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289 100% no assessment/ non stote word

49 1 16.96% data not available
36| 12.46% charges filed
105 | "37.72% referred to diversion
92 1 31.83% Nocharge
3 0.87% Child Guidance

Table 3: Case Outcome When No Assessment is Conducted {(non state ward youth)
Dats {excluding state wards) indicate that youth who complete an assessment appear to
be less likely to have charges filed in court. Only 68 of the 906 youth assessed had their charges
_officially processed, the majority were no charged (41%}) or referred to juvenile diversion (37%).
Although this doés not reflect the ultimate outcome of a case, and a youth could be sent to
diversion, fail to complete the program an& ultimately have charges filed, it reflects the initial
decision of the prosecuting attorney. This initial data indicates that the assessment process does |
not appear to be increasing the number of cases where charges are filed.
Referral for Services
Another evaluation question posed by Lancaster County is whether the early assessment
process mcreases the likelihood that a youth will fail and end up in the formal system by
increasing expectations and requirements for youth and famiiies. that are already struggling witﬁ
day-to-day expectations. In the original planning process, community stakeholders anticipated a
need for mental health services and sought funding for a set number of services. While this
would explain the number .of cases ultimately referrf_zd for mental health services, it should not
impact the rate at which the Assessment Specialist recommends the service.
Of the youth 906 assessed, only 32, or 3.5%, received a recommendation for counseling
through the Child Guidance Center (CGC). Each of these youth scored higher than 1 on the NYS

with a range of 1- 21. Seventy-eight percent of the youth recommended to CGC scored above a
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“5,” indicating that y;yuth reccmmendéd for services at CGC demonstrated at least a mid-level
need for mental health counseling. Of the 32 recommended, only ten were actually referred to
Child Guidance for services according to the Specialist’s records. However, those records may
~ not accurately capﬁne all of the y-outh actually refen_*ed to Child Guidance. For instance, the
Specialist’s records indicate a total of thirteen youth were referred to the Child Guidance Center
between April 2009 and June 2010. The County Attofmy’s records indicate that ten vouth were
referred from Jarary to June 2010 alone.

The Assessment Specialist’s recommendations include a wide range of services beyond
Child Guidance. The‘reco_mmendation is very individnalized and often includes a variety and
combination of community-based services. In 20% of the cases, the specialist recommended that
the juvenile not be charged but be required fo complete an apology letter, restitution, mediation,
tberépy or some other service. The only official mechanism the prosecutor has 1o ensure a youth
completes these recommendations is via juvenile diversion. The County Attorney’s system
allows the prosecutor only four options: 1) not charging the case; 2} not charging the case, but
sending a warning letter, 3) referring the case to.juvenile diversion, or 4) filing the case in court.
The juvenile diversion program generaiiy receives the recomu endation made during the early
assessment process and includes the reciuirement in the- diversion plan. However, for the 390
youth who were not referred to diversion, it does not appear that the family is informed of the

recommendations by any other method.
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Recommendations Made Assessment Specialist

Table 4: Assessment Speciaiist Recommendations on Cases -

Section ITI: Trends in Lancaster County’s Juvenile Justice System

Two final considerations iq evaluating a new program are: 1) the environment in which
the new program is implerﬁented and 2) how it impacts the cornmunity once it is implemented.
Changes in trends can account for rising overall numbers or inﬂuxcs in certain demographics. If
for example, there is a épike in voung offenders, it could be that the new program has created an
awareness of an actual problem and more referrals are made. It could also be tiiat there has been
an actual increase in young people breaking the law. It could equally relate to a combination of
both. In order to see the impact this prégra;m may have had, a brief @erview of the trends in
juvenile justice in Lancaster Cognty is considered in this final section. Data was coﬁected on
key juvenile justice pomnts inclt);ding the following: |

+ Lincoln Police Department (School-based calls)

» Lincoln Police Department Unit Statistics from Family Crimes (Annual Report)

¢ CEDARS Juvenile Diversion Sexrvices {(Diversion Referral and Enrollment); and

« Lancaster County Attorney (Juvenile Processing data).
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Lincoln Police Department data reflects calls made to schools within Lincoln/Lancaster
County. The 2009/2010 data indicate a 12% decrease in school-related calls compared to 2005.
However, 2005 was the highest point in a decade, so the decrease does not reflect the broader
trend that occurred from 2000 to 2010, In 2005 over 550 citations were issued to youth in public
and private schools. The number of jm;enile contacts/ citations has remained at about 500
annually since 2005. |

Data on youth referred to the Lancaster County Juvenile Diversion program in_dicatcs that
26% fewer cases are referred to ju"veni}e diversion ffom the County Attorney than in FY
2005/06. This reflects a fairly consistent trend downward since 2003. In addition, fower youth -
under the age of 10 are being referred through diversion. In fiscal year 2007/08; 16 youth ages
10 or younger wers sent to diversion. In F2008/09, only 2 vouth under ten were referred to
Vdiversrion,‘ In 2009/10, six youth ten or younger were referred to diversion. The diversion failure
rate for youth-under the age of ten ranges from 16% to 50%. Although the small nuﬁlbers of
youth referred in this age group skew the numbers, this may be an indication that younger age
children ave best servéd ina service.other. than diversién. 1t appears that the early assessment
process may be meeting this need. Referrals from the City Attqmey during the past five yeafs
have seen a 6% increase, although numbers have fluctuated from year to year.

- The number of juvenile petitions filed in Lancaster County provides an additioﬁai picture
of how the juvenile justice system may be ope;rating, and how the early assessment process may -
be impacting juveniiq justice as a whole. Petition data was provided by the Lancaster County
Attorney’s Office and includes cases filed in the Separate Juvenile Court of Lancaster County as
well as the mumber of juvenile offense(s) that were “no cﬁarged.” Although the data does not

represent a one-to-one relationship with offenses committed, it does provide us with an overall

2



trend of case processing. Lancaster County experienced a 40% decrease m cases filed in

Lancaster County’s Juvenile Court from 2005 to 2010 . While fewer cases were “no charged” in

2010 than in 2005, this reﬂects the overall trend of fewer Juvemle offenses and fewer filings in

2010 than 2005. Data reported by the Lincoln Police Department shows that overall juvenile

crime is down which may account for lower numbers throughout the system. Overall, the data

indicate that the more the system relies on alternatives, the less it relies. on official processing of

a juvenile law violation. While this seems to be a straight forward concept, in some

jurisdictions, alternatives are created and the “net widens” and more youth are caught in it and

the numbers go up.

¥{ rends in Juvende Case Processing

2005-06 2006- 07 2007 08 2008—09 2009 19 Change%

'_a’_ctomey (insufficient evidence)

A - R VRN RT3

LPD arrest for juveniles under | 144 127 | 142 | 105 R Y 7
15 (felony)* S T T RO S
'LPD arrest for }uvemles under 1,951 1 1,951 1,838‘ 1,794 - - 8%
313 (misdemeanor)* : _ o
Number of juvenile charges . 562 461 479 0496 497 -12%
‘where youth cited within a local |

ischool : ;

Cases referred to juvenile 715 654 D629 530 457 -26%
diversion by the county attorney | B R S
*éCaseS referred to juvenile 389 381 424 393 ¢ 415 +6%
(diversion by city attorney ‘ : L _7
Number of youth sent through - - - 483 - 765 +58%
ithe early asscssmaent process . P
Number of youth placed in 179 117 189 304 209 | +17% |
idetention alternatives
Offense(s) filed by county 1040 © 978 915 | 701 © 639 39%
attorney ; : '
Charges filed on youth 12 or | 105 | 148 116 | 8% 53 | -49.5% |
‘vounger (percent of total - : :
‘petitions) C(10%) - (15%) | (13%) ¢ (13%) | (83%)

‘Offense(s) no charged by county ©27 -58%
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%Offense(s) no charged by counry VT 396 304 364 348 +8%
‘atforney (warmng letier) oL ;

Offense(s) o charged by c-my 5767129 1 60 | 144 . 83 | -62%
attorney R T I
Total cases no charged by 605 552 398 554 1 458 | -24%
county attorney T N DO I R
“no charge” incidents (on yﬂuth 115 138 | 126 | 176 | 92 20%
Eunder 12) : :

Tabie 5: Trends in Lancaster County Juvemle Justice Processmg
Conclusion and Recommendations

_ The early assessment process implemented in Lancaster County appears to be identifying

younger age offenders in need of services, without increasing the number of youth being brought
into the system. This is an important finding, but should be intefpréted with some caveats.
Ffofn 2005 to 2009, it appears that juvenile offenses declineé by roﬁghly 8%, but 2010 data is
necessary to complete this picture. Assuming a continued decrease in j uvenile crime, the data
informs us that the decline in c;aées filed cannot be accounted for entirely for by a decrease i
juvenile crime. Why? Juvenile Crime appears to be down roughly 30%, but juvenile petitions
have decreased by aﬁnost 40%. Lancaster County appears t;i be utilizing alternatives, including
the early assessment process, in lieu of foﬁnal court processing, which is creating a more rapid
decline in court filings.

Although the program appears to be working as intended, procedural aspects of the
prbcess that Lancaster County may want to consider to further mmprove the program mclude:

1. Shortening the case ’processing time to make contact ﬁth the youth and family within
two weeks (at most) of the law violation, Ideally, contact would be attempted almost
mmediately. A number of approaches c_ouid be taken to achieve this, or a combination

thereof. Currently, sending reports and paperwork between offices is the most time-
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consuming part of the process. Electronic record management and reai—ﬁme data sharing
between the Lincoln Police Debartment, the County Attorney and the Assessment
Specialist would significantly reduce processing time. If feasible, cross-iraining staff
would also assist with reducing case processing time, as two of these agencies are reliant
on individually staffed positions.

. Prosecuting attorneys who utilize this process should promulgate policy that indicates
that the additional information will not be utilized to bring the youth deeper into the
system. A short statement could be read to the family/ youth at the beginning of the

. assessment process,- indicating that the assessment data could not be used in court.
Although this may already be clear to attorneys who practice in juvenile court, _it may not
be clear to parents and guardians.

. All juveniles within Lincoln/ Lancaster County should receive similar treatment by going
through the early assessment process prior to referral to juvenile diversion. Although
policies may need to be revised with regard to state wards, or youth cited under municipal
code; if the assessment process deflects youth out of the systém then this advantage
should be available to all youth in Lincoln/ Lancaster County.

. A longitudinal study should be conducted examining long term impact of this program

comparing youth and families who completed an assessment to youth who do not.
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Lincotn, Nebrasa

FALL. 2009

In 1998, many Lancaster
County officials and staff as
well as representatives from
tmany other public and
privare organizations
throughout the community
partticipated in the Lancaster
County Juvenile Justice
Needs Assessment
facilitated and led by Kasten
Chinn, INC. Jjr aussiation
with SINCLAIR HILLE &
ASSOCIATES, INC.
Through the interviews
conducted with these
petsons and the

documentary materials they

was able to gain valuable
wsight mto the nature and
operation of juvenile
services in Lancaster
Couanty. Recommendation 1
of the Study was to develop
an Assessinent Center.

- At thar dme, when lw
enforcement officers picked
up juveniles, they had to
dove  atounnd  aymg to
determine the appropriate
means of dealing with the
“offender. To maximize the
effectiveness of the juvenile
justice system and ensure
that appropriate  decisions
ate tnade, an Assessment
Center was recommended.
The theory was that this
would ensure that children
are handled appropriately
and zeduce down-time for
officers. A critical
recommendation was that a
diagnostic assessment was
crucial due to the wide ange
of individaal sttuations and
soctal/psychological factors
which contmgbute o a
youth's  well-being.  More-
over, such a process was
believed to be a basis for the
mitial  placement decision.

provided, the Project Team -

The theory behind the
assessment process was that
most systems of freatment
have mulriple zad
decentralized points of
entry. This approach leads
to fragmentation of services
and intensifies the dilemmas
inherent in implementing a
comprehensive case
management system. Too

ér

often, youth enter the same
systemn  repeatedly, but
through different “doors™.
In this sitaation, it may take
months, if 4t ali, for service
providers to realize that one
youth # recetving similar or
the same services from two
or more providers. In some
cases, however, it may not
be feasible for = systems
single point of eniry to be
an actual “physical” point of
entry. Rather, a “virtual”
option cordd be employed in
which information gathered
at one location, could be
shared with other service
providers, via 4 system wide
multi-agency  management
information  system. An
assesstnent ceater could be
the coosdination point for
youth iovolved with the
juvenile justice and other
treatrnent providers in the
comrrarmty.

It was believed that 2
juvenile justice system
equipped with the resources
and knowledge to match

The Assessment Process by Micholle §chindier
juveniles with appropriate

treatment programs while
holding them accountable
can- have a positive and
lasting  impact on the
reduption of  delingaency.
Identifytng and providing
community-based
alternatives to confinement
is often preferable and cost-
effective.
effective case mamagement
and
information systems  (MIS)
wonld be integral to this
effort. ]

Some critics said, and some
may stifl believe, that assess-
ment centers, through a net
widening effect, may lead 1o
an overwhelming burden on
the juvenile justice systern,
cspeciafly if the assessment
center is considered by law
enforcement to be a "guick
diop-off point” or a less
stigtnatizing way of bringing
a youth imnto the juvenile
justice system of treatment
realm. Proceduses for use of
the assessment center musst

be clearly established at the

oufsef {0 ensure that 2 "net
widerdng" effect does not
ocaur. -

On  Febroary 7, 2002,
Lancaster County’s’ farst
Assessment Ceater opened.
Through the years,
components of the process
hive been tded.  Some
successful, some not!
Different Leadershtp has
ocaarred  over the years.
One thing has always held
trae for the Assessment
Center: The goal is to work

collaboratively, efficiently
and effectively for the youth
and families of our
COmmumity.

Developing

management_
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FHar f}’ Assessment Process by Sarg Kliewer and Vicky Tbaﬂfj}mfz

The Centmltzed Risk/Needs Assessment
Project was fully implesented m Lancaster
County on Janaary 1, 2009 One of the most
critical fest steps is to systematically assess
the needs of youth who come in contact with
the Juvenile Justice Systemn at the eatdiest
point of contact with the system. This project

i designed to provide this tarpeted
inforimation on key factoss to the County
Attorney.

The process of the Centmhzed Risk/Needs
Assessment Project is as follows: {a) the
CEDARS Assessment Specialist  receives
citations from the County Attorney’s office;
{b) once 2 cimaton i received, the
Assessment  Speczalist thes atempis o
contact the youth and a parent/gnardian via
telephone; {c) once conmcted, the Nebiaska
Youth Sceeen QIYS) interview is conducted
with both the parent/guardian and the youth
ff age 12 or older); {d) the Assessment
Specialist then teviews the ioformation
gathered and provides feedback to the
Connty Atromeys. This feedback consists of
a summary of the interview, WNYS scores, and
infervention recommendations. These
recommendations can incude but are not
Emited to: dismissal of dmz:ges writing 2
letter of apology to the vactlm, Victim-
Offender Mediation; pam in an
educational group sach as Developmental
Assets offered through CEDARS -Juvenile
Diversion Services {JDS), Survival Skills of-
fered through the YWCA; individual ot fam-
ity counsding; and in/outpatient drug/
alcohol treatment.

Currently, the County Attorney is proceeding
in one of fout ways: {2} no charge, (b) refercal
to JDS, {c) referral of younger offenders to

Child Guidanice, and/or (d} fiing of the
citaiton in hrvenile Court If the citation is
sent to JDS, staff review the
tecommendations made by the Assessment
Specialist and do their best to support and
gnide the youth and family i following
through with services. A more in-depth
assessment 15 completed by JDS using the

Youth Level of Service/Case Management -

Toventory  (YLS/CMI). This assessmoent
guides the development of a service plan to
address a youth’s needs based upon the level
of risk for ge-offending. The service plan
incorporates the strengths of the youth and
family. If a jovende offender progresses
fasther into the Juventle Justice System in
Lancaster County, Juvenile Diversion and
Probation staff collabomte to share assess-
tent information zegarding needs, services,
and progress made by a ;nvemle while
develqmmtofaﬂyﬁnthcrmmeneeds for
a youth and family. Overall, the Centralized
Risk,/Needs Assessment Pro;ect will ideatify
services alteady available in the cotmimanity
to respond to the needs of youth and
familics, and eventmally may help ideonfy
gaps or services needed that do not currently
exist in out cormnunity to help address the
needs of juvenile offendess.

bary of the parents/ gu:a:dmns interviewed
with the NYS have expressed graritude and
relief for having had the opportunity to tall
with the CEDARS Assessment Specialist.
‘They report maultple attempts and
appaoaches to helping ther child, but are
somewhat disconmged becamse they feel they
have wn out of options. The Assessment
Specialist is able to provide resonrce referrals

helped  case

and give suggestions for services parents may

-not have been aware of or have accessed.

Parents/ grardians also seporr this project has
apprehension  about  the
unfamiliadty of the Juvende Justice process.
Parents/geardians  feel encouraged to
provide sugpestions and tecommendations
regarding the needs of their child. Feedback
from parncats/guardians is most often if not
always inchided in the Recommendation
Form sent to the County Attomey.
Accommodations are also made for non-
English speaking youth and theéir farmlies to
belp provide them with adequate services
while engaging them in the process.

Most  importantly, the youth being
interviewed have expressed gratimde fo the
Assessment Specialist — they understand they
may need help with certain aspeces of their
lives but have been unsure of where to go,”
who to ask, and/or how to ask In some
ways, the Assessment Specialist serves as a
voice ot advocate on behalf of the child
Implementing this project continues to be
beneficial not only for the County Attomeys
by giving them more information to help
make a dectsion, but for the families as well

Young Child Assessments by Cheryl Turner

Child Guidance Center in collaboration with
the Tancaster County Attorney and Region V
systems has developed an assessment process
to allow young juventles ages 7 to 11; who
. have been charped with a cominal act; the
oppottunity to complete a comprehensive
assessment process in Beu of court imvelve-
ment. Juveniles ate referred to CGC by the

county attorney after review of the Cedars
Early Assessment Process information. The
county 2ttorney sends a letter of information
and referral to the families providing them
with contact information for this voluntaty
process. Pamilics have five business days
with which to contact CGC and armnge an
appointment. Once the assessment bas been

completed the families are often referred to
outpatient services, commupity services, or
the prevention professional partner wrap-
around program. Families that are successful
in this progmm will find that their young
children will avoid the court processes.
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LINCY by Krestin Nelvon
In faouary 2007, LB 157 (Safe Haven) was

introduced info the Nebraska
Legislature. Ag amended version was signed
into law on Febriary 13, 2008. The intent of
the legislation was to protect helpless
children who ate in immediate danger and
provide a safe place for a child to be dropped
off It did oot specify 2n age it and, as a
tesult, from September 13, 2008 to
November 22, 2008, 36 children wete
- dropped off at local community hospitals by
categivers in need of help. The average age
of the children was 13. Oa November 21,
2008, was signed into law amending the
original Safe Haven law by changing the age
Hmit o 30 days of age.

Neither legisiation was intended for patents
who wete having a difficalt time parenfing
defiant, unzuly children or for older youth
with behavioral problems affecting their
homes, schools and communities. However,

1B 157 highlighted that many families were
strugphing with their children and in need of
additional support. In response to that need,
LB 603 was introduced and signed into law
on May 22, 2609. The legislation provided
additional services, suppott and professional
development 'resources  directed towards
helping Nebraska famifies desfing with
children’s behavioral health issmes. Funds
were  appropriated  to  expand  existing
regional Professions] Partner progtams and
support other sexvices for childen

As a result, in July 2009, Region V Systems,
i collaboration with key community stake-
holders, including the County Attorney’s

office, implemented LINCS {Linking Indi-
viduals /Families in Need of Corntoanity
Supports). LINCS offers assessment, services
and  supports to families that have
acknowledged a need for assistance with their
children who are demonstrating difficulties in
their homes, schools and commmmnities. The
voluntaty program also responds to youth
with serious/complex needs who are at risk
of becoming state wards through application -
of the wraparound approach including
pommaty  prevention, intervention  and
coordination designed . to  address  the
behavioral health needs of youtk and their
families. The primary goal of LINCS is to
teduce formal juvenile justice involvement
while gencrating community support and
service for the youth and their families.

Juvenile Substance Abuse Action Coalition
Disproportionate Minority Contact Committes
Truancy Run Response Commitice

Committve Meetings

2nd Thursday of the Monih from 9:30 1o 17:00 a.m. at the Independence Center

+ 2nd Thursday of the Month from 12:00 to 1:00 p.m. at the Lincoln Podice Department

41h Wednesday of the Month from 1200 1o 1:00 pm. at the FHuman Services Office

Juventle Probation Office - Risk _Assessment Process by Lori Griges

‘Since 2006, the Juvenile Probation Office has
been wsing the Youth Level of Service
Inventory duting the pre-disposition report
process to incorporate the youth’s risk snd
aceds into the court report
tecotmnendations. A 2 to 3 hour interview

“with the youth and family is conducted to
fully investigate risk factors in that yonth’s
life and identify specific issues that need to
be addressed in order to reduce the rsk of
further law viclations.
This instrument contains eight domains with
each domain compiling 2 score and then the
youth is given an ovemall score of sk to
re-offend. The eight dornains are:

Prior Offenses  Substance Abuse
Family Leisure/Recreation
Education Personality

Peers Attitudes

Within each domain, officers also search for
strengths that could assist that youth with
buildifig 2 program or new approach to their
life and thus, reduce their risk of recidivism.
Probation Officers zely on the resuits of this

nsk instrument to begin to identify the
appropriate level of supervision and case
plamiing.

If youth score in the high risk range 2nd are
also deemed appropriate for probation, the
vouth are assigned to supervision officers
with lower caseload mfios (Community
Based Intervention) and the probation case
plan is driven by the risk factors identified in
the Pre-Disposition Report, Officers work
mtenstvely with the youth and family to
create a probation plan. which adequately
addresses the risks identified Cognitive
thinking groups and team meetings are
utilized to tmintain close supervision over
the juventle and ensure progress on their
goals. :
If youth score in the low risk range and are
placed on probation, the youth are assigned
to probation officers with higher caseloads
{Cotntmunity Based Resources) and these
officers utilize community referrals to assist
with the supervision of that youih,

The YIS instrument is also used by Juvenile

Diversion and the Office of Juvenile Services
so all 3 levels of juvenile intervention

. programiming (Diversion, Probation, OJS)

ate famthar with the vatous risks in each
domain and the causes of youth scoting high
or loww. This is the first time all 3 agencies
have used the same sk assessmeni tool.
We are finding this to be extremely beneficial
as youth transfer from one agency to the
next,

1f youth in the probation office ate ordered
to complete an OJS evaluation, the probation
officer communicates with the Q78
Tepresentative regarding the YLS risk assess-
ment tool and work topether to come to
sunilar  econclusions on appropriate
tecommendations. Since both state agencies
have been formally tmined on the YLS
nstrzment, we are able to joimtly score the
instrament during those times that hoth QJs

-and Probation are making recommendations

to the Conrt.
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The underlmmg mission of Lancaster County’s J uvenile Justice

System is:

“To provide individualized supervision, care, and freatment in a
manner consistent with public safety to those youth under age
18 at the time of referral who violate the law. Further, the
Juvenile Justice System shall recognize and encourage
prevention efforts through the support of program and services

Youth Services Center Screening by Michael Renn

The Youth Assessment Center provides 2
vatiety of screening and assessment services
for Lancaster County Juvenile Justice and the
commumnity. Child Guidance Ceater has
coatracted with Lancaster County to provide
licensed mental health pmacttioners and
licensed drug and alcohol counselors at the

Youth Assessment Center, to assess vouth

mvolved with the Juvenile Justice System.
For more information tegarding the
described assessments, please contact Mike
Benn, Mental THealth Coordinator, at
441-5615.

Screening
This process is utfilized for communirty
referrals (Le. parents/families, youth, school)
and juvenile justice agencies {Le. probation,
county attorney). Upon completion of the
“screening” interview, the Youth Assessment
Center could develop intervention plans,
make a referral to community services
providers to access approptiate services and/
or recommendations for further evaluation
for the youth and family.
Process of determining the presence of
soicidality, mental health, behavioml and/or
substance abuse rsk factors.  This
information may be obtained using mbﬁm
and afjective roeasutres,
Subjective: A brief clinical interview with the
youth. This information will be documented
in a progress mote and does not iaclude a
“formal” report.
Odjective: Using specific scrcemng instruments
to identify presence of risk factors.
& SSI (Simple Screcning Instrument -
Substance use)
s MAYSI-2 (Massachusetts
Screening Instrument)
s DPS (Diagnostic Predictive Scale)
e  SRI {Suicide Risk Inventory)

Youth

Juvenile Justice Assessments
These assessments are completed with youth
who are currently detained at the Youth
Services Center and are imvolved with
Juvenile Probation.
These assessments provide a “smap shot”
lock at juveniles current behavioral, mental
health, and/or social foactioning.
Information gathered includes:
fonmng away
law violations
family environment
peer relationships
school
treatment,/ therapy mvn!vemeni
medications -
drug//alcohol use (S5I)
employment
mental health concerns (MAYSI}
risk of future violence (SAVEY)
R.ecommcndatmﬂs may include:
e level of supetvision in commumity
¢ can the youth be managed in the
cotnonnity and whatr tesources will be
ﬂEOﬂSSﬁl’y.
&  consultation with cusrent treatment
providers '
*  expeditor services/(Graduated sanctions
available
conmunity tesources
forther cvaluation {Le. PTA, Dimg/
Aleohol evalnation, CCAA)
*_UA can provide information for the
Detention Hearing or conld be uttized as 2

- genenal information gathering tool to provide

updated information to Juvenile Courr for
the Adjudication Hearing.

*Can also identify potential barters (Le.
parents” refusal for youth to return home,
insurance/financial, high risk to commmnity)

**JA does not provide mental health/
substance abupse diagnosis, teatment
recommendations.

designed to meet the needs of those youth who are identified as
being at-risk or violating the law and those whose behavior is
such that they endanger themselves or others”.

Pre-Treatment _ Assessment _{(PTA)
Provides 2 mmprbensioy Biopsychosoctal
Assessment through clinical interview with
youth/parents, review of collateral
information, and clinical assessment utiftzing
MAYSI-2, 881, SASS] {if needed) to dentify
appropriate methods of intervention and

. mental health/substance use needs.

Includes Mental Health/Substance Abuse
Diapnosis and ireatment peeds.
Information includes:

Presenting problem and Guoals

Social History

Family Dynamics

Mental Health history

Academic and intellectual history

Medical History

Nutrition and Pain score

Legal History

O#fender issues

Traumma/Victim issues

Substance Abuse history

Personal assets and liabilities -
**This does not include a2 Sex Offense
Specific (805} Risk Assessment

D ‘Alcohol Evalunation {DE&A

® This evalbation includes the same
information as the PTA, with more
in-depth assessment of substance abuse

. 155u€s.

@  The evaluations follow the standardized

format, utilizing the CASI
{Comprehensive  Adolescent  Severity
Inventory).

»  Typically, this evaluation is compicted
on youth who have law violtions for .
substance use/possession of a reported
substance use history as evidenced by

* self report, parent report, probation
report, and/ ot positive UA.

® This evaluation will provide substance
use/mental health diagnosis and treat-
ment recommendations.



